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Objectives

Toadminister Oil Industry Development Fund

To render financial and other assistance to oil industry concern for the development of ail
industry.

To make grants, advance loans and make equity investments for activities such as:

“*

o

4

Prospecting for and exploration of mineral oil within India or outside India.

Establishment of facilities for production, handling, storage and transportation of crude oil

Refining & marketing of petroleum and petroleum products

Marketing of petrochemicals and fertilizer.

Scientific, technological and economic research which could be directly orindirectly useful
to the oil industry.

Experimental or pilot studies in any field of oil industry.

Training of personnel whether in India or outside engaged or to be engaged in any field of
oil industryand such other measure as may be prescribed.
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Introduction

The Oil Industry (Development) Act, 1974 was enacted following successive and steep increase in the
intarnational prices of crude oil and petroleum products since 1973, when the need for progressive
self-reliance in petroleum and petroleum based industrial raw materials assumed importance. The
following objects were included in the statement of Objects and Reasons of the Oil Industry
(Development) Bill, 1974: '

«  The programs for securing self-reliance in petroleum & petroleum based raw materials should
be rapidly stepped up.

. Necessary resources for execution of such programs must be assured.

. For these purposes cess to he |levied on crude oil and natural gas ta create an Oil Industry
Development Fund.

. The Fund would be used exclusively to provide financial assistance to the organizations engaged
in development programs of il industry.

The Act provides for the establishment of a Board for the development of oil industry and for that
purposeto levy duty of excise on crude oiland natural gas and for matters connected therewith.

Organizational setup and Functions of the Board

The Qil Industry Development Board was established on 13th January 1975 and is functioning under
the administrative control of Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas, Government of India. The Board
comprises of a Chairman whais appointed by the Government and the following members:

i. Not more than three members to be appointed by the Central Government to represent the
Ministry or Ministries of the Central Government dealing with petroleum and chemicals.

ii. Two members to be appointed by the Central Government to represent the Ministry of the
Central Government dealing with finance.

ii.  Not more than five members to be appointed by the Central Government to represent the
Corporations, being Corporations owned or controlled by the Central Government engaged in
activities as envisaged under the Oil Industry (Development) Act 1974.

iv. Two members of whom one shall be appointed by the Central Government from amongst
persons who, in the opinion of that Government, have special knowledge or experience of oil
industry and the other shall be appointed by that Government to represent labour employed in
the oil industry

V. The Secretary to the Board is the ex- officio member.

The Qil Industry Development Board has been set up to provide financial and other assistance for the
sromotion of all such measures as are, in its opinion, conducive to the development of il industry. As
per the provisions of Section 6 of 0il Industry (Development) Act, 1974, the Board may render
assistance for the following purposes:
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3.2 Aspersection 16 of Oil Industry (Development) Act, the proceeds of the duties of excise levied are first

USTRY DEVELOPNIEN

Prospecting for and exploration of mineral oil within or outside India;

b)  Theestablishmentoffacilities for production, handling, storage and transportation of crude oil;
¢)  Refiningand marketing of petroleum and petroleum products;
d) Themanufacture and marketing of petro chemicals and fertilizers;

e) Scientific, technological and economic research which could be directly or indirectly useful to oil
industry;

f)  Experimentalor pilotstudiesin any field of oil industry;
g)  Trainingof oilindustry personnelin India or abroad.

Any ol industrial concern or other person who is engaged in any activity, which is directly or indirectly
connected with the ail industry in the country, is eligible for financial or other assistance from the
Board.

The Boardisalso duty bound to carry out such directions as may be issued to it from time to time by the
Central Government for the efficient administration of the O/D Act.

Financial arrangement under Oil Industry (Development) Act, 1974

Section 15 of the Oil Industry (Development) Act, 1974 provides for collection of cess as a duty of
excise on indigenous crude oil and natural gas. The cess on crude oil has been levied/revised by
Government as duty of excise on indigenous crude oil produced in India (including the continental
shelfthereof), from time to time, at the following rates:

‘ With effect from . Rate Per Tonne
| 23rd July, 1974 _ Rs.60 F
13thJuly, 1981 Rs.100 |
| 15th February, 1983 Rs.200

1st March, 1987 Rs.600
ij.st February, 1989 a7 Rs.900 s
| 1st March, 2002 ; Rs.1800 - o
| 15t March, 2006 | Re2s00
_?Lﬁ’thMarch,Zﬂlz | _Rs.lﬂfE-DD k|
1st March; ;Giﬁ | 20% aEI-nreE |

Source: Ministry of Finance

credited to the Consolidated Fund of India. The Central Government may, if Parliament b)
appropriation made by [aw in this behalf, so provides, pay to the Board from time to time, from put®
such proceeds, after deducting the expenses of collection, such sums of money as it may think it fol!
being utilized exclusively for the purposes of this Act.
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3.3 The Central Government under section 17 of the Act may also, after due appropriation made by
Parliament by law in this behalf, pay to the Board by way of grants or loans such sums of money as the
Central Government may consider necessary.

4. FundsreceivedhyOIDB

4.1 OIDB generates its internal resou rcés by way of interest income on loans given to various oil and gas
sector companies and short-term investment of surplus funds in Fixed Deposit Receipts. The Oil
Industry Development Fund has accumulated to Rs.11900.09 crore as on 31st March, 2021 with the
contribution of cess receipts and the internal resources generated by OIDB.

4.2 The cumulative amount of cess collected has increased from Rs.30.82 crore in 1974-75 to
Rs.2,35,051.07 crore in 2020-21. Out of which, OIDB has been allocated an amount of Rs.902.40 crore

till 1991-92. Thereafter, no amount out of cess collection has been allocated to OIDB. The year-wise
details of the cess collected on crude oil by Governmentsince 1974-75 and allocations made to OIDB is
shown inthe following table:
Statement of cess collection by Central Government &
its allocation to OIDB since inception till 31.03.2021
- (Rs./crore)
SI.No. Year Collection of cess on crude oil by Govt. Payment made to OIDB by
1 197475 3082 | _ 16.01 |
2 1975-76 50.05 62.27
3 1976-77 52.88 48.19
4 1977-78 63.72 ' 50.10
5 1978-79 68.89 | - 20.00
6 1979-80 69.70 | 140.00
7 1980-81 60.40 25.01 |
s | 1981-82 138,97 142.92
9 1982-83 268.83 100.00
10 1983-84 812.80 =
11 1984-85 850.12 | :
12 1985-86 | 897.66 :
13 198687 981.50 .
14 1087-88 1806.60 .
15 1988-89 | 201364 63.09
16 1989-90 | 291457 50.00
17 | 1990-91 | 278515 | 89.81
(18 | 1991-92 ‘ 2500.64 95.00
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19 | 199203 2207.61 :
20 199394 2175.46 .
21 1994-95 2566.16 -
22 1995-96 ik 2819.52 :
23 1996.97 2558.03 -
2 1997-98 2528.74 E |
25 1998-99 244818
26 | 199900 2589.44 i
27 2000.01 — #ma
28 2001-02 U s -
29 2002 03 487317 ]
30 2003 04 4919.49 -
31 2004-05 5033,97 g
32 200506 4857.58 :
33 200607 6875.53 o o
34 | 200708 6854,00 4
35 2008-09 6680.94 b
36 2009-10 6637.13 !
37 2010-11 7671.44 o
38 201112 B055.46 :
39 2012-13 14473.16 =
a0 2013-14 14,542.38 o
a1 2014-15 14,677.24 B
a2 2015-16 z " 14,468.94 -
43 2016-17 12,778.20 g
Fram 2017-18 14246.20 r
45 2018-19 18556.09 F
46 2019-20 15800.92 Fy E‘.
47 2020 21 11474.15 F ]
Total 235051.07 902.40

Note:- The figures of collection of cess on crude oll by Government is provided to OIDB by ONGC,OIL & DGH:
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DIDB has been providing loans to oil and gas PSUs ever since its creation in 1974-75. The loans have
been primarily utilized to fund oil and gas pipeline projects, setting up of new refineries,
expansion/modernisation of existing refineries, quality improvement projects, single point mooring
projects, city gas distribution projects, gas cracker projectetc.

2. Thelnand1sbursedbyUIDBfmm2016—1?tu2020—21Isshcwninthefo!luwinggfaph:
Rs./crore
iy =
4714.13
1572.8
67
-~ —
L - . 2
2016-17
- -_-_'_‘—“—-—_______-_-_
20018 2018-19 =\/
2019-20
2020-21
3. The Company-wise details of the loan disbursed by OIDB to finance oil and gas sector projects in the
last five years is given in the following table:
= ol Rs. in-:rEE
Name of Financial Years
concern 2016-17 | 2017-18 | 201819 = 2019-20 | 202021 | e HJ
1 |ocL 0.00 0.00 0.00 150.00 437,00, 587.00
2 |BPCL 346.00 000  500.00 328.25 | 0.00| 1174.25
3 GAIL [India) Ltd. 0.00 0.00 0.00 850.00 150.00| 1000.00
4 HPCL 0.00 0.00 600,00 2300.00 100.00{ 3000.00
5 BCRL | 24312 157.58 46.37 0.00 96.60  543.76
|6 MRPL | 0.00 | 0.00| 268.00 271.00 5525 594.25
7 GAIL Gas Ltd. ‘ 87.35 | 35.57 | 36.66 0.00 204.43 36400
8 CPCL 0.00 0.00 50.00 |  300.00 200.00/  550.00
' Biecco Lawrie Ltd. 0.00 0.00 TL.77 14.88 0.00 86.65
Total . 676.47 193.15| 1572.80 421413  1243.37| 7899.92
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Indian Oil Corporation Limited {IOCL), Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited (BPCL), Hindustan
Petraleum Corporation Ltd. (HPCL), Brahmaputra Cracker and Polymer Ltd. (BCPL), GAIL (India) Ltd.,

GAIL Gas Ltd., Mangalore Refinery & Petrochemicals Ltd. (MRPL) and Chennai Petroleum Cerporation
Ltd. (CPCL) have been the major beneficiaries of loans provided by OIDB during 2016-17 tc 2020-21.
The following graph gives the company-wise share of loan disbursed during 2016-17 to 2020-21:

P loans disbursed

mI0CL

| BPCL

W GAIL (India) Ltd.
® HPCL

mBCPL

| MRPL

1 GAIL Gas Ltd.
nCPCL

Biecco Lawrie Ltd.

5. Ason31.3.2021, thereis a total outstanding loan of Rs.7621.09 crare with Oil & Gas PSUs. Details of
company-wise outstanding loans are given below:

(Rs. in crore)
Sl.No.| Name of Oil & Gas Concerns Amount |
1, Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited -~ 2850.00 _|
2. Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited 789.75 |
3. Brahmaputra Cracker and Polymer Limited 893.21
4. GAIL (India) Limited 1000.00
5 Mangalore Refinery and Petrochemicals Limited R - 527.25 B
B. Chennai Petroleum Corporaticn Limited 53?:{3
7. Indian Oil Corporation Limited 587.00
8. GAILGas Limited 337.73
9. Biecco Lawrie Limited 98.65 |
 Total B 7621.09 |
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SI.No. Name of Oil Concerns Amount

1. Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited i 100.00
2. GAIL (India) Limited | 150.00
_?.. Chennai Petroleum Curpnmtiﬁn Limited 200.00 |
4. Mangalnre Refinery and Petr-::-clr;emicals leiteﬁ 7 55.25 7
_5. Indian Qil C-:rrpur_atiﬂn Limited ! 437.00
6. | GAILGasLimited | 20443
7. i Brahmaput;a Cracker_and Polymer Lid J ) : 96.69

S Total _ ' 124337

7.0 Projectsfunded by OIDB during the financial year 2020-21

7.1 Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited (HPCL)

OID

Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited (HPCL), a Maharatna CPSE owns and operates two miajer
refineries producing a wide variety of petroleum fuels & specialties, ane in Mumbai (West Coast) of
7.5 Million Metric Tonnes Per Annum (MMTPA] capacity and the other in Visakhapatnam, (East Coast)
with a capacity of 8.3 MMTPA. The company also owns and operates the largest Lube Refinery in the
country producing Lube Base Oils of international standards, with a capacity of 428 TMT at the

Mumbai Refinery.

OIDB has sanctioned a loan assistance of Rs,2900 crore to HPCL for part financing of their Visakh
Refinery Modernisation Project (VRMP) and Mumbai Refinery Expansion Project (M REP). During the]
year 2020-21, HPCL has avalled a loan assistance of Rs. 100 crore from OIDB for Visakh Refinery
Modernisation Project (VRMP) and Mumbai Refinery Expansion Project (MREF). These projecis
implementation will enhance the Refineries capacity from 15.8 to 24.5 MMTPA. [VR: 8.3 to 15.0; MR:
7.5 to 9.5]. As part of the project, both refineries have upgraded MS/HSD treating/upgradaticn
facilities to meet BS VI Fuels. This has resulted in 80% reduction in Sulphur content in MS and HSD from!
50 to 10 ppmw, thus supplying ultra-low Sulphur clean fuels to the market. Apart from this, Visakh|
Refinery is implementing Residue Upgradaticn Facility to upgrade low value Fuel oil streams and
Hydrocracker unit.

Brief details of the projects are given below:
Visakh Refinery Modernization Project (VRMP)

visakh Refinery Madernization Project (VRMP) considers putting up a new Crude unit of capacity a4
MMTPA along with new Residue Upgradation Facility (RUF), a new Hydrocracker unit {HCU) and ane!
Isomerisation unit and associated facilities.

Revamp of existing MS treating/upgradation and HSD treating facilities has been successfullf
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COU Querall View of Visakh Refinery Modernization Project

completed & commissioned. These units have started producing the BS VI MS & HSD products up to
the current refinery capacity.

Residue Upgradation Facility being set up at Visakh Refinery will enable the refinery to become a Zero
fuel oil refinery, upgrading surplus low value high Sulphur fuel cil components to high value distillates.
The LC Max reactors have reached at the site and the project is expected to be mechanically completed
by 032022,

Full Conversion Hydrocracker (FCHCU), which converts VGO into light & middle distillates, is also
capable of producing BS VI quality Diesel and all other products of treated quality. The mechanical
completion of the unit is by Q3 2021.

VRMP also considers various environmental facilities such as Sour Water Stripping Units (SWSU),
Amine Regeneration Units [ARU), Sulphur Recovery Units (SRU), Fuel Gas Amine Treatment Units
(FGATU), Integrated Effluent Treatment Plant (IETP), etc. The units are under construction and is
expected to be mechanically completed by Q4 2021.

Mumbai Refinery Expansion Project [MREP)

Mumbai Refinery Expansion Project (MREP) project considers revamp of an existing crude unit to
enhance capacity from 4.0 to 6.0 MMTPA. Integration of Vacuum Distillation Units is also being done
to reduce energy consumption. As part of the project, Revamp of MS treating/upgradation and HSD
treating facilities to produce BS VI MS and HSD. The revamp of the units are mechanically completed
and the pre-commissioning activitias are in progress.

A new Hydrogen Generation unit is being put up to meet the increased Hydrogen requirement. The
unit is mechanically completed and pre-commissioning activities are in progress. Refinery Crude
processing capacity willgo up from 7.5t0 9.5 MMTPA post project implementation.

The project implementation is being done keeping SO2 emission within the existing norms of
12 6TPD.
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7.2 GAIL(India) Limited

GAIL {Indiz) Limited is a “Maharatna” company and is the largest state-owned natural gas processing
and distribution company in India with NG pipeline network of 12400 Km. The company has diversifiad
into upstream and downstream businesses and has extended presence in power, liquefied natural gag
(LNG) re-gasification, city gas distribution (CGD) and exploration & production (E&P).

GAIL has played a significant role in economic development of the country in general and in Power and
Fertilizer sector in particular by development of natural gas pipeline infrastructure. The gas pipeling
infrastructure laid by GAIL and its efforts in development of gas market besides providing a choicetd
customers in the form of an alternative environmental friendly fuel has also helped in monetizationd
the gas reserves and reduction in erstwhile flaring of gas.

QIDB has sanctioned a loan assistance of Rs,1000 crore to GAIL (India) Ltd. [GAIL) to financﬁl
Jagdishpur Haldia & Bokaro Dhamra Pipeline (JHBDPL) project including the Barauni Guwatil
Pipeline, Out ofthe approved loan assistance of Rs.1000 crore, GAIL has availed loan assistance of i
850 crore in 2019-20 and balance loan assistance of Rs. 150 crore in 2020-21 far financing the saié
praject. Briefdetails of the projectisgiven below:

Pradhan Mantri Urja Ganga Pipeline Project

lagdishpur Haldia & Bokaro Dhamra Pipeline (JHBDPL) popularly known as “Pradhan Mantri U
ui Ganga Project” and further extension of it from Rarauni to Guwahati (BGPL) (via Siliguri §
Bongaigaon), is being executed as part of 15,000 Km National Gas Grid conceptualized by Governmél
of India. This project will meet the energy needs of Industrial / Domestic / Transport Sectors in Ea '!
India viz. Uttar Pradesh, Bihar, Iharkhand, Odisha, West Bengal and Assam States and will conneg r
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these states and North Eastern Region with existing National Gas Grid. GAIL (India) Limited, a
Maharatna Public sector company, under the aegis of Ministry of Petreleum & Natural Gas is
implementing 2655 Km JHBDPL project and 729 Km of BGPL Project with an investment of Rs.15,520
crore which includes capital grant of Rs.5,176 Crore from the Government of India and the praject is
scheduled to be completed progressively by December, 2021.

This pipeline shall supply gas to fertilizer plants at Gorakhpur, Barauni and Sindri. The capacity of the
pipeline network is 16 MMSCMD. Physical progress has been achieved in line with the envisaged
schedule. This trunk pipeline investment could trigger cascading investments through infrastructure
creation in City Gas Distribution, LNG terminal, fertilizer plant revival etc. in near future by various
investors .Presently CNG and PNG Gas supplies commenced in Hazaribagh, Bokaro and Dhanbad of
Iharkhand & Purulia, Asansol and Durgapur of West Bengal.

The construction of the pipeline system is under progress in phases. Out of this, 1109 Kms pipeline
section from Phulpur [U.P.) to Dobhi{Bihar) to Barauni (Bihar) with spur lines to Varanasi, Patna and
Gorakhpur (750 Km) and Dobhi-Durgapur with spur line to Matix, Durgapur and HURL, Sindri (359 Km)
have been commissioned. The 350 km Dhobi-Durgapur section with spur line upto Matrix Fertilizer
has been dedicated to nation by Honorable Prime Minister Shri Narendra Modi on 07.02,2021. The
warkisin progress for balance sections.

7.3 Chennai Petroleum Corporation Limited (CPCL)

Chennai Petroleum Corporation Limited (CPCL), formerly known as Madras Refineries Limited (MRL)
established in 1965, was set up with an installed capacity of 2.5 Million Tonnes Per Annum (MMTPA).
Presently, CPCL has two refineries with a combined refining capacity of 12.1 Millien Tonnes Per Annum
(MMTPA), The Manali Refinery has a capacity of 11.1 MMTPA and is one of the most complex
refineries in India with Fuel, Lube, Wax and Petrochemical feedstock production facilities. The
company has recently commissioned the RESID upgradation project at capital outlay of Rs.3110 crore,
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which is designed to increase the production of high value middle distillates from the lower bottoms
besides increasing the ability to process heavier crudes. CPCL's second refinery is located at Cauvery
Basin at Nagapattinam. This unit was set up in Nagapattinam with a capacity of 0.5 MMTPAin 1993 and

later enhanced to 1.0 MMTPA.

ASTRY

OIDB has sanctioned a loan assistance of Rs.450 crore to Chennai Petraleum Corporation Limited
(CPCL) for its BS-VI Auto Fuel Project. Out of which, Rs.250 crore was disbursed during 2015-20 and
Rs.200 crore during 2020-21 to CPCL for the said Projects. Brief details af the projectis given below:

BS-VI Auto Fuel Project:
7.3.1 As partof fuel guality upgradation, CPCL has commissioned following units:

A. Gasoline Desulphurization (GDS) unit 0.6 MMTPA: Unit was successfully commissioned on 13th
January, 2021. Gasoline Desulphurization (GDS) unit was dedicated to the nation on 17th
February, 2021 by Hon’ble Prime Minister, Shri Narendra Modi through video conferencing.

B. Demountable Flare: Unit was mechanically completed on 10th March, 2021. Successfully,
lighted up with pilot burner on 26th March, 2021.
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C. New Sulphur Recovery Block: Piping & Equipment erection & associated units erection in
progress. The unit is expected to be mechanically completed by 2nd quarter of 2021-22. The
estimated cost of Fuel Quality Upgradation project is Rs. 1858 Cr. The physical progress of the
project as on 31st March2021is97.2 %,

Regasified Liquified Natural Gas Project

As a measure towards reducing CEP! index, CPCLis switching over to Natural gas / Regasified Liguified
Natural Gas [RLNG) to meet the internal fuel requirements, As part of this project, RLNG conversion in
one HGU plant, Furnaces of Refinery-lll was implemented in March, 2019. Also 4 out of 6 boilers and4
out of 5 Gas Turbines had been completed during this year. The pending HGU plant modification is
scheduled during the forthcoming M&1 shutdown during last quarter of FY 2020-21. M/s Technipis the
process licensor of this unit and the total cost of the projectis Rs.421 crore.

In the Financial Year 2020-21, the following units were converted for using of RLNG as fuel.

. GT-01 -Commissioned on 10th lul 2020
- Boiler-03 -Commissioned on 19th Aug 2020
. GT-05 -Commissioned on 17th Dec 2020

Balance conversion facilities for Boilers-04 & 05 and for HGU-205 are expected to be completed in
phased manner by the 2nd guarter of 2021-22, The Physical progress of the project as on 31st March,
2021is87.6%.

-

Receiving Station

7.4 Mangalore Refinery and Petrochemicals Limited

Mangalore Refinery and Petrochemicals Limited (MRPL) is a Schedule ‘A’ Miniratna Company. MRPL
was set up as a joint venture between HPCL and Aditya Birla Group in 1987. The 1st phase of the
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Refinery of capacity 3.69 MMTPA was commissioned In 1996. In 1999, MRPL commissioned the
second phase and increased the Refining capacity to 9.69 MMTPRA. The last expansion of the Refinery
was completed with the last of the units [Polypropylene Unit) commissiened in 2015, The present
installed capacity of MRPLis 15 MMTPA. In 2003, ONGC acquired the stakes of the AV Birla group and
subsequently increased its shareholding to 71.63%. HPCL holds 16.95% and balance is Public
shareholding (Institutions and nan Institutions). The company was incorparated as a Public Sector
Undertaking inthe year 2005 and upgraded to Schedule ‘A’ company inJuly 2013.

MRPL contributes to 6% of the country's refining capacity. The Refinery configuration is quite complex
with a nelson complexity factor of around 10. The Refinery is capable to optimally process wide grades
of crude oil ranging from 20 AP| to 45 API. MRPL has processed more than 80 different types of crudes
from around the warld. Crudes have been sourced from Middie East, Asia, South America, LISA and
Russia. Refinery has been founded on a robust infrastructure, Dedicated Raw Water Intake facility,
Captive letty at Coastal Terminal, Single Point Mooring Facility and Railway Siding for Petcoke
evacuation provide an anchor for Reliable Operations.

MRPL produces significant guantities of LPG, Motor Spirit, Aviation Turbine Fuel and High Speed
Diesel. The Refinery commenced the production of BS-VI grade compliant fuel in October 2019. The
Refinery complex includes & high severity fluidized catalytic cracking unit praducing high value
polymer grade propylene. MRPL has installed the only polypropylene producing unit in sauthern
India. The table below capturesthe product slate af MRPL:

L L-PG o Fuel @il

< Naphtha i < Bi_turnen |
@ MS[BS-VI) & VG 10, VG 30, VG 40

;* Xylol - Sulphur (99.9% purity) =

ﬂ ;HSKD Lpasl o> Pet-coke e

?*et' H5D(B5-VI) Y o Pﬂlyprop;'lene L

The company had net-revenue of Rs.32,182 crore from operations In the year 2020-21 and a Net
Worth of Rs.7528 crare.

BS-VI Project

B5-VI Project comprises additional facilities like new FCC Gasoline Treatment Unit (FGTU}, Sulphur
Recovery Unit and other facilities like Nitrogen, Utilities and Offsites. The FCC Gasoline Treatment Unit
has been mechanically completed and commissioned. Other facilities are in an advanced stage of
completion.

The total cost estimate for transition to BS-VIin case of MRPLis Rs.1,810 Crore. Out of the total project
cost, 25% (Rs.452 crore) has been met through OIDB Ioan assistance. OIDB has disbursed approved
lpan ofRs.268crorein FY 2018-15 and Rs. 184 croreinFY 2019-20to MRPL.
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7.5

Sea Water Desalination Plant

To mitigate the risk of river water as a single source of water, an alternate source of water is being
provided with the installation of a sea water desalination plant. This plant of current capacity of
30MLD expandable to 70MLD will cater to the immediate and future water requirements of the
company. The Mechanical construction of the plant is nearing completion. OIDB assistance to the tune
of Rs. 142.25 Crore has been availed for the project.

SWDP Project MRPL

OIDB has sancticned approved loan assistance of Rs. 142.25 crore for this Project, out of which
Rs, 87 crore has been disbursed during FY 2019-20 and Rs.55.25 disbursed during FY 2020-21.

Indian Oil Corporation Limited (1OCL)

Indian Oil Corparation Limited (Indian Qil), a Maharatna PSU Company, is one of India’s largest
commercial enterprises and the country’s flagship integrated and diversified energy major with
presence in almast all the streams of oil, gas, petrochemicals and alternative energy sources.

Indian Oil is listed among the world’s largest corporates in Fortune’s prestigious ‘Global S00° listing,
ranked world's 212th largest public corporation, according to the Fortune Global 500 list published for
the year 2021. Indian Oil is also ranked among the top 10 strongest brands of India in 2019 by Brand
Finance, UK.

Indian Oil accounts for the largest market share of India's petroleumn products consumption.
Operating 11 of India’s 23 refineries with a combined refining capacity of 81.20 million metric tonnes
per year, Indian Oil accounts for over 32% share in the domestic refining capacity. Indian Qil's cross
country pipeline network of more than 15000 km accounts for put ~51% crude and product pipelines
capacity (by length) in the country, With more than 55,000 marketing and distribution touch points
across the country, Indian Oil dominates put ~42% market share of POL productsin the country.

OIDB has sanctioned a loan assistance of Rs.587 crore to Indian Oil Corporation Limited (IOCL) to
finance INDMAX Project at I0CUs Bongaigaon Refinery (BGR). OIDB has disbursed approved |oan
amount of Rs.587 crore to the company during FY 2019-20 (Rs.150 crore) and FY 2020-21 (Rs.437
crore) to partfinance the project. Brief details of the project is given below:
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INDMAX (Indane maximization) is Indian Oil's flagship technology, licensed worldwide by M/s
Lummus. The main objective of the projectswere:

Improve distillate yields of refinery by upgrading black oils.

Black oil production shall be NIL and reduction in RPC production shall be reduced by 70 TMTPA.

Increase LPG and MS production by 200 & 320 TMTPA respectively. The MS production meets BS VI
specification,

The project has two licensed process units:

Indmax FCC unit : to process low value components to produce higher value added products like
Gasolineand LPG

IGHDS unit : to remave sulphur from Indmax Gasoline.
The associated offsite facilities, including storage and utilities are also envisaged under the project.

In addition to refinery’s profitakility, the INDMAX project at Bongaigaon is & big step towards
Hydrocarbon Vision 2030, launched by MOP&NG for North-East India, which aims at doubling Qil &
Gas production by 2030 to establish the North East India as a dominant hydrocarbon hub at the
forefront ofthe country’s energy economy.

Till 31.03.2021, both the process units have been commissioned.

Indmax FCC unitwas commissioned on 7th Nov 2020
IGHDS unit was commissioned on 5th Dec 2020

The offsite utilities are under stage wise commissioning,
The total project progress is89.72%.

Expenditure of Rs.2165.72 crore has been incurred against project cost of Rs. 2382crore.

~ INDMAX Project 10CI
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7.6 GAILGasLlimited

GAILGas Limited, aleading City Gas Distribution Company, is poised to accelerate City Gas Distribution
husiness in focused manner in various cities across the nation. Company is a wholly owned subsidiary
of Maharatna GAIL (Indla) Limited and was incarporated in May 2008 for the smooth implementation
of City Gas Distribution {(CGD) projects. GAIL Gas Limited is a limited company under the Companies
Act, 1956.

Petroleum and Natural Gas Regulatory Board (PNGR8) has authorized GAIL Gas to implement CGD
Projects in Dewas, Raisen-Shajapur-Sehore District (Madhya Pradesh); Sonipat (Haryana); Meerut, Taj
Trapezium Zone, Mirzapur-Chandauli-Sonbhadra (Uttar Pradesh); Bengaluru Urban and Rural Districts
and Dakshin Kannada (Karnataka); Dehradun District (Uttarakhand); Puri-Ganjam-MNayagarh District &
sundergarh-Jharsuguda District (Odisha); Giridih-Dhanbad District, Seraikela-Kharsawan District and
West Singhbhum District (Jharkhand).

In addition, GAIL Gas is pursuing City Gas Business in Andhra Pradesh, Karnataka, Rajasthan, Vadodara
(Gujarat), Haridwar (Uttarakhand), North Goa and Assam through its Joint Ventures. |t is also
identifying various industrial clusters along the pipeline carrider for distribution of Natural Gas in
various states.

GAIL GAS Limited has been granted authorisation by PNGRB for laying, building, operating or
expanding CGD network in authorised area of Bengaluru rural and urban districts of Karnataka w.e.f
18.02.2021 for 25 years. The authorised area for laying, building, operating or expanding the cgd
network shall cover anarea of 4395 Sgkms.

QI|DB has disbursed the loan assistance of Rs.204.43 crore to M/s GAIL Gas Limited for their City Gas
Distribution Project during the FY. 2020-21.

The minimum work program as per regulations to be completed during first five years of exclusivity is
as below:

Inch Km Pipeline to he laid I No of Domestic PNG connections _

1582.20 131156 |

GAIL Gas limited has achieved its 5 year MWP w.rt Im:i1 KM and doemstic PNG connections within due date.
The yearwise achievement is as below:

Target (As per Yearl | Year2 | Year3  Yeard | Year5s Actual
' MWP of PNGRB) (15-16) | (16-17) | (17-18) (18-19) | (19-20) Achievement
e | lasonziean
[ Inch-m of pipeline to be laid 316 791 1266 1424 1583
(Cumulative) |

Actual achievement 387 | 1358 "2553.12‘ 33778 3816.06 4641.754
{inch Km) cumulative

PNG Domestic Cannections [Cumulative) D 19,673 85578 | 91,809 1,31,155|

Actual achievement |
(Domestic PNG connections) cumulative 1004 | 20595 50548 | 97,299 | 150702 2,15,299

| Five year MWRP has been already achtewd by GGL Bengaluru within due date.
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The Progress during FY 2020-21 and cumulative achievement as on 31,03.2021 s as below-

: Particulars Uov As on 31.03.2020 | Ason 31.03.2021 ‘ FY 2020-21

| P/L Network

| (MDPE +Steel) Inch Km 3816.06 4381.50 565.44

! CNG station " Nos l 19 33 | 14

| Industrial connections ;

‘ [ connected] Nos 9g 129 30 ;
Commercial connections iJ
[ connected] Nos 168 241 73 }
I || | L
Domestic Connectionsconnected] Nos 150701 195083 44332

— e

7.7 Brahmaputra Cracker and Polymer Limited (BCPL)

Assam Gas Cracker Project [AGCP), an offshoot of historic Assam Accord, has been implemented by
Brahmaputra Cracker and Polymer Limited (BCPL) at Lepetkata, district Dibrugarh, Assam. It consists j
of a cracker unit, downstream polymer units and integrated offsite and utilities plant. The complex
has 2 capacity of220,000 tons perannum (TPA) of Polyethylene and 60,000tons perannum (TPA) i
of Polypropylene along with other by-products with Natural gas and Naphtha as feed stocks. The
project is first of its kind Petrochemical Complex in North East India funded by capital subsidy from
Govt. of India, Equity by GAIL, OIL, NRL & Govt. of Assam and loan by OIDB and SBI.

OIDB has sanctioned a loari assistance of Rs.96.69 crore to Brahmaputra Cracker and Polymer Limited
(BCPL) for their Assam Gas Project during the FY. 2020-21. OIDB has disbursed full approved loan
amount of Rs.96.69 crore to BCPL approved for the FY 2020-21 to part finance the project. Brief
details of the project is given below:
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The plant was commissioned on 02.01.2016 and was dedicated to the nation by Hon’ble Prime
Minister of India Shri Narendra Modi on 05.02.2016 in a grand function at Lepetkata. The project was
implemented ata cost of Rs. 9,965 crore.

The plant has been operating at more than 100% capacity since more than 3 years. BCPL has constantly
endeavoured to overcome challenges related to feedstock supply affecting capacity utilization
through various alternative measures far procurement of Naphtha, Butene-1 and Propylene and has
been successful in ensuring stable and sustained operation of the plant.

After sustzining initial losses during stabilization period, BCPL has been making profits since
FY 2018-19. During the financial year 2020-21, BCPL has earned a net profit of Rs. 739.90 crore from
Revenue from Operation of Rs. 25902.63 crore. The new worth of the BCPL is Rs. 2811.26 crore as at
31,03.2021 sgainst paid-up equity of Rs. 1417.67 crore,

The project is the largest petrochemical complax in North East India and there has been substantial
increase in the consumption of palymer in NER due to BCPL. The plant potentially has a dominant
position In terms of geographical proximity to countries like Bangladesh, Nepal, Myanmar etc, and is
exporting polymers to Bangladesh for last couple of years. The plant employs 628 permanent
employees. Additicnally around 2600 manpower under coniract are working inside the
petrochemical complex. Further, huge number of jobs are created in the region for the vendors,
transporters, suppliers etc. Altogether, a robust ecosystem thrives arcund this sophisticated plant.
Moreover, downstream plastic processing units will involve significant additional income generation
in NER, BCPL has not only provided employment opportunities but also has contributed in skill
development of the local populace who have been working inside the plant.

Till 31.03.2021, OIDB has released loan of Rs. 185376 crore and isa major stakeholder of the project.
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Chapter- 03

Financial Assistance:
Grants to Regular

Grantee Organisations
R
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In pursuance of its mandate, OIDB has been providing assistance to oil sector by way of grants. These
include grants to five regular grantee institutions namely Directorate General of Hydrocarbans (DGHJ,
Petroleum Conservation Research Association (PCRA), Petroleum Planning and Analysis Cell (PPAC),
0il Industry Safety Directorate (O15D) and Centre for High Technology [CHT).

In addition to the grants toits regular grantee institutions, O|DB also provides grants for promotion of
R&D in the Qil and gas sector. Besides, to promate world class education; training and research
requirements of the petroleum & energy sector, OIDB had provided grant to Rajiv Gandhi |nstitute of
Petroleum Technology (RGIPT) for its projects at Sivasagar, Assam and Jaes, Rae Bareilly and 1T (Indian
School of Mines), Dhanbad for Foam Assisted Qil-Water Nanoemulsion for enhanced Qil Recavery :
Experimental and Malecular Dynamic Simulation Studies and Indian Oil Corporation Ltd.for their R&D
project titled "Ethanol Production Plant using refinery off gases at Panipat Refinery”,

Since its inception in 1974-75, OIDB has disbursed a cumulative grant of Rs.4610.77 crore till
31.3.2021. During 2020-21, a total grant of R5.407.38 crare was disbursed of which Rs.297.01 crore
was disbursed to the regular grantee institutions.

Details of the grants disbursed to regular grantee institutions during last five years are as under:

(Rs. in crore)

Institutions 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 | 2019-20  2020-21 Total

DGH 121.53 189.50 238.89 192.91 I?E.S; ‘_’I'l_[i_;’_?
PCRA | 41.25 | 43 88 60.95 | 67.30 | 60.00 | 273.38
PRAC = (5, _ZD.BZ I 21.34 23.96 | 22.61 | 22.04; 110.77
| Dl.S.D_ x 16.06 16.39 25.58 21.65 _ 22.88 | 102.;5-_j
| CHT | 19.82 | 32.12 20.58 | 18.08 | 15:25 | 105.85 |
ITntaI 219.48 303.23 | 370.46 | 322.55 | 29?.01: 1512.73 |

Directorate General of Hydrocarbons (DGH)

Directorate General of Hydrocarbons (DGH) was established under the, administrative control of
Ministry of Petroleum & Matural Gas by a Government Resolution in 1953, The objectives of DGH are
to promote sound management of the oil and natural pas resources having a balanced regard for
environment, technological and economic aspects of the petroleum activity, DGH has been entrusted
with certain additional responsibilities cancerning the production sharing contracts for discovered
fields and exploration blocks, promotion of investment and menitoring of E&P activities including
raview of reservoir performance of major fields. In addition, DGH is also engaged in opening up
new/unexplored area for future exploration and exploration & development of nen-conventional
hydrocarbon energy sources.

During the year 2020-21, a grant of Rs.176.84 crore was disbursed to DGH. Following major activities
have been carried cut by DGH during the year 2020-21;
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5.1.1 Hydrocarban Exploration and Licencing Policy / Open Acreage Licensing Programme (March
2016)

Government notified Hydrocarbon Exploration and Licensing Palicy (HELP) on 30th March 2016 and
formally put in operation w.e.f. 1st July, 2017 with natification of Open Acreage Licensing Programme
(OALP) 2nd operationalisation of National Data Repository (NDR).

HELF is a paradigm shift from Production Sharing Contract {PSC) regime to Revenue Sharing Contract
(RSC) regime which completely overhauls the regulatory regime for the future Exploration and
Production (E&P) actlvities by reducing the regulatory burden based an the principle of ‘Ease of doing
business’, It provides for single License for exploration and production of conventional as well as
nonconventional Hydrocarbon resources, pricing and marketing freedom, reduced rate of royalty for
offshore blocks etc.

Open Acreage Licensing Programme (OALP) means potential investors/companies can carve out
exploration acreages of their choice and submit Expressions of Interest round the year. In five rounds
of bid under OALP, 110 blocks were on offer and 105 exploration blocks covering an area of 1,56,580
sg. Km. were awarded to successful bidders, 205 bids were received for remaining 105 blocks that are
spread over 16 Sedimentary Basins.

Summary of Blocks awarded under OALP bid rounds till 31-Mar-2021 isas u nder:

| ROUND OFFERED AWARDED OPERATIONAL AreainSKM |
| OALP Round- i NG 55 50,282 |
'.D_ALI-:' Raund-Il _ i4 e idl 14 . 249,233 )
| OALP Round-ill 23 18 18 29,765
OALP Round-1V = 7 7 | s
| OALP Round-V 11 o ‘ 11 19,790 |
oheTmE | e | am 105 |  1,56,580

5.1.2 IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW EXPLORATION LICENSING POLICY (NELP)

Till date, nine rounds of NELP have been concluded and 254 blocks were awarded for exploration and
oroduction. Out of 254 blocks, at present 43 blocks are aperational, PEL (Petroleum Exploration
License) is awaited in 2 exploration blocks, 209 blocks have either been relinquished or proposed for
relinquishment,

During 2020-21, Total 4 (one oil and three gas discoveries) have been notified in NELP Blocks. A sneak
preview of status of discoveries notified under NELP Blockssofarisasunder:

Status of Discovery il | Gas! Total ‘
Discwerie_s which have been put on Pro-:iuctiun ] 32 _ 13“_ 45

Discoveries which are under Davelopment DT-O;- way to production 12 | 21 _33_
Commerciality established (DoC Reviewed) 2 |§ | 16_-
Discoveries in Early Stage, DoC to be suhgfted . 4 1 12 | 16 _
Discguerfr-_'s not pursued by Dp_eratnr,frelinquis_hed}'propﬂée-d for relinqui.;hment' 1?'_ a9 Et’i—

Total 67 1109/ 176 |
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Government of India signed 28 contracts for discovered flelds, 33 CBM blocks, 28 exploration blocks
under pre-NELP regime and 254 blocks under MELP regime, DGH monitors the execution of
management of these Production Sharing Contracts on behalf of GOI through Management
Committees set up foreach block / field, This involves in depth review of annual work programme,
project monitoring, evaluation of reserves and production profile, review and approval of
development plan, Annual Work Programme and budget.

Production performance fram flelds/blocks under PSC regime, during 2020-21 is asunder:

! Regime D]I + Cnndensate {in MMT} Gas in BCM
| Pre- NELP Discovered Fields | 0.82 0404
| NELP Explaoration Blocks | 0.23 | I 0.942
| Pre-MELP Exploration Blocks | I E?.E 2.33
| CBM Blocks 0.00 0.642
Total : 7.37 x . 4.32 R

GEO-S5CIENTIFIC DATA ACQUISITION
AL Policy for Geo-scientific data generation for hydrocarbonsin Indian Sedimentary Basins:

Seismic survey is an expensive process — particularly in offshore areas. Non-exclusive multi-client
geo-scientific surveys facilitate unigque business propoesition which allow appraisal of the area
without any funding on the part of Government. Under multi-client geo scientific data acquisition
policy,310.5 LKM of CS5EM data has been acquired and processed in West Coast-Kutch, Saurashtra &
MumbaiBasin.

B. National Seismic Programme (2D Seismic Survey in Onland to be Appraised Areas of
Sedimentary Basins of India)

Government formulated National Seismic Programme (NSP) in October 2016 to appraise the un-
appraised areas in all sedimentary basins of India where no/scanty data was available. Under the
programme, Government approved the proposal for conducting 2D seismic survey for data
Acquisition, Processing, and Interpretation (API) of 48,243 Line Kilo Metres (LKM). The estimated
cost of the project is Rs.2,932.29 crores and it is expected to be completed by 2021-22, As on
31.03.2021, surface coverage of 46003.55 LKM (95.26%) cut of 48,243 LKM has been achieved
under2D Seismic data acquisition under National Seismic Programme.

National Data Repository (NDR):

Quality geoscientific data is a critical input for success in upstream oil and gas exploration and
preduction activities, it plays an important role in identifying the techno-commerciality of a field
development project, Considering the importance of providing access to quality data, National Data
Repaository has been established in DGH office in Noida with Secondary Data Centre (SDC) in
Bhubaneshwar.
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Current Status- As on 01.04.2021, there are 281 registered companies and 875 registered users. The
quantum of data availablein NDR is given below: —

. 2D Seismic Data: 2.603 Mn. LKM

. 3D Seismic Data: 0.879 Mn. SKM

. Seismic Reports: 15,528 nos.

. welllogdata: 19,317 nos.

- Well Reports: 40,245 nos.

NATIONAL GAS HYDRATE PROGRAMME (NGHP)

National Gas Hydrate Programme in the country is steered by the Ministry of Petroleumn and Natural
Gas and technically coardinated by Directorate General of Hydrocarbons (DGH). Two expeditions 01
& 02 have been completed under NGHP. Under Expedition-01 carried outin 2005, 39 holes at 21 sites
were drilled and established physical presence of Gas Hydrates in Krishna Godavari, Mahznadiand
Andaman but were non exploitable with available technologies. Expedition-02 was conducted in
2015 drilled 42 holes in 25 sites. Two distinct Gas hydrate bearing sand reservoir areas B & Cwere
identified in KG basin and Area A sand-rich reservoir systems having limited formation of
concentrated gas hydrate accumulations. Area-F drilled wells indicated the presence of gas hydrate,
with a combination of fracture/displacement and pore-filling type gas hydrate.

NGHP Expedition-02 results are encouraging and further extensive studies are planned to assess the
gas hydrate resource potential, reservoir characterization, reservolr delineation and geo-
mechanical modelling far seafloor and wellbore stability and identification of sites for pilot
production for testing. KG deep offshore Area B' & C' contain gas hydrate accumulations may be
suitable sites for gas hydrate production testing under NGHF Expedition-03.

Technology for production of gas from gas hydrateis notyet matured andis at R & Dstage world aver.
The planning and execution of NGHP Expedition-03 to test the tachnology and assess the
commerciality of Gas Hydrates exploitation in Indian offshore, Based on collation and interpretation
of data acquired from NGHP-02, five sites have been found suitable for acquiring additional data
those can be suitable for pilot production testing. A tentative action plan is firmed up and with help
of NGHP member organisations based on the Advisory committee recommendations.

NGHP member organizations are working on projects for the development of feasible Production
technology. The various jobs are being carried out by member organisation will envisage the
notential rescurce and firm up strategy for the execution of Gas Hydrate pilot production testing in
Indian offshore. Action plan will be implemented after approval the area/fsites of interest and
development of production technology for pilot production tests.

COAL BED METHANE (CBM):

The cumulative CBM production from CBM blocks up to FY 2020-21 is 4.4 BCM from 5 CBM blacks
including test production from Jharia CBM block, The average gas production rate in the FY 2020-21
was 1.76 MMSCMD,

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21




51.8

At present, 8 CBM Blocks are active, 4 of which are in the production phase and 4 in the development
phase. The first commercial preduction from the CBM blacks commenced in the year 2007 from
Raniganj (South) block). Raniganj (East) Block started its commercial production from luly 2015,
Sohagpur (West) started producing from March 2017 and Bokaro from August 2019. In addition to
thisincidental CBM gasis being produced during testing of CBM wells in Jharia block’

To ramp up CBM production in the country, a CBM policy dated 11.04.2017 has been notified for
early monetization of CBM. The policy pravides marketing and pricing freedom to the CBM
contractors to promote an increase in CBM production in the country. The basic intent of the policy
has been to promote "Ease of doing husiness” and "Maximum Governance and Minimum
Government” so that water-tight contract provisions are relaxed to give impetus to further
investment in F&P of CBM thereby contributing to the Energy Security of India.

Discovered Small Field Bid Round

Discovered Small field policy was brought out for monetizing the un-monetized [relinguished
discoveries of Nomination and PSC regimes. The DSF policy is aligned to Hydrocarbon Exploration
and Licensing Policy {HELP), which adopts the Revenue Sharing Model which is a step towards
improving the Ease of Doing Business in Indian E&P sector. [t comes forth with attractive fiscal terms
like reduced royalty rates and no cass, single license for all hydrocarbons, pricing and marketing
freedom, expleration throughout the contract period, no historical cost and provision for sharing of
commoan facilities.

The policy was notified vide resolution dated 14th October 2015, The policy was subsaguently
renamed as Discovered Small Field (DSF) Policy. Government extend the DSF policy for future DSF
Rounds vide gazette notification dated 05.04.18. Under the Discovered Small Field Policy following
initiates has been taken:

DSF Bid Round-1{2016)
’ DSF Bid Round-l was launched on 25th May 2016.

. 30 Contract Areas (23 On land and 07 Shallow Offshare) comprising of 43 discoveries were
awarded and the Revenue Sharing Contracts weresigned on 27th March 2017,

DS5F Bid Round-11{2018)
. DSF Bid Round-llwas launched en 9th Aug2018.

L 24 Contract Areas (150nland and 09 Shallow Offshore) comprising of 58 discoveries were
awarded and the Revenue Sharing Contracts weresigned.

Contractareasawarded under DSF Policy

Bid Round Year of Launch . No. of Contract Arggg,[ﬁﬂd_s =1, Area

P Offered Awarded (inSq.Km) |
DSF-'_ 2016 46 (67 Fields) 30 (43 Fields) 776.8 F
DSE-1| = 2018 25 (59 Fields) 24 (58 Fields) 3_0_04'2_
Total ;1 (1}.‘:6 Fields) | E_ﬂ-{_lﬂl Firzlds}_ 3780.2 o
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5.1.9 ESSENTILITY CERTIFICATES

During the year 2020-21, DGH issued a total 14560 Nos. of Essentiality Certificates having CIF value
of Rs.37,070.72crores.

5.1.10 Policy Framework to Promote and Incentivize Enhanced Recovery Methaods for Oiland Gas

 Status | Regir.n.e ' CUmulaﬁua (in NM_]
No. of Fields Covered Under the Scheme | ONGC Nomination 147 e
OIL Nemination . 13 o
PSC/RSC Y| )
Total ¥ | 216
| MNo. of Proposals received for Screening | ONGC Nomina:c'mn | j:l e
| _(SIL Numinatiﬁn_ o = &} 4
"_PSC;'RSC | 9 ~
| Total il a9y o " Ll
| No. of Proposals agreed | ONGC Nomination 11 i
O\L Nomiration | 2
| PSC/RSC | 1
Total - _;‘l
| r;l; of fields under pilot study . OMNGC Nominatien | 1 7l
OIL Nomination B o o0 [
PSC/RSC - oI
‘ Total 1 S
No. of Fields under Commercial ONGC Nomination_ o i
Application ‘ OIL Nomination ﬂ_—
PSC/RSC _ B 0 :
Total ‘ 7 5

The Government has spproved the Policy framework to promoie and encourage adoption of
Enhanced Recovery (ER)/Improved Recovery (IR)/Unconventional Hydrocarbon (UHC) production
Methads/technigues through fiscal incentives and an enabling ecosystem to improve productivity of
existing fields and enhance overall recovery of hydrocarbons. The Policy provides for systemic
assessment of every field for its ER potential, appraisal of appropriate ER techniques and fiscal
incentives and mandatery screening of all eligible fields through designated institutions conducting
Pilot befare actual implementation of ER Project on commercial level, to de-risk the cost involved in
ER Projectsand to make it economically viable.

The Policy is expected to facilitate induction of new, innovative, and cutting-edge technolegy and
forging technological collaboration to improve ultimate recavery of existing fields.

Currentimplementation Status of the above policy (as on 31 Mar 2021) is tabulated below:
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5.1.11 Implementation of Single Window Clearance system

As part of the notification dated 28.02.2019 on ‘Reforms in E&P Sector, Directorate General of
Hydrocarbons (DGH) of behalf of MOP&NG has launched a portal that connects upstream
companies to different arms of the government and allows electronic filing/online submission of
applications to obtain various clearances / approvals / Certificates like PEL/ PML, Vessel| Clearance,
Expat Clearance, PSC Contract Management Pracesses, Essentiality Certificates etc. In addition, DGH
portal also provide an online submission of applications through MoEF&CC portal and viewing status
of application. Primary purpose of Single Window Clearance System is to provide a single point o
potential investors for accessing all relevant information about clearances/approvals required to
start business operations in any sector. It will be a one stop platform for capturing all relevant
information and documents for multiple clearances into one single unified Information database
through single time upload.

The status of various processes made operational by DGH through Single window clearance system
areas under:-

Status Electronic Single Window and monitoring of contracts Status

'SI.No | Module | Current Status
1 Contract Management: The online PSC Workflow Management system with 4?
PSC ManagementSystem PSC processes requests for approval to clear proposals and
manage contracts had gone live from October 2019,
2 Contract Management: A transition phase feature-allowing operator to submit
Simplification of Procedures documents either via self-certification or wvia narmal
submission has gone live from 29/08/2020.
All Category A, B & C processes simplified to 20 have been
deployed.
| Flow changes for 4 processes have been received & have
deployed.
| Factsheet module has been deployedforinitial data entry.
‘ Further rationalization of PSC processes is in progress
3 Contract Managem;t: | The software development simplified to 31 processes for
CBM contracts. CBM contracts and testing completed. All 31 processes
have been deployed and gone live.
| Contract Management: Draft templates for QALP received, Preparing resources for
RSC Management System development |
G - Clearan:e_ﬁ_ﬁgmovals : _ | Online submission of digitally signed EC issuance gone live
EC Monitoring system fram 28/02/2019Integration with Customs for online

issuance of ECs for Imported items gone live from |

28/02/2019Integration with GSTN for issuance of EC for

Indigenous Purchase items gone live 31/01/2020,EC

against multiple bocks across multiple regimes had gone

live from 17/8/2020.AP| integration of ECMS system with ‘

ICE GATE portal of customs department has gone live from
| 28/09/2020. i
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. Clearance & Approvals : ‘ Gone Live since October2019. Total Applications
Online PEL / PML received: 82 (PEL-27, PML-55] / [Offshore - 21,
| Application system Onshore- 61). Ten states have registered in the system.

(L.e. Assam, Tripura, Arunachal Pradesh, Chhattisgarh,
Orissa, Himachal Pradesh, Rajasthan, Gujarat, Madhya
Pradesh, West Bengal).

| Clearance & Approvals : The online processing of vessel clearance applications was
Vessel Clearance Management facilitated among Operator, DGH and MoD through an
System (VCMS): online portal developed by DGH which was aperational

since March 2018.

In June 2020, MoD launched its own peortal for issuance of |
NOC for RSEE(Research Survey Exploration & Exploitation)
activities. DGH has requested MoD to map DGH internal
workflow in this new MoD online NOC clearance portal for
end-to-end online processing of applications within DGH.

Site Restoration Fund Portal has been hosted an the internet after successful

Management portal completion of security audit by independent 3rd
partyUser IDs for both Operators and DGH users have
been created in the portal.

Issuance of formal intimation letter from DGH to operators
to operationalize the portal, by the user group, is awaited

| ER application portal The revised design for submission & subsequent workflow

of submission of ER screening report has been developed.

| Revenue Management Upgrade of RMS Application based on received functional
System (RMS) requirement specifications has been completed & tested

on Staging. AP integration RMS with Bharatkosh has gone
live from 01.04.2021

Petroleum Conservation Research Association (PCRA)

Petroleum Conservation Research Association (PCRA) isaregistered society set up under the aegis of
Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas, Government of India. It is a national government agency
engaged in promotion of energy efficiency invarious sectors of economy. It helps the government in
proposing policies and strategies for petroleum conservation, aimed at reducing excessive
dependence of the country on oil requirement. PCRA sponsors R&D activities for the development of
fuel-efficient equipment/devices. It disseminates the message of fuel conservation through various
field activities. Toattain its goal it also extensively uses social media platforms like Facebook, Twitter,
Instagram, YouTube. In addition, Print, Electronic Media and MyGov platform are also used to
influence masses. Tips on Fuel savings and Fuel efficiency and update on PCRA’s conservation
activities are posted regularly on various social media platforms of PCRA. Various contests anc
campaigns are organized time to time to engage the masses. A number of films, TV spots and radia
lingles developed by PCRA in various languages are used to promote oil conservation,

During 2020-21, an amount of Rs. 60 crore was released by OIDB to PCRA for performing its activities

clu T
:m:::;mg administrative expenditure. A glimpse of activities carried out during the year are given
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Sectoral Activities

Fiald activities are ane of the core areas of PCRA operations, Various activities pertaining to energy
conservation and energy efficiency are specifically designed to cover a large spectrum of socio-
economic profile of our country in different sectors viz. Industry, Transport, Domestic & Agriculture.

Industrial Sector

PCRA activities in this sector focus on improvement in fuel efficiency through upgradation of
technologies and reducing wastages in large, medium and small-scale industries. Besides this,
awareness and competency building exercises are also taken up through Seminars, Workshops and
Training programmes for the Industry Personnel. Activities in this sector consists of

v Energy Audit

o Energy Audits of various Industries (categorized as |) with Annual energy consumption of
<=100TOEand ii)>100 TOE)

o Compliance Audit for all Energy Audits of Industries conducted in the previous Year.
o StudiesinSmall Scale Industries
v PAT Audit

o PCRA conducts Mandatory Energy Audit (MEA) and Monitoring & Verification Audit
(M&V) under PAT (Perform Achieve Trade) programme. It has received an order for
carrying out of MEA of 15 Nos of PSU Refineries under PAT cycle VI. It will be completed
within December 2021, PCRA has identified 1,01,238 TOE Energy Savings through PAT
Auditin2020-21.

v Consultancy for1S0 50001- 2018
v Training and Warkshops programme

o Industrial Units
o Institutions (e.g. Polytechnics, Technical Colleges and Industry bodies etc.).

o Participationin Seminar/ Technical Lectures/ Consumer Meet.
Transport Sector

PCRA conducts a variety of programmes for State Transport Undertakings (STUs), Private fleet
operators, organizations in the private and public sector to promote efficient use of petrol, diesel,
lubricants and greases through better maintenance practices, better driving habits, emission
awareness programmes, exhibitions, workshops etc. all over the country. Its activities comprise -

Driver Training Programme (DTP) for STUs (State Transport Undertaking) and others - The main
objective of the Driver Training Programme is to train the drivers on good driving habits &
maintenance practices in erder to promote and propagate fuel efficiency in the Transpart Sector.
Under DTP, drivers from STUs, Army, Air Force, Para Military Farces, Oil Companies & Private Fleet
Operators are imparted training to improve their driving skills.
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Transport Workshop - Half-day transport workshops are conducted to bridge the considerable
information gap amongst drivers and mechanics regarding proper operational and maintenance
practices for achieving optimum fuel consumption.

NBUSTRY

(i)  Fuel Efficiency Improvement Programme (FEIP) - Fuel Efficiency Improvement programme is a
unigue [nitiative undertaken by PCRA to improve fuel efficiency of Bus depots by training the low
performing drivers together with maintenance of low performing buses and menitoring of their
performance. Low performing drivers are trained as per the prescribed training module and then
they are subjected to 2 weekly follow-up training module,

Low performing buses are subjected to Tier | maintenance protocol; after which performance of
buses are reviewed in 15 days. In case of less than 3% improvement in their KMPL, they are further
subjected to Tier-ll maintenance protocol and their performance is reviewed again after 15 days.For
every depot, the above exercises are repeated for different sets of buses & drivers in three rounds
{Tier-1,11,111) covering about 30% low performing drivers & 30% low performing buses,

{iv) STU Awards scheme - The objective of the Award scheme was to encourage & motivate STUs drivers,
maintenance staff & other depot personnel for Fuel savings by recognizing the Best Depot/Depotsin
each STU at State level & Best STU at National level by way of awarding an Annual trophy & Cash
Award. Six awards were presented to Best STUs and Sixty six awards to Best Depots during Saksham
2021,

(v) During the FY 2020-21, PCRA organized three MoRTH sponsored training programme cum workshop
at Bhubaneswar, Mohali and Chennai to deliberate on various aspects Fuel Efficiency in transpart

sector.

'ﬁ‘ Workshop-Cum-Training Programme w—

¢ “Fuel Efficiency in Transport Sector & Vehicular Pellution” D m
S 27.01.2021 - Bhubaneswar —_

5.2.4 Agriculture Sector

PCRA’s efforts in agriculture sector focuses on reaching to the farming community for creating
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awareness on the importance and methods of eil conservation in the farming equipment. To create
awareness in the farming sector, PCRA reaches out to the vast farming community through the
various means e.g.

Agriculture Workshops
Partic/pationin Agro Fairs/Exhibitions, Kisan Melas

Association with Agriculture Universities and Kisan Vikas Kendras for the dissemination of fuel
conservation measures to farmers. In this regard, during 2020-21, PCRA has signed MoU with 3
Agricultural Universities

Awareness Campaign: Under this, PCRA conducted activities e g.

Domestic Workshop - Housewives were educated on Fuel Efficient cooking habits, cast benefits in
using ISl marked products & star rated LPG stovesVarious Energy Conservation tips on household
applianceswerealsoimparted

AwarenessCampaign for Studeants and Youth
Participationin Exhibitions

Media Campaign — During Saksham-2021, Mega Media campaigns were successfully run on national
and regional channels of Doordarshan Network, All India Radio, Lok Sabha TV, Pvt. FM and
TVchannels across the country educating people about the need for fuel conservation and fuel
efficiency. During pre-buzz campaign of Sakham-2021, the Appeal of Hon'ble Minister of P&NG was
sired on Pvt, FM Radio channels across the country.

Besides the mega campaign, many activities to engage masses were carried out on social media
platforms. Sorne of them are Online Contests, Daily theme based topics / creatives, live coverage of
several events like Saksham Day, Swachhata Pakhwada etc. In addition to above, 24 Twitter trending
activities were done in FY 2020-21, gathering a large number of impressions. 17 social media
campalgns were carried out to spread the message of fuel conservation and environment
protection.

Distribution of Literature- 10.05 lakh copies of PCRA literature were printed and distributed to more
than 130 locations and 822 Krishi Vikas Kendras across country.

SAKSHAM

In order to provide sustained impetus to its fuel conservation endeavours, PCRA in association with
PSU Oil & Gas Companies organizes “Saksham”, a nationwide people centric mass fuel conservation
awareness campaign, from 16th lanuary to 15th February every year. Tagline af this year’s event was
“Greenand Clean Energy /8RT Td W=s al *,

Underthe month-long Saksham-2021 programme, many activities were conducted by oil companies
and state level conveners of oil companies, in which people from different segments stich as school
children, youths, LPG users, drivers of light, medium & heavy commercial vehicles, fleet operators,
industrial employees/workers, farmers, residential societies, NGOs, groups/societies/clubs etc. taak
part.5ome oftha main events held under SAKSHAM are as follows:
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Inauguration and Valedictory function on 16" Jan and 15" February respectively at State Capitals,
offices/locations/units etc, of il CPSEs

Saksham Cycle Day in 280 cities throughout the country on 31" January 2021 and E-Cycle Rally at
New Delhl and Mumbaion 6"and 11" February 2021 respectively

CNG Car Rally on 7" February, 2021 in various cities e.g. Mumbai, Pune, Bengaluru, Patna, Cuttack
andothers.

Debate Competition/Group Talk/Graffiti/Wall Painting Competition on Fuel Conservation in
Schools/Colleges.

Waorkshap in Engineering Colleges/ Technical Meet in Industrial Sectors on Fuel Conservation.
Group Talk at RWAs/Housing Sccieties/Colonies.

Cycle Rally/Cnline pledge/Quiz/Essay competition/ Fuel Efficient Cooking Competitions for women
in residential societies for Clubs/Societies/NGOs/Groups etc.

Fuel Efficient Driving Contest for Cars and Trucks.

Publication of message of Minister, P&NG/Chief Minister/Governor in Newspapers & Magazines,
Address by Governor/Chief Minister/Ministers on TV & Radio, Talk Show in TV /Radin, Article Writing
Competition for Newspaper agencies, Extensive Social Media Campaigns, Jingles/Spots on TV, Radio
& Cinema Halls,

Press conference / press release.

LPG Panchayats and training of LPG delivery boys on LPG saving tips and Health Camps at all LPG
Distributorships.

Group Talk at Retail Outlets & CNG 5tations,
Agriculture workshops for farmaers.
Waorkshops/Group Talks for 5TUs/ Fleet Operatars (Organized/Unorganized Sector).

Various events at Units and Establishments of Oil CPSEs. These include Group talk involving
employees and Distributors and other stakeholders, Emission Check of all petroleum consuming
Equipment and Vehicles, Cycle Rally, quiz competitions, Message on Hoardings/Digital Displays etc.

= o O 5. : K
E-Cyclothon being held at New Delhi during Shri Ram Kripal Yadav, Hon'ble MP participating in
SAKSHAM event Saksham Cyclothon held at Patna on 31st Jan 2021
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5.2.7 National Level Competition-2020for Schoal Children

Children arethe future of India and the harbinger of change, National Competition on Essay, Painting
and Quiz are held every year to inculcate the spirit of energy conservation and energy efficiency
among impressionable young minds. National Level Essay, Painting & Quiz Competitions for 2020
have been held in completely online mode, because of prevailing pandemic. Approximately 3.36
Lakh students from class 7 to 10 participated in the competition. Winners of Essay, Painting
competitions at State Level and National Level Quiz have been declared. National Level
Competitions for Essay, Painting will be held soon.

1. RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT: Two project proposals were completed in FY 2020-21.

Title of R&D Project: Research Organization:

BPCL Corporate R&D Centre, Greater Noida.

Improving thermal efficiency of LPG
domestic cooking stoves.

- Development of methodology for traffic circulation C5IR-CRRI, New Delhi
plans around Metro stations and their impact
guantification using Microscopic Simulation.

= LPG Stove Burners developed by BPCL R&D centre (BPCL RAMAN-1 and BPCL RAMAN-2) as a PCRA
sponsored R&D project has a thermal efficiency of around 74% (whereas average efficiency of
availzble burners is around 68%) and crores of Rupees will be saved over the years due to this low
costinnovation.

5.2.8 Five new project proposals were approved in the 85" SCM (Screening Committee Meeting) held on

08.12.2020,
R&D Project Title Institution/ = Total Project PCRA Contribution
' Organization Cost (Rs. Lakhs)  [Rs. Lakhs)
Design and development of a micro turbine T Jodhpur & 87.38 2498
combustor working on biogas [IP Dehradun
Design and Development of Inline Bio-methane CSIR-CMERI 24.79 19.96
Enrichment and CO2 Separation System -CoEFM,
[ Ludhiana
Interventions to Improve Performance of IIT Delhi 24.93 2493
Combustion Systems in MSMEs
Perfermance evaluztion of a bio gas Integrated RGIPT, Amethi 25.00 25.00
Sami-Transparent Photovoltaic Thermal [SPVT)
collectors (Bi-SPVT)
Development of Encapsulated Asphalt-rubber .
| Pavement (EARPAVE) Product for Road applications | IIT Tirupati 42.54 42.54
5.2.9 Othernotable achievements in R&D sector are-
a. Domestic PNG Stove of higher thermal efficiency has been developed by 11P-Dehradun in

collabaration with PCRA. The average thermal efficiency of the developed PNG burner, when
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tasted in laboratory, is in the range of 52% to 56% as against 40% for an LPG stove used for
PNG service. PCRA has entered into an MOU with EESL on 16.01.2021 to distribute 10 Lakh
Pieces of PNG Stove among PNG customers pan India. The initial tender of procuring 10,000
PNG stoves has been floated.

b. PCRA had approached LERC to design a Retrofit kit for enhancing the efficiency of existing
domestic LPG stoves. Retrofit kit with fuel efficiency of around 75%has been designed by
LERC. M/s Super LPG Appliances has developed the prototype and it has been tested and
approved by LERC.

5.2.10 Policy Initiatives

a. Standards and Labelling (S&L) Programme is one of the key areas of PCRA. The main objective
of S&Listo provide customer with an informed choice about the energy saving and thereby
the costsaving potential of the marketed product.

b. Development of Fuel Efficiency (FE) Norms.
Initiatives under S&Land FE Norms are as follows:

I. The transport sector is the major consumer of diesel and accounts for mare than 70% of total
diesel sales in India. Mandating Fuel Economy norms for Heavy Duty, Light & Medium
Commercial Vehicles will help a lot in saving diesel consumed in this sector.

FE Norms for HDV

MOoPNG constituted a steering committee to develop FE norms for HDV. PCRA was the member
secretary of the steering committee. Ministry of Power (MoP) notified Fuel Economy Norms for BSIV
Heavy Duty Vehicles (HDVs) on 16.08.2017 which was further revised on 16.08.2018. The Ministry of
Power issued the amended notification vide S.0. 3215(E) on 21.09.2020 with date of
implementation of Phase-1 norms fram 1stlanuary 2021,

FE Norms for L&MCY

MoPNG constituted a Steering Committee on 27.11.2017, under the chairmanship of loint Secretary
(R) to develop FE Norms for Light & Medium Commercial vehicles (L&MCVs) having Gross Weight
(GW)ef3.5 Tonnes to 12 Tonnes, PCRA was the member secretary of the steering committee.

Ministry of Power (MoP) notified the Fuel Economy Norms for Light & Medium Commercial vehicles
(LE&MCVs) on16.07.2015.

Development of Correction Factor for BS-Vcompliant vehicles:

I Above-mentioned Notifications dated 16.07.2019 (for L&MCV) and 21.09.2020 (for HDV) are
for BS-IV emission narms. B5-VI emission norms were to be derived by applying 2 correction
factor on BS-IV emission norms. Accordingly, MoPNG constituted a technical commitiee
headed by ED-PCRA to derive the correction factor for BS-VI compliant HDV and L&MCV.
MoPNG has forwarded the technical committee report on Correction Factors to BEE for
issuing of amended notification.

Il Tyres, as a component, have been identified to have a huge potential for improving fuel
efficiency of vehicles. A Technical Committee under the chairmanship of ED PCRA was
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formed for development of S&L of Tyres in India, The Technical Committee had submitted
their report on 06.08.2019. The Ministry of Power has approved the proposal on 19" March
2021, BEE is inthe process for launch of Voluntary phase of S&Loftyres.

MoPNG constituted a Steering Committee under the chairmanship of loint Secretary (R) in
March 2018 to develop and monitor fuel economy norms for tractors. PCRA was the
member secretary of the steering committee. The Steering Committee has approved the
bandwidth and draft schedule for implementation of voluntary phase of tractors labelling,
BEE has tofinalize the FE Norms for Tractors.

Development of Vecto Type Simulation Toal ta measure fuel consumption of Light, Medium
and Heavy Commercial Vehicles - Financial approval by BEE is in progress.

SEL Programme for Domestic LPG Stove: With the efforts of PCRA, BISStandard IS 4264 2002
for "Domestic Gas Stove for use with Liquefied Petreleum Gases - specifications” has been
mandated for all the domestic LPG stoves manufactured, imported orsold in India with effect
from 01.06.2020, With this, every LPG stove model neads to have a minimum thermal
efficiency of 6B %.

These activities and measures pertaining to fuel efficiency and fuel conservation have been
making positive contributions towards the Government's ambitious programme on
reduction of 10%of import of crude oil by the year2021-22,

Petroleum Planning & Analysis Cell (PPAC)

Subseguent to the dismantling of the Administered Pricing Mechanism (APM) in the Petroleum
Sector with effect from 1st April, 2002, the Oil Coordination Cammittee was abolished and
Petroleum Planning & Analysis Cell (PPAC) was created effective 1st April, 2002 as an attached office
of the Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas, tocarry out the following activities :

d.

d.

B

Administration of subsidy on PDS Kerosene and domestic LPG and freight subsidy for far-
flung areas.

Maintenance of information data bank and communication system to deal with emergencies
and unfareseen situations.

Analysingthe trends in theinternational oil market and domestic prices.
Forecasting and evaluation of petroleumimport and export trends.

Operationalizing the sector specific surcharge schemes, ifany.

Headed by Director General, PPAC has a sanctioned strength of 43 officers and staff, organized under
Finance, Supply, Demand. Information Technology, Marketing, Gas and HR & Co-ordination
Divisions. The officers and staff are drawn on deputation from Oil & Gas P5Us. The Director General
Is on deputation from the Central Government, under the Central Staffing Scheme.

During the year 2020-21, an amount of Rs.22.04 crare was dishursed to PPAC as grant by CIDB. The
following major activities were carried out by PPACduring the year:
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Settlement of subsidy claims of Qil Companies

Effective 1st January 2015, the PAHAL (DBTL) scheme, 2014 has been implemented in the entire
country wherein the subsidy on Domestic LPG is being transferred to the eligible consumers directly
to their bank accounts. Under the PAHAL scheme claims amounting te Rs 3,658 crore (including
project management expenses) were received and reviewed for the year 2020-21.

Pradhan Mantri Ujjwala Yojana (PMUY) was launched by Hon’ble Prime Minister Shri Narendra Modi
on 1st May, 2016. Under the scheme, 5 Crore LPG connections were to be provided to women
belonging to BPL households. The scheme was extended to cover 8 crore BPL households over a
period of 4 years (till 2019-20). The target of & crore connections was achieved well in advance in
September 2019. Under the scheme, Government of India reimbursed Rs.1600 & Rs.1150 per
connection for 14.2 kg cylinder and 5 kg cylinder respectively, to Oil companies for Issuance of
sacurity deposit free connection to poor household women beneficiaries. PPAC has processed total
claims amounting to Rs.12,750 crore {including project management expenses) up to FY 2020-21
towards PMUY, since inception of the scheme.

Settlement of claims under Pradhan Mantri Garib Kalyan Package

To help the poor to fight the battle against corona virus, the Government decided to provide gas
cylinders free of cost to the beneficiaries under PMUY for a period of 3 months under “Pradhan
Mantri Garib Kalyan Package” (PMGKP). These cylinders were initially supplied for the period April-
June 2020.

This scheme was further extended for 3 months w.e.f. 1* July 2020, for those beneficiaries who had
been credited with the advance for buying first/ second cylinder but were not able to buy the free
cylinders till 30th June 2020.

This scheme was further extended for another 3 months, i.e. till 31st December 2020, for those
beneficiaries who were given the advance but had not been able to avail the benefit of the scheme
till 30th Septamber 2020.

PPAC has processed total claims amounting to Rs, 8162 crore for FY 2020-21 under PMGKP.
Settlement of NE Gas Subsidy claims

MOP&NG has formulated the “Natural Gas Subsidy Scheme” for administering subsidy related to
sale of natural gas to identified sector / customers in the North East region of India. The participating
companies sell natural gas from the nominated gas fields to the consumers at subsidised rates and
differential amount is claimed from the Government of India. For the year 2020-21, PPAC has
received and reviewed claims amounting toRs. 336 crore.

Domestic Natural Gas Price Notification

Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas authorized Director General, PPAC to notify the periodic
revision of domestic natural gas price underthe guidelinesissued by Ministry of Petroleum & Natural
Gas on 25th October 2014. Accordingly, domestic natural gas price was notified by PPAC for the
period April 2020 to September 2020 and October 2020 ta March 2021.

Gas Price Ceiling Notification

Ministry of Petroleurn & Natural Gas allowed marketing freedom including pricing freedom subject
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ta the ceiling price on the basis of landed price of alternate fuels for the gas produced from
discoveries In Deep-water, Ultra deep water and High pressure-High Temperature areas vide
notification dated 21st March 2016. Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas authorized Director
General, PPAC to notify the periodic revision of gas price ceiling under the said notification.
Accordingly, gas price ceiling was notified by PPAC for the period April 2020 to September 2020 and
October 2020 to March 2021.

Study & Analysis of difference between sum of production & imports data and sum of
consumption & exports data

A detailed working on the above subject was carried out by PPAC along with the working group
comprising of members from OMCs, MoPNG & PPAC and the difference of supply guantity and
consumption guantity in overall oil industry Supply Consumption Balance (SCB} is now minimized to
zero to 4 MMT during last one decade as compared to the earlier difference of 20 ta 25 MMT, PPAC
hassubmitted a comprehensive report on "Supply Consumption Balance" to MaPNG in March 2021,

PPAC hasimplemented Information Security Management System and is now an 'ISO 27001:2013
Certified Entity’

With this implementation, the policy framework for operation & management of Information
systems has been created. PPAC has established processes for Information risk and security
management; assessed & mitigated vuinerabilities in tha IT Infrastructure. I5MS has ensured secure
practices, established reporting & monitoring mechanism for Information systems.

Study on Sectoral Demand for M5 and HSD

A study to update the Sectoral Demand on MS and HSD was commissioned by PPAC with BPCL as the
Industry Coardinatar. This study report will bring forth updated data on sectoral demand for M5 and
HSD, thereby plugging the data gap identified by Energy Data Management Sub Group.

Updation of Energy Demand Projection Model [EDPM)

The Energy Demand Projection Model (EDPM) was developed by PPAC, ariginally with 2015 as the
baseline year. In 2020-21 PPAC has updated the model with the assistance of Industry experts, on
energy data projections and POL consumption from 2020-2045. This model s helpful for
understandingthe future outlook of energy landscape by policy makers and industry stakeholders,

Oil Industry Safety Directorate (OISD)

Oil Industry Safety Directorate (015D is a technical directorate under the Ministry of Petraleum and
Natural Gas and has been entrusted with the responsibility of formulating standards, overseeing [ts
implementaticn through safety audits in petroleum industry with aim to enhance safety levels and
reduce risks inherent with this industry. 0ISD standards cover the entire activities pertaining to
hydrocarbon sector i.e. exploration & production, refining, gas pracessing, starage, distribution,
environment etc. which are implemented on self-regulatory basis by the Oil & Gas companies. 0ISD
achieved record performance during 2020-21 surpassing previous records in auditing, PCSA,
conferences/workshop and revenue generaticn.

During the year 2020-21, an amount of Rs.22 .88 crore wasdisbursed to 018D as grant-in-aid by OIDB.
As per OISD, following major activities were carried out by 0ISD during the year:
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5.4.1 Safety Audits by OISD: FY 2020-21

0ISD carries out periodic safety audits of Oil & gas installations to monitor their compliance with
OISD Standards.

During the year 2020-21, OISD out record 206 audits of oil and gas installation apart from audit of
8778 km of pipeline as detailed below:

Actions . Unit i Plan | Actuals
. Core .ﬁ-l;l_tiits = _ 0
. Refineries & Gas ;ucessing plants Mos L &E 17 - 22 .'
Mktg. Installations (POL/LPG) . Nes 70 91 ‘
| E&P Offshore Installations Nos. | 16| 7 |
| E&P Onshare Installations | Wzs | _5[1 [= 76
Cross Country Pipelines = [ kms | 8000 | 8778

In addition, audit of 02 major ports; POL handling and storage facilities of Mumbai Port Trust and
Chennai Port Trust were also carried out as per the request of MoPSW.

5.4.2 Pre-Commissioning Safety Audits (PCSA)

To ensure safe and timely commencement of production, refining, storage and distribution activity
of hydrocarbon produced and transported in India, OISD carries out pre-commissioning safety audits
of projects across the Oil & gas industry. The purpose of these audits is to ensure that grass root
developments and major additional facilities at existing locations are compliant with OISD standards
atthe construction stage itself.

During 2020-21, 80 nos. of such audits were conducted, which is all time high, on the request of the
industry members.

Actiﬁns Unit Actuals

Pre Commissioning Safety Audits (PCSA)- 2019-20
: e !

" Refineries & Gas Processing plants Nos | 19

.Eﬂlc;tg. Installations t N Nos _ 47 =
E&P sector [DnSh(EEIﬂd offshore inﬁ'laticm) | Nos | 1

i Cross Country F;p;rles . Kms 13 (covered 2359.6 knﬁ

5.4.3 "Consentto Operate” for Offshore Installations

0ISD, asthe competent authority to oversee implementation of the Petroleum & Natu ral Gas [Safely
in Offshore Operations) Rules, 2008 accords “consent to operate” to offshare fix and mobhile
installations. Total 14 nos. of offshare platforms and 5 nos. of offshere rigs have been accorded
“consentto operate” during the year 2020-21.
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To ensure proper implementation of various aspects of safety in the oil & gas industry, Government
of India had set up a ‘Safety Council’ at the Apexin Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas, 37" meeting
of the Council was held on 7" August, 2020.

Keyissues discussed & approved during the meeting are as under;

[ ]

Major activities undertaken by 015D in 2019-20 & activity plan of Q1SD for 2020-21

Review of compliance status of 0ISD Safety Audit recommendations pending for more than
02 years,

Release of Errata/ Updation to already published DISD Standards and reaffirmation of
standard.

Appointment of consultantsin E&P group.
Revision of PCSA tariff for Ojl & gas sector.
Introduction of PCSAin E&P installations

Introduction of tariff towards grant of ‘Consent to Operate’ for offshore installations under
the Petroleum & Natural Gas (Safety in Offshore Operations) Rules, 2008

Approval of actual expenditure of OISD in FY 2019-20 and Budget Estimate for FY 2020-21
Adoption of annual audited accounts of 015D for FY 2013-20.

Root cause analysis of majoronsite incidents.

Shri Tarun Kapoor, Secretary, MoPENG presiding over 37th Safety Council meeting

5.4.5 Steering Committee meeting

55th Steering Committee meeting was held on 28th January, 2021 with representatives from cil &
gas industry (Principal Panelists). Some of the major points discussed during the meeting are as

under;

o

Apprising key decisionof 37" Safety Council meeting.
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Adoption of four revised 015D Standards
0ISD’s ESA plan vis-a-vis actual for the year 2020-21 and plan forthe year2021-22.

Review of the implementation status of ESA/ SSA recommendations pending for more than
twoyears.

v Incident analysis for last three years and discussions about few incidents across industry

segment.

Shiri Arun Mlltal Execuuve DIFEELDF oIsD prcmding over
55" Stearing Commitiee meeting

Development of Safety Standards

0ISD develop Standards for the oil and gas sector through a participative process involving all the
ctakeholders. OISD standards are reviewed periodically to ascertain needs of developing new
standards, revising existing standards to incorporate the latest technological developments as well
as current experiences onthe ground.

As on date, OISD has developed 121 safety standards, out of which 21 standards are mandatary for
Oil & Gas sector by dint of their being included in the Petroleum Rules 2002, the Gas Cylinder Rules
2016, the Static & Mobile Pressure Vessels (Untired) Rules, 2016 and the Qil Mines Regulations 2017.

Ason 31.03.2021, 30 existing Standards are under revision at various stages.

Incident Investigation & Analysis

0ISD Investigates major on site incidents which take place in oil and gas industry. The analysis of
these incidents is shared with the industry to avoid recurrence. A databank of incidents of the oil and
gas industry is maintained and analyzed by OISD to assess trends, areas of concern and required
corrective/ preventive action. These are then disseminated to the industry through safety alerts,
case studies, advisory notes, workshops/ seminars and “Suraksha Chetna”, During 2020-21, five

majorincidents were investigated by OISD.
Technical Seminar / Conference / Workshops

Technical seminars/ conferences/ workshops for the oil & gas industry are conducted by OISD to
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discuss the latest technological developments, sharing of knowledge, incident experiences etc.

During the year 2020-21, OISD has organized record ten seminars/workshops, details of which are as
follows:

Two-day virtual workshop on enhancing HSE awareness for HPCL officers of POL Terminal/ Depot by
MO-POLon 13" = 14" July 2020. The workshop was attended by 90 participants.

One-day virtual workshop on enhancing HSE through effective audits for HPCL officers of LPG Plants
on 17" July 2020. The workshop was attended by 130 participants

One-day virtuzl workshop on enhancing HSE through effective audits for |OCL officers of LPG Plants
on 14" August 2020. The workshop was attended by 180 participants

One-day virtual workshop on enhancing H5E through effective audits for BPCL officers of LPG Plants
on 1" September, 2020, The workshop was attended by 125 participants.

One-day virtual werkshop on enhancing HSE awareness for IOCL officers of POL Terminal/ Depot was
conducted by MO-POL on 4" September 2020.The workshop was attended by 259 participants

One-day virtual workshop on enhancing Safety & Reliability through Robust Safety Culture for BPCL
Refinery Officers on 23" October 2020 by Process & Engineering Group of OISD. The symposium is
also attended by ED-BPCL, KochiRefinery along with 50 participants.

Two-dayvirtual werkshop on Best HSE practicesin E&Pindustryconducted by EEP section of OISDon
10" & 11" December, 2020. The workshop was attended by 200 participants

One-day virtual workshop on Safety aspects of en-shore cross-country product/ crude pipelines was
arganized by pipeline section of 0ISD on 5" March 2021 during National Safety Week. The workshop
was attended by 111 participants.

One-day virtuzl waorkshap on Internal Safety Audit was conducted thru VC for all E&P companies on
9thMarch 2021 during National Safety Week. The workshop was attended by more than 300
participants.

One day seminar was conducted through video conferencing on enhancing safety & reliability
through inculcating a robust safety culture on 26" March 2021, The seminar was jointly organized by
OI5D, HMEL & HPCL. The seminar was attended by 271 participants.

Financial performance:

Theactual expenditureincurred in FY 2020-211s3 2420 lacs. The budget for FY 2021-22is¥2639 Lacs.

In FY 2020-21, OISD earned record income of 440 Lakhs from conducting pre-commissioning safety
audits and sale of standards.

5.4.10 World Environment Day celebration at OISD

Oil Industry Safety Directarate (0ISD) celebrated the World Environment Day on 5" June 2020, The
World Environment Day 2020's theme was ‘Celebrate Blodiversity’. The theme is extremely relevant
because human beings are part of the ecosystem and cannot continue to survive in isolation.
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Speaking on the occasion, Executive Director shared his thoughts about biodiversity which is of
utmost importance for the survival of all living things big and small, on |and, or in water. He
emphasized that we all need to understand that while there may be a food chain and ranking of
species, every living thing is connected to another living thing, and together it forms a network of
diverse life farms on the planet. He also stressed that these efforts should not belimited to justa few
days beyond the world environment day; but should be a sustained journey for a healthy
environmant for mankind as well as flora and fauna. Several activities were organized to
commemorate the occasion. These included Quiz competition, slogan completion and poetry
recitation.

Sixth International Yoga day

0il Industry Safety Directorate (OISD) observed the 6th International Yoga Day 2020 on 217 June
2020. Al officers and staff of OISD practiced yoga on the occasion of International Yoga Day, 2020
with their families at their horne by participating in the 45 min Common Yoga Protacol (CYP) drill.

5.4.12 Swachhta Pakhwada

Swachhta Pakhwada-2020 was commemorated in Oil Industry Safety Directorate by taking the
Swachhta Pledge in Hindi and English by all the employees and contractual workers of OISD on 1% July
2020. The pledge was taken following the narms of social distancing and wearing face maskwhile
taking the pledge. Executive Director addressed the gathering by sharing his thoughtful insight
regarding the Importance of cleanliness in our life and motivated everyone to create self-awareness
and a sense of responsibility in keeping our environment clean. He encouraged everyone to promote
cleanliness and hygiene in and around the office as well as their residences & society and encourage
others as well. There was also an interactive sharing of knowledge and health hygiene related
practices between the officers of 0ISD on various precautionary measures and lifestyle changes to
fight the current pandemic scenario of COVID-18.

5.4,13 0ISD Foundation Day

Oil Industry Safety Directorate (0ISD) was established on 107 January 1986. In order to
commemorate the occasion, 0ISD has started observance of ‘Foundation Day’ from this year and
calebrated its 36" ‘Foundation Day’. During the occasion, the genesis & journey of OISD in last 35
years was briefed and on the spot quiz competition on OISD was organized.

5.4.14 National Safety Day

0ISD has gbserved 50" National Safety Day on 4" March 2021 and National Safety week celebration
started from 4" to 107 March 2021. The celebrations were formally inaugurated with administration
of safety pledge by Executive Director, followed by address to OISDians. During the Mational Safety
week celebration, following programs were organized:

Workshop on Safety aspects of on-shore cross-country product/ crude pipelines

Program for OISD employees’ spouse was canducted thru virtual platform, During the program,
video on activities of DISD and operation of LPG Bottling Plant was shown. Innovative talk on kitchen
safety, electrical safety & precautions during earthquake was delivered, At the end, quiz was
organized forthe spouses on safety awareness,
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Safety awareness programmes & quiz for employees of all organizations (other than OISD) located in
OIDB Bhawan.

One dayindustry workshop on Internal Safety Audit.

5.4.15 1S09001:2015 Surveillance Audit of 0ISD

5.5

In the year 2013, systems and procedures of OISD were validated through certification of 150 9001:
2008 by M/s DNV and OISD became the first 150 9001 certified organization amongst all the OIDB
grantee Organizations.

Inthe year 2020-21, the [SO certification of 0ISD has been continued by M /s DNV during surveillance
auditon 15" December, 2020.

Centre for High Technology (CHT)

Centre for High Technology (CHT) was established in 1987, to act as the Technical Wing of MoP&NG
for implementation of scientific and technological programmes of Govt. of India. Major functions of
CHTinclude:

. Performance Benchmarking of Refineriesand Pipelines

. Performance Improvement in Refineries through Best Practices, Special Studies, Operational
Improvement and Process Technology

. Energy Efficiency Improvement in Downstream Hydrocarbon Sectar

. Petroleumn Product Quality Improvement

- Sharing of Best Practices and Information & Knowledge Disseminatien

- Integration with Alternative Energies and New Initiatives in Downstream Sector for Future

Sustainability

= Promoting Innovations and R&D in Downstream Hydrocarbon Sector Co-ordination of
activities of Scientific Advisory Committee (SAC) on Hydrocarbons of MoPENG
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. Reduction of Water foot print
. Development of Import substitute fuels, chemicals and catalysts

During the year 2020-21, an amount of Rs 15.25 crore was received by CHT as grant-in-aid from
OIDB. The majoractivities undertaken by CHT during 2020-21 are as below:

Performance Benchmarking of PSU refineries and pipelines
Performance Benchmarking of PSU refineries

Performance benchmarking of PSU refineries is being conducted regularly since 2010 by CHT
through M/s Solomon Associates (SA), USA. A long-Term Agreement upto 2028 has been made with
$A for undertaking benchmarking of the PSU refineries. The study for PSU Refineries for 2020 cycle s
in progress,

Performance Benchmarking of PSU Pipelines

Performance Benchmarking Study for Pipelines (Liquid, Gas, LPG) and SPMs for 2018 cycle was
initiated for the first time through M/s Solemon Associates (SA), USA. The contract agreement for
the second i.e. 2020 cycle was signed on 10" November 2021 and the study isin progress.

Energy Efficiency improvement
PAT (Parform, Achieve and Trade)

PAT is a market based regulatory instrument to reduce specific energy consumption in the energy
intensive sector of the economy. PAT is ane of the initiatives under The MNational Mission for
Enhanced Energy Efficiency (NMEEE], which is one of the eight missions under the National Action
Plan on Climate Change for enhancing energy efficiency, to enhance the cost effectiveness through
tradable energy saving certificates.

Refinery sector was included in PAT cycle-2 (2016-17 to 2018-19) along with Discoms & Railways to
the eight energy intensive sectors, already covered in PAT cycle-1. Under the scheme, each refinery,
including PSU and Private Sector, is mandated to meet the Specific Energy Consumption Targets. The
targets are set higher for refineries which have higher specific energy consumption and hence higher
potential for energy saving. The energy saving targets were assigned by BEE (Bureau of Energy
Efficiency) in consultation with CHT, an associated office under MoP&NG.

The energy reduction Target for refining sector in PAT cycle -2 was set at 5.49% equivalent to 1.01
Million TOE. Against this, the actual energy reduction of 8.05%, equivalent to 1.48 Million TOE was
achieved.

For the current PAT cycle-6 (2020-21 to 2022-23), the sectoral energy reduction Target of 5.48% has
been retained, which is equivalent to energy saving target of 1.17 Million TOE.

Langterm energy saving Target till 2030in P5U refineries

A Rozdmap on specific energy consumption for PSU Refineries, aligned with India’s NDC of 33-35%
reduction in Specific Energy Consumption by 2030 over the base year of 2005, have been prepared.
The roadmap has prepared based on various studies conducted both in-house as well as through
consultants. The targets are also assigned for midterm (2023-24) based on already identified energy
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saving scheme as well as long-term (2030) for each PSU refinery.
Annual audit on furnace efficiency and steam leaks

In order to improve energy efficiency and reduce energy consumption, CHT in association with the
refineries organize surveys every year in the areas of 1) Furnace/Boiler efficiency and 2) Steam leak.
These two areas are taken up every alternate year. Survey in area of Furnace/Boiler efficiency was
carried outinJan2020.

Refinery Performance Improvement Programme (RPIF)

CHT in coordination with the refineries finalized refinery-wise global consultants for carrying out
refinery performance improvement programme for 15 PSU refineries which aims at yield and energy
improvement. RPIP Phase -1 has already commenced in seven refineries(HPC-Mumbai and Visakh,
BPC-Mumbai and Kochi, IOC-Panipat, Paradip and Mathura) and the programme is under various
stages of implementation

In the secand phase, EO| was floated again on 30" July, 2020 to identify new consultants over and
above the existing ones who are already carrying cut RPIP Phase 1. Consultant shortlisting through
EQI is complete and refinery specific tender shall be floated once clearance is received from the
refineries (I0C-Barauni, Gujarat, Haldia, Bongaigaon, Guwahati, Dighoi, CRCL-Manaliand NRL).

Special studies for the PSU refineries
Development of Water Consumption Norms and Reduction of Water Footprint for Refineries

CHT in association with refineries carried out a study through EIL for Development of Water
Consumption Norms 2nd prepared a roadmap for Reduction of Water Footprint In refineries with
short term (<2 years) and long term (>2 years) targets.

Feasibility study for production of ethanol using waste gases through M/sLanza Tech, USA

The study far BPCL-Mumbai Refinery has been completed. The study for Numaligarh Refinery (NRL)
isin progress.

Feasibility & Business Model for Reference Fuel by EIL & |OC R&D:

Reference Fuels are used by OEMs for testing their vehicles. These fuels are imported mainly from
Germany. The study has been planned in three phases, The study for Phase-1 (Paper Blend using LP
Model) has been completed and Phase-2 (lzb blending) is in progress. It is possible to make
Reference Gascline from |IOC-PR streams based on the Laboratory study, Quality issue of Reference
Diesel being addressed using different grades of Bio-diesels and additives,

Refining & Petrochemicals Technology Meet (RPTM)

With a view to keep abreast with the technological developments and disseminate information, CHT
organises RPTM every year in association with one of the PSU oil company on different theme of
relevance. The event is attended by large number of process licensars, catalyst suppliers and
delegates from India and abroad. The last 24™ RPTM was organised along with MRPL in
Bengaluruduring 19" to 21" January, 2020. The event had presentation of 80 oral papers spread over
15 Technical Sessions and 78 papers in Poster Sessions along with 16 Exhibition Stalls and was
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attended by around 1500 delegates/invitees from India and abroad. The 25" RPTM was planned in
Viumbaiin association with HPCLbut could not be held due to COVID-19 pandemic.

Implementation of PM JIVAN Yojna

Pradhan Mantri JI-VAN Yojana was announced in March, 2019 for promotion of 2G ethanol by
providing Viability Gap Fund (VGF) for setting up of 12 commercial units (combined capacity of ~40
crore litre per annum) and 10 demonstration units at semi commercial level. CHT has been
nominated as nodal agency for implementation of PM JIVAN Yojana. Request for Selection (RFS) for
shortlisting of eligible Project Developers (PD) was issued on 26" August, 2019. The project
proposalswere evaluated by SAC and based on its technical recommendation, Steering Committee
of CHT for PM JI-VAN Yojana, approved VGF / Financial assistance for 4 commercial projects and 1
demonstration project.

As advised by SAC, it is proposed to incorporate few amendments in the scheme to enlarge the scope
and solicit broader participation. Subsequently, RFS shall be issued for remaining 8 Commercial and
9 Demonstration projects after the amendments.

Indigenous Technology Development

CHT co-ord inates the activities of Scientific Advisory Committee (SAC) on Hydrocarbons of MOP&NG
in identifying and funding of research projects for downstream hydrocarban sector. SAC approves
and steers projects of national impartance and refining operations. SAC is headed by Dr. Anil
Kakodkar, an eminentScientist and DAE Chair Professor, BARC,

During 2020-21, SAC had three meetings till December 2020. SAC had detailed review of the on-
going projects and new project proposals.

During the year, M/s EIL along with BPC Kochi has developed indigenous Desalter Technology under
the project funded by CHT,

ED CHT has been nominated as Technology officer to represent MoP&NG. CHT provided input for the
development of Science, Technology and Innovation Palicy (STIP) of Govt. of India.

Hydrogen Research

SAC has identified hydrogen research and its promotion of as one of the major focus areas. CHT has
funded various projects for carrying out research and demonstration of technologies including
production of hydrogen from different pathways (including electrolysis of water and biomass
gasification), development of fuel cell buses in tie- up with vehicle manufacturer as well as transport
cperators, storage and dispensing of hydrogen, production of HCNG and demonstration of HCNG
fuelled buses in Delhi,

Development of Catalyst Manufacturing Plantin India:

The Refining Industry employs many catalytic processes where catalysts play major role in operation
and profitability improvement. However, there is no major catalyst manufacturing facility in India
and the country is mostly dependent on catalyst import leading to vulnerability of this sectar. It is
with this intent that MoP&NG constituted a Committee for Setting up of Catalyst Manufacturing Unit
in India vide F. No. R-11029/34/2020-0R-1I/E-347 16 dated 6thAugust,2020. Catalyst suppliers from
across the world were invited for the deliberations with the committee to understand their
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capabilities & intent, Out of eight potential catalyst suppliers, the Committee shortlisted five
potential anes for detailed specific interaction. The committee suggested the path forward to
materialise the intended purpose and concluded that in the coming years, the burgeoning refinery
and petrochemical industry would require a secure supply of huge quantity of different types of
catalysts, hence, it is imperative to invest in the indigenous production of catalyst and associated
research and development. Committee recommends formation of Joint Venture/s among interested
partners wherever there js synergy in the catalyst manufacturing value chain. The details of the JV
can be formulated based on the mutual agreement amang the prospective partners. Catalyst
manufacturing units demand huge investment and a suitable government policy to bolster the
initiative. The committee is of the view that policy intervention by the government is required to
promote indigenous catalyst manufacturing. A report including above activities submitted to
MaP&NG in month of Feb 2021.Further discussions with the prospective partnersis led by HPCL.

5.5.10 Integrated Monitoring and Advisory Council (IMAC)

During 2nd meeting of IMAC chaired by Hon'ble Minister, P&NG, it emerged that halistic and
coordinated strategy in close coordination with all IMAC Member Ministries is imperative towards
the exercise of Reassessment of the Roadmap to implement the Hon'ble Prime Minister’s vision of
reducing oil Import dependency. Accordingly, & Working Groups have been constituted for
monitoring the progress en various initiatives, schemes, projects and strategies taken under
respective Member Ministries domain with a view to augment Supply of energy, Savingsin energy as
2 means toachieving oil impert reduction.

Meetings of the Working Group on R&D and Innovation as well as of Working Group on Biofuels,
constituted under IMAC were held. The baseline as well as final report has been submitted to
MoP&NG.

5.5.11 Reportonenhancing Production of Petrochemicals in Refineries

A Committee was constituted by MoP&NG to undertake detalled study on Business Opportunity for
Petrochemicals in India. The Committee identified major petrochemicals based on consumption,
value, import, growth and capacity in India including projected capacity addition for identified
petrochemicals. The detajled report was submitted to MoP&NG.

5.5.12 Study on Additional Strategic/Operational Crude Oll Starage

Creation of petroleum reserves is one of the several contingency measures to meet the energy
securlty, A Committee was constituted by MoP&NG to carry out detailed study on all aspects of
common crude oil storage in the country, The report has been submitted to MoP&NG.

5.5.13 Awards

CHT is actively associated with the following Annual Awards instituted by Ministry of Petroleum &
Matural Gas, Government of India:

. Refinery Performance Improvement Award
. Saksham Awards based on Steam Leak and Furnace Efficiency Surveys
0 Innovation Award
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The Awardees for the first two categories are selected by the selection committee set up by
MaP&NG. For Innovation Awards, nominations for the following three categories were invited from
the Industry and the Awardees are selected by the committee constituted by Chairman, SAC, based
on guidelines of Governing Council of CHT:

Best Indigenously Developed Technology
Best Innovation in Refinery (refinery/ group/individual)
Best Innovation in R&D Institute {institute/ group/ individual)

These awards are presented during the Inaugural function of the Refining & Petrochemicals
Technology Meet (RPTM).

5.5.14 Activity Committee Meetings

With the aim of sharing of best operational practices & improvements and dissemination of
infarmation on latest developments, CHT organised various two nos. enline Activity Committee
Meetings In critical areas/ technologies in refining sector and pipelines operations. Activity
Committee Meet on “Strategies forTurnaround Management” was organized by CHT for the first
time virtually incollaboration with HPCL-Visakh Refinery. The Activity Committee Meet on
Digitalization in Refining Business Process wasalso held online in association with BPCL-Kochi
Refinery.

5.5.15 Swachhata Ranking for Oil & Gas PSUs & attached offices

MoP&NG, its attached offices and Qil & Gas CP5Es under the administrative control of MoP&NG
celebrated Swachhata Pakhwada fortnight from 1" ta 15" luly, 2020. During Swachhata Pakhwada,
0il & Gas CPSEs and attached offices of MoP&NG were ranked based on the Swachhata Index
developed by Centre for High Technology. The awards were presented to the winners by Hon'ble
Minister of Petroleum & Natural Gas and Steel on 14" December, 2020.
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Section 6 of Qil Industry (Development) Act, 1974, inter-alia, provides that the Board may render
assistance for scientific 8 technological research useful to oil industry. Hydrocarbon Vision 2025 also
envisages that sufficient resources may be made available for appraising the unexplored/partly
explored acreages through Cil Industry Development Board cess and other innovative resource
mobilization approaches,

UPSTREAM SECTOR

In respect of OIDB grant in aid related to Upstream Sector, the OID Board in its 76th meeting held on
27.03.2014 decided that a Committee headed by DG, DGH with other Members to be nominated by
Chairman, OIDB may be constituted to identify and examine the R&D project/ projects related to
Energy Security for providing funds from O1D8 in the form of grant for their execution. Accordingly, a
Committee for utilisation of OIDB grants was constituted under the Chairmanship of Director
General, DGH with members comprising Secretary, DIDB, Director (Exploration), ONGC, Director-1/P,
Dehradun, Director [R&D)-IOCL, Director (Tech)-ElL and Director General-Petrofed (FIPI).

The Committee examines the proposals in the first instance and gives its recommendations. The
recommendations of the Committee are submitted to OID Board for taking a decision. The projects
that are approved by OID Board with an outlay of more than Rs.25 lakh are sent to Central
Government for conveying its approval before release of grant in terms of Rule 24(1)(ii)of OID Rules.

Review ofthe Projects

The above Committee reviews the progress of the OIDB funded projects inthe Upstream Sector from
time to time. There commendations of the Committee are presented before OID Board for
consideration and appropriate directions for implementation of the projects in a more efficient
manner wherever necessary.

Downstream Sector

The projects related to downstream sector are considered and recommended by Scientific Advisory
Cammittee {SAC) on hvdrocarbons setup by the Ministry. These projects are primarily funded
through CHT. The members representing SAC are eminent persons invarious fields of Oil Industry.

The tenure of this Committee is two years after which Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas
reconstitutes it. SAC also reviews progress of R&D projectsin the down stream sector in its meetings.
CHT coordinates the activities of SAC In identifying and funding of research projects for hydrocarbon
sector,

Assistance to Technical Institutes/Oil PSUs/CSIR Laboratories

OIDB provides assistance to educational institutes as well, for creating infrastructure fer training and
research such as Indian 0il Corporation Limited (R&D), Indian Institute of Technology (IIT), Mumbai,
IIT (Indian School of Mines), Dhanbad, Rajiv Gandhi Institute of Petroleum Technology etc. for
carrying out various R&D activities for the development of cil industry.
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During the year 2020-21, OIDB has released following amounts as grant towards funding of R&D

projectsetc. :- Rs./crore
- -I;thanol Production Plant L;sir'lg refinery off ga-ses at Panipat Reﬂnéry: i | 10338
Indian Qil Corporation Limited |
_Stud\,r on Underground Gas Storage need and feasibility in Indfa - ONGC i 0.42 |
| Foam assisted Oil Water Nano-emulsion for Enhance Oil Recovery experimental ‘ 0.28 |

and Molecular Dynamic Simulation Studies — IIT (ISM), Dhanbad : |

Use of Natural Extracts as Pour Point Depressants for Flow Assurance of ‘ 0.324
Waxy Crude - IIT {ISM), Dhanbad |

Pre-project activities of ISPRL Phase-2 SPMs | 5.95
110.37 |

i Total

Indian Oil Carporation Limited (R&D) - Ethanol Production Plant using refinery off gases at Panipat
Refinery-Rs.103.38 crare

Indian Ol Corpaoration Ltd. is setting up world's first hydrogen generation unit (HGU) off gas to
ethanol generation plant based on gas fermentation technology. Indian Oil has deployed LanzaTech's
gas farmentation technology for the 3G ethanol plant at Panipat Refinery. In this techneology, carbon
monoxide, carbon dioxide and hydrogen present in the HGU pressure swing adsorption unit off gas
are converted to ethanol and other products by LanzaTech’s proprietary microbes (biocatalysts).
Ethanol production capacity of the proposed plant is 100 Tonnes Per Day (128 kiloliters per day,
KLPD). This plant will also generate approximately 3 tons per day high protein biomass as a by-
product which can be used as animal feed ingredient.

IOCL is the first Oil Refining Company in the world which has adopted this technology for conversion
of refinery off gas to ethanol. This plant will help in reducing 11,600 metric tons per annum carbon
dioxide emissions, The following is the schematic of ethanal praduction from HGU PSA off gas.

TallGas

Waste Water

Gas Ethanol
Conditioning/

Comprassion

Product
Recovery

PSA
Tail Gas

Fermentaticn Biomass

Flow scheme for production of ethanol from PSA tail gas

Due to Covid-19 pandemic, installation of the plant has been delayed and the plant is expected to be
installed and commissioned by Feb’22. Currently civil and structural jobs, and fabrication of plant
equipment are under progress. OIDB has sanctioned a grant of Rs.158.75 crore for this project of
National Importance to meet the ethanol blending manade as per the Biofue| Palicy. Out of which,
anamountof Rs.103.38 crore was released asgrantduring 2020-21.

Oil & Natural Gas Corporation Ltd.- “Study on Underground Gas Storage need and feasibility in
India”—Rs.0.42 crore

India is amongst the fastest growing economies of the world. Energy demand in the country will

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21




4.3

ISTRY DEVELDPI&ENH 44 -
¥ PR S U1

continue torise for meeting the needs of a rapidly growing economy. Primary energy consumption in
indiz has increased at a CAGR of 5.4 percent over the last decade and is projected ta grow at 4.2
percent per annum till 2035. India's natural gas uptake is around 6.2 percent of primary energy mix
against a global average of 24.1 percent. The availability of natural gas is expected to increase
primarily because of commissioning of planned LNG terminals and materialisation of nation-wide
gas pipeline network. The Government is committed to create a “Gas based Economy” and increase
the share of natural gasto 15 percent in the country’s primary energy mixin coming years.

To ensure timely supply of gas and smooth out the fluctuations due to peak load demands and supply
variations from the sources, a need is felt for gas storage facilities connected to supply grid and
capable of accumulating gas surpluses. This may also cover the risk of continuity and security of gas
supplies as at present more than 50% gas supplies areimport dependent.

Worldwide various gas storage options are used along the gas supply chain. Therefore, in line with
the energy security mandate, Government of India has nitiated Underground Gas Storage (UGS)
project for assessing the need and maintaining gas reservesin India as a part of long-term strategy of
Gas based economy;,

MoPBNG, vide letter dated 07.09.2018, had constituted a taskforce with representatives from
ONGC, GAIL {India), OIDB and PLL to evaluate the need for strategic gas storage and prepare a plan
for developing strategic and commercial natural gas storages in the country.

As per the direction of ministry, the taskforce had to take support of reputed international
consultants/companies with significant experiences in Gas Storage development projects and the
cost of engaging such consultant through ONGC was to be borne by OIDB.

Oil and Natural Gas Corporation (ONGC) is the largest upstream oil and natural gas exploration and
production PSU in India, contributing around 70 per cent to Indian domestic production. M/s PWC
was engaged by ONGC to conduct study on behalf of the task force constituted by MoP&NG. The
total cost of engaging the consultant to conduct this study was Rs.41.3 Lakh which was reimbursed
by OIDB asagrant ta ONGC.

The consultant, in its report, has recommended consideration for developing UGS under Phase 1
with initial working gas volume capacity of 1.5 BCM and further ramp up to 4.2 BCM under Phase 2
which shall caterthe demand of priority sectors from 2030-31.

The study report states that depleted reservoirs are best suited for India for developing UGS
considering their cost economics, gestation period, ease of availability and learning from successful
implementation in other parts of the world. However, detailed technical and commercial evaluzation
of reservoirs is to be undertaken for strengthening their case and finalisation. As India has no
experience of underground gas storage, a quick pilot may be helpful in understanding the dynamics
governingthese storages.

Foam Assisted Oil-Water Nanoemulsion for Enhanced Dil Recovery: Experimental and Molecular
Dynamic Simulation Studies Department of Petroleum Engineering, Indian Institute of Technology
(Indian School of Mines), Dhanbad—Rs.0.28 crore

After conventional water-flood, the residual oil in the reservoir remains as a discontinuous pnhase in
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the form of oil droplets trapped by capillary forces. Approximately 70% of original oil in place (ODIP)
is left in the reservoir after conventional oil recovery (primary and secondary) due to high capillary
forces and heterogeneity of reservair which leads to low oil production. Technically it is possible to
improve this recovery efficiency by applying Enhanced Qil Recovery (EOR) processes through
application of chemicals (surfactant, alkali, and polymer).Surfactants play an important role in
transport of fluid in porous media by acting as effective agents for mobility improvement of the oil by
recucing the interfacial tension (IFT) between oil and water (0-W) and by wettability alteration. But
due to the inconveniences caused in chemical methods such as loss of expensive surfactants in the
farm of serption and retention in the reservoir, high project cost and decreasing oil prices affect the
process efficiency and pose problems in its application. Thus, the use of nanotechnology
inemulsions ([Manoemulsions) can be a breakthrough In EOR, as it has the potential to revolutionize
the current scenario of oil production from the matured oil fields. Nano-emulsions are a class of
emulsions with a droplet size in the range of 50-500 nm and have attracted a great deal of attention
in recent years because of their wide range of practical applications. Nano-emulsions are, generally,
stable agsinst sedimentation or creaming, owing totheirzsmall droplet size.

Manoemulsions stabllized by surfactants and colloidal particles [nanoparticles) are gaining
popularity in petroleum industry due to their high strength, thermodynamic stability and stabilized
flow behavicur. Recently published research paper highlighted the formulation and characterization
of SPN Pickering emulsions for application in enhanced oil recovery. This nanoemulsion can enter
into the very fine pores where oil is trapped particularly in tight reservoirs and displace it. However,
another main accepted mechanism of mohile residual oil after water flooding is that there mustbe a
rather large viscous force perpendicular to the cil-water interface to push the residual oil. This force
must overcome the capillary forces retaining the residual oil, move it, mohilize it, and recover it.

Twsman £0 Manoemulsion Propartiss
- g

Ultraronication Process

-
Surface Acthee Properties P =

Fig.1: Schematic for nanoemulsionand its properties desirable for EOR application.

Foam has an effective viscosity much higher than that of gas; it has been investigated as a method for
improving sweep efficiency in processes where gases such as N2 or supercritical CO2 are injected to
improve oil recovery frem underground farmations. The injection of gas along with surfactant
solution can produce a foam that exhibits an apparent viscosity much higher than its constituent
phases: liguid and gas. Because of its high apparent viscosity, foam has a mobility much lower than
the mobility of gas alone and, therefore, provides an effective means of reducing mobility of the
displacing fluid. Foam can reduce viscous fingering and gravity override caused hy the low viscosity
and density of the gas. Recently a published article discussed the stabilization of CO2 foam by ionic
and nonionic surfactants in presence of different additives. Foam flooding may offer similar
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advantages to that of ASP flooding for enhanced oil recovery. Therefore, a combination of both the
technologies i.e. 'Foam-assisted nanoemulsion” flooding for enhanced oil recovery is a promising
technology.

Using flue gas (rather than nitrogen) captured from hydrocarbon or coal-fired power plants to assist
the surfactant EOR is an innovative process. It will combine new developments in both enhanced oil
recovery and CO2 managed power generation. In this combined process, the surfactant hastoplaya
dual role at the various interfaces: to lower the IFT at the ail- water interface and to stabilize the foam
at the gas- aqueous interface. Additionally, CO2 may help to enhance the recovery by miscible
flooding. The complexity of the combined process necessitates a fundamental investigation to
understand the role of the surfactant/gas partitioning between the various interfaces, and the way
in which the gas-water-oil-solid phases co-exist in the porous media. Moreover, as time elapses
cither be nancemulsion or foam bath gradually decay. Aqueous foam is a metastable system that
shows continuous drainage of agueous phase from plateau border or lamella of foam bubbles.
Slower the rate of drainage, greater is the stability of foam. Most of the fluid, rock and pther
properties can be measured at the surface condition, But the in-situ lab measurements
measurement possess great difficulties, which could be very challenging in harsh reservoir condition
such as high pressure and high temperature. Molacular Dynamic Simulation (MDS) provides us
alternative approach to model different properties and in-situ process at the molecular scale which
cannot be experimentally authenticated. The MDS can alsc be used as a precursor to experiential
studies for the screening of surfactant and other chemicals by quantifying their properties. Using
MDS the effect of rock mineral constituent and fluid composition, as well as temperature and
pressure can be investigated extensively. Previous studies have confirmed that MDS technigue is
indeed a beneficial reute to predicting oil displacement behavior on a micro-model scale with
desirable constraints.

The understanding of the mechanisms of multiphase flow in porous media has progressed
considerably in the last two decades. In particular, displacement of one fluid by another in porous
media raises interest at both the micro-scale and macro-scale. The physical movements of
canstituting phases and surfaces on a molecular scale can be predicted with the objective of
studying the dynamic evolution of the rock system from oil-wet (or intermediate-wet) to favorable
water-wet condition. Therefore, it is necessary to analyze the physic chemical attributes and
performance evaluation of foam-assisted nanoemulsion formulations to gain athorough
perspective into their utility and functionality in EOR applications.

Use of Natural Extracts as Pour Point Depressants for Flow Assurance of Waxy Crude - IIT (ISM),
Dhanbad—Rs.0.34 crore

Demand of crude oil is increasing rapidly in the developing countries due to rapid energy
requirement in industrial sector. The amount of crude oil is limited. As a result of centinuous
extraction from wells, the amount of crude oil is decreasing and it becomes heavy & waxy. Crude oil is
a mixture of hydraocarbons of paraffins, aromatics, asphaltenes and resins. At elevated temperature
the paraffins get dissolved in crude oil. The paraffins gradually turned in to crystals to form an
interlocking network at lowered temperature. The temperature of oil significantly cooled down to
approximately 40 °F when it flows through pipeline on ocean floor. At this condition, the waxy
components begin to precipitate out from the crude oil and starts forming wax deposition on the
wall of the pipe. Production, storage, transportation of crude oil is greatly hampered by wax
deposition. This problem can be overcome by applying some polymeric additive, commanly known
as Pour Paint Depressants{PPDs) or Flow Improver which reduces both the pour point and viscosity
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of crude oil. Specific flaw improver is required for specific crude cil. Our target is to study wax
deposition theroughly for Indian Crude Oil. We want to focus on design and development of
different pour point depressants (PPDs) from natural resources and check the effectiveness of thasa
PPDs on crude oil. As PPDs are synthesized from natural resources, so these are renewable,
bicdegradable & environmental friendly. We are trying to choose natural waste material as starting
material to male the production cost less.

Pre-project activities of ISPRL Phase-2 SPMs—Rs.5.95 crare

The Union Cakinet on 27thJune'2018 gave “In Principle” epproval for establishing 6.5MMT Strategic
Petroleum Reserves at two locations Chandikhol (4 MMT) in Odisha and at Padur (2.5 MMT)
Karnataka including dedicated 5PM's for the two 5PR’s. The ‘In Principal’ approval is to take up the
project under PPP model to reduce budgetary support of Gavernment of India.

On completion of 6.5 MMT storage envisaged in Phase ||, there will be an additional storage capacity
created to cover another 12 days of crude ofl requirement. Thus, the total cover would bz
approximately 21 days.

100th PPPAC meeting held on 15th March'2021 under the chairmanship of Secretary, DEA. "In
Principle” approval for the project has been accorded to seek Cabinet Approval for going ahead with
the grant route.

Marine survey for SPM at Padur has been done . NEERI hascarried out the EIA far Phase 2.
Hydragen Corpus Fund (HCF)

The Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas has set up a Hydrogen Corpus Fund on the use of
hydrogenasanautofuel The/ndianQillndustryhastoworksynergisticallyandin close coordination with
reputed technological institutions to make headway in this frontier area. With this object in mind,
the Ministry has setup a hydrogen corpus fund of Rs.100 crore with contribution from Oil PSUs/QIDB
as follows:

1. OCIDB Rs.40crore
2. ONGC,0CLGAIL Rs.16croreeach
3.  HPCLBPCL Rs.6crore each,

OIDB is maintaining the Accounts of the HCF. CHT is the Nodal Agency for identifying and monitoring of
hydrogen projects. Since inception till 31.03.2021, OIDB has released grant of Rs.42.73 crore approx. for
funding of HCF projects out of Hydrogen Corpus Fund. As on 31.03.2021, funds amounting to Rs.156.33
crore approx.isavailablein HCF. Thelistof ongoing HCF projectsare asunder:

Sl.No,

Rs./crore
Funds :
Project |Contribution| released till| Executing |
SAme T projact cost from HCF | 31.03.2021| agency
i SNy ol from HCF
Scale up studies and process development 29.46 16.92 1.24 HPCL/
by hydrogen production by catalytic IITD/CeNS
decomposition of natural gas
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Salar based H2 Production System &
Dispensing Station for Refueling H2 Fuel
Cell Vehicle

Setting up of compact Reformer Unit of
capacity 4 TPD for producing Hydrogen
blend HCNG and trials demonstration
at Rajghat Bus Depot at Delhi

Development & Demanstration of
Commercially Viable Fuel Cell Buses
based an Hydrogen produced from
multiple pathway

65.16 25.00 0.00
25.00 HCF
40.16 10C

33.39 9.20 7.64
8.20 HCF
g.2010C
15.00 by
Delhi Govt.

296.66 97.52 11.10

iTﬂtﬂl

424.67 | 148.64 | 19.98
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OIDB's Contribution
for Energy Security
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Indian Strategic Petroleum Reserves Limited

To ensure energy security, Government of India had decided to build a strategic crude cil reserve of 5
MMT through a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV). The SPV named Indian Strategic Petroleum Reserves
Limited (ISPRL) was initially incorporated as a subsidiary of Indian Ol Corporation Limited which
later became a wholly owned subsidiary of Qil Industry Development Board (OIDB) w.e.f.
09.05.2006.The caverns have been constructed at three |ocations namely Visakhapatnam (1.33
MMT) where the geology was good and we could create 30% additional storage incurring 15%
additional cost, the capacity at Vizag was enhanced from the proposed 1 MMT to 1.33 MMT,
Mangalore (1.5 MMT) and Padur (2.5 MMT). These reserves store crude oil equivalent to India's net
import requirement of9.5 days.

Capital cost for constructing these strategic starage facilities was originally estimated to be Rs.2397
crore at September 2005 prices which had undergone upward revision to Rs. 4098.35 Crore. The
authorized and paid up capital of the company as on 31.03.2021 is Rs. 3832.56 Crore andRs, 3775.87
Crore respectively. OIDB has contributed Rs. 3775.87 Crore towards its equity participation in ISPRL
till 31.03.2021.

..

View of above ground facilities at cavern area
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Under Phase | of Strategic Petroleum Reserve (SPR) programme, Government through ISPRL has
bullt SPR facilities with a total capacity of 5.33 MMT at three |ocations viz. Visakhapatnam (1.33
MMT), Mangalore (1.5 MMT) and Padur (2.5 MMT). The total reserve of Phase-1 of SPR is currently
estimated to supply approximately 9.5 days of Indias crude requirement.

All the three facilities i.e. Visakhapatnam, Mangalore & Padur have been commissioned in
June'2015, October'2016 and December'2018 respectively, All these three facilities were dedicated
to the Nation by Hon'ble Prime Minister on 10 February, 2019.

ISPRL Crude was first time released for Mangalore Refinery and Petrochemicals Limited (MRPL) from
ISPRL Mangalore Cavern in Aug 2019, Subseguently crude oil was released from Padur facility also to
MRPLIn Oct 2019,

The COVID-19 pandemic that gripped the world, and effected sever lockdowns globally, impacted
the crude oil demand world over and India was no exception. The refineries operated at a bare
minimum capacities, as a result of drastic reduction in the demand for petraleum products. This
coupled with increase in supply of crude, resulted in a demand supply imbalance which saw the
crude oil prices nosedive across the globe. To take advantage of the prevailing low crude oil
prices,Govt. of India decided tofill the Strategic Reserves on priority.

Secretary, MoPNG at Padur site

In this context, the Government had earlier allocated Rs.690 Crores from the Budgetary allocation
for the year 2020-21 for filling one compartment at Padur. To leverage the down turn in global crude
prices, Government of India further allocated Rs.3184 Crores towards filling the SPRs in Phase |
during the year 2020-21,

MoPNG, advised the Oil Marketing Companlies (OMCs), BPCL, IOCL, HPCLand MRPL ta fill the crude
in the SPRs. Approximately, 16.37 million bbls for Ma ngalore and Padurand 0.34 million bbls of crude
ail for Vishakhapatnam, thus total of 16.71 Million Bbls was procured for filling the SPR' The strategic
reserves at all the three locations werecompletelyfilled during April & May'2020, and a small
guantity in October, 2020.
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The average cost of procurement was 195/bbl as compared to US$60 per bbl prevailing at the
beginning of the year in Jan 2020. This resulted in substantial savings to Govt. of India to the tune of
Rs 5069 Crore (US5685 11 Million).

ot TIPS

- ﬁ;:;' .

secretary, MoPNG being briefed at Padur Site

Agreement with ADNOC

An agreement was signed between ADNOC and ISPRL on 10th Feb'2018, permitting ADNOC to use
one compartmentat Mangalore. As perthe agreement, ADNOC stored approx. 5.8 Million Barrels of
crude at ISPRL’s Mangalore cavern. ADNOC can use a portion of this oll as commercial supply to its
customers in India, while the rest will remain as strategic storage to be released to meet emergencies
such as supply disruptions due to natural disaster or geopolitical factors. The Mangalore facility has
twg compartments of 0.75 MMT each. One of the compartments has been given to Abu Dhabi
National Oil Company (ADNOC).

In order to enhance the commercial viability of the existing Strategic Petroleum Reserves of [SPRL,
Government of India approved modification of ADNOC Model’ in October 2020, wherein the
Caverns can be offered to ADNOC on 50:50 basis i.e. 50% strategic and 50% commercial, from the
current 65:35 applicable presently.

Commercial utilization of ISPRL facilities

On request of ADNOC, ISPRL successfully loaded first commercial consignment cantaining apprex.
%,68,000 Barrels of Dasgrade crude oil to HPCL, Vizag on 11-13th December 2019 as per the terms of
Agreement between ADNOC and ISPRL. Thereafter ADNOC has sold crude consignments from the
SPR to MRPLand BPCLand replenished it as per the contractual terms.
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Welfare of Scheduled Castes/Scheduled Tribes, Other Backward Classes and Physically
Handicapped.

Qil Industry Development Board follows the guidelines in respect of the reservation for Scheduled
Castes/Scheduled Tribes, Other Backward Classes and physically handicapped persons issued from
time to time by the Government in this regard. For the monitoring of the implementation of
reservation pelicy and redressal of grievances of SC/ST/OBC employees, 2 Liaison Officer has been
appointed in OIDB. Rosters are being maintained for each category of posts as per Government
guidelines and checked by the Liaison Officer. Further there is no backlog or shortfall in the
employment of SC/ST/OBC/PH apainst their reserved guota. No complaints with regard te
harassment ordiscrimination against such employees have been received during the year.

Welfare and Empowerment of Women

0il Industry Development Board is proactive in dealing with gender issue and to promote the cause
of women empowerment OIDB has setup a Committee to attend to redressal of complaints on
'sexual harassment at workplace’. As an 31.03.2021, there are 3 women employees as against the
working strength of 16 employeesin OIDB.

Implementation of Government’s Official Language Policy

Oil Industry Development Board has implemented the Rules and Policies of Official Language Act in
its Secretariat office. OIDB also ensures implementation of annual programme issued by the
Government from time to time, OIDB continued its efforts for promation of official language in
official work. All rules/ MOUs/Agreements of OIDB are bilingual. In order to undertake the
implementation of Government’s Official Language Policy effectively an Official Language
Implementation Committee is functioning in OIDB under the Chairmanship of Secretary, OIDB. The
Committee reviews the overall progress of implementation of Official Language Policy in OIDB, as
also the progress of implementation of the annual program circulated by Department of Official
Language. OIDBis already notified under Rule 10(4) of Official Language Rules 1976.

During the year 2020-21, following activities were undertaken for promotion of Hindi as official
language:

On the occasion of Hindi Diwas, Hindi Pakhwara was organized in OIDB from 14.09.2020 to
28.09,2020, During the Pakhwara, various competitions were organized to encourage employees of
the Board to do their work in Hindi. These included Bhasha Gyan, just a minute quiz, essay, Doha
completion, etc.

During the year OIDB continued to publish its annual in-house Hindi Magazine titled “Anubhuti” and
unveiled its 17th E-issue on the occasion of OIDB’s Foundation Day (i.e. 13th January, 2021). The
magazine provided toplics related to literature, poetry, religious issues, and social experiences. This
magazine aims to disseminate interest towards Hindi besides writing in the official language. The
magazine is widely circulated between Oil PSU's and OIDB’s Grantee Institutions.
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Raj Bhasha Kirti Puraskar

Qil Industry Development Board was awarded “Raj Bhasha Kirti Puraskar” for the year 2019-20 &
2020-21 in the category ‘A’ region for autonomous bodies and boards, for its efforts towards
prometion & implementation of Hindi as the Official Language.

The award was presented by Shri Amit Shah, Honourable Minister of Home Affairs and Honourable
Minister of Cooperation, Government of India, at Vigyan Bhawan, New Delhi on the occasion of Hindi
Diwas on September 14,2021,
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Dr. Niranjan KumarSingh, Se:retar\r, 0IDB receiving the *Raj Bhasha Kirti Puruskar’
from the Honourable Shri Amit Shah , Honourable Minister of Home Affairs and
Honourable Minister of Cooperation, Government of India, on behalf of DIDEB.

During the year, the OIDB E-Calendar for the year 2021 was also released.
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Celebration of International Yoga Day

Oil Industry Development Board celebrated “International Yoga Day 2020" on online platform on
21.06.2020 held at OIDB Bhawan, Noida. All OIDB employees and employees of the grantee
arganisations located in OIDB Bhawan, Noida, participated in the “International Yoga Day".
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Celebration of the 46th Foundation Day

0il Industry Development Board celebrated its 46th Foundation day on 13th lanuary, 2021. All
officers & employees of O1DB as well as grantee organisations located in OIDB Bhawan, Noida, were
also present, On the Foundation Day, a cultural programme was organised in the auditorium of OIDB
Bhawan, Noida.

|
]
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Celebration of the Swachhta Pakhwada

Qil Industry Development Board celebrated the "Swachhta Pakhwada® during 01.07.2020 to
15.07.2020, The various activities like Pledge on Swachhta, Lecture on Hygiene, Lecture on “No
Single Use Plastic” and Distribution of Sanitization kit, cleanliness drive, awareness drive and review
of activities, etc. had been celebratedin QIDB.

8. Right to Information Act

Right to Information (RTI) Act, 2005 has been implemented in the DIDB in letter and spirit. OIDB is
already aligned to the DOPT's RT| portal where RTI applications are received/transferred/ disposed
of online, As per provisions of Section 5 and 19 of the Right to Information Act, 2005, FA&CAQ,
DCF&AD, Manager (P8A) and Section Officer are designated as Transparency Officer, Appeliate
Authority, Nodal Officer and Public Information Officer, respectively.

During the year 2020-21, 11 applications/receipts were received under RT| Act, 2005 in the OIDB. All
the 11applications/receipts were disposed of within the stipulated timeframe.
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OIL INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT BOARD

Balance Sheet As At 31.03.2021

(Rs.in Lakh)
Corpus / Capital Fund And Liabilities Sch Current Year ~ Previous Year |
; C;rpus / Capital Fund 1 | 90240 0240
| Reserves And Surplus 2 1099769 1092349
Earmarked / Endowment Funds 3 | -- - |
secured Loans And Borrowings 4 = -
UNSECURED LOANS AND BORROWINGS 5 = =
DEFERRED CREDIT LIABILITIES = _6_ = “
CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS T ?- | I;S_ZEJI 11689 |
TITﬂ;[__ | 1198333. 11942?8:
ASSETS | I
FIXED ASSETS (Net Block) | 8 7638 | 8347 |
WORK IN PROGRESS : 8 50 50 |
. INVESTMENTS - EARMARKED / ENDOWMENT FUNDS = | -: = |
iWNVEﬁﬁG&NTS-DTHERS 10 382621 382621
| CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS, ADVANCES ETC. 11 BEIESEEI. 803260
| MISCELLANEQUS EXPENDITURE I - |
{to the extent not written off or ad|usted) I |
TOTAL | 1198838| 1194278
SIGNIFICATNT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 25 = | |
| CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS 26 BT

DATE : 12.08.2021
PLACE : NEW DELHI

Sd/-
(Gautam Sen)
FA&CAO
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Sd/-
(Niranjan K. Singh)
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OIL INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT BOARD
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021

(Rs.in Lakh)
INCOME ‘ Sch [ Current Year [ Previous Year |
Income from Sales / Services | 12
Grants [ -Subsidies - —ud - 13 I = = i
Fees / Subscriptions 14 | |
[ncome from Investments ——) | 15 . - 5 ‘
Income from Royalty, Publication, Sale of Data by DGH etc. | 16 3839 9&0
Interest Earned | s 17 || Aty 54366“.__ EDUl
Other Income | 1B | Tﬁﬂ- 3508
Increase / (decrease) in stock of Finished goods and e 19 | _— ) = - .
works-in-prograss, |
3 TOTAL (A) 56029 58378
. EXPENDITURE _
Establishment Expenses | 20 385 480
Other Administrative Expenses etc. 21 1095 1142
Expenditure on Grants, Subsidies etc, 22 | 40738 | 32890
. Interest paid 23 . nl | TBE .=
_E}'ait'f to Stat‘iﬁnuernmen‘i il L s 24 = i |
Depreciation (Net Total at the year-end - corresponding 8 704 784
to Schedule 8) 5 = _ _
| = TOTAL (B) 42922 35296
'-Batam:a being excess of Income over Expenditure (A-B) e 131137-_ 23082
Less ﬂ:uismn_@it_afatiun 5687 82240
:Tmnsfertu Special Reserve (Specify each] |
iT_ra;ﬂr.fer to General Reserve
| BALANCE BEING SURPLUS CARRIED TO i 74z£: 14842 .
lCGRPUS ,-'C_A_ITITM. FUND Ahi o )
|_5IGN|F|CATN_T MIMNG POLICIES _ 25 |
| CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS % | |
For and on behalf of OIDB
Sd/- Sd/-
(Gautam Sen) (Niranjan K. Singh)
DATE : 12.08.2021 FA&CAO SECRETARY

PLACE : NEW DELHI
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OIL INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT BOARD
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2021

SCHEDULE 1 - CORPUS / CAPITAL FUND

Balance as at the beginning of the year

Add: Contributions towards Corpus / Capital Fund

| Add / [Deduct) : Balance of net income / (expenditure)

| transferred from the Income & Expenditure Account

BALANCE AS AT THE YEAR-END

SCHEDULE 2 - RESERVES AND SURPLUS
1. Capital Reserve:

As per last Account

Addition during the year

Less : Deductions during the year

2. Revaluation Reserve:

As per last Account

Addition during the year

Less : Deductions during the year

3. Special Reserves:

As per last Account

Addition during the year

Less : Deductions during the year

4. General Reserva:

As per |ast Account

Addition/ deletion during the vear

() Excess of lcome over Expenditure

(ii) less: Adjustment of tax provision etc

TOTAL:

(Rs.in Lakh)
Current Year | Previous Year
90240 | 90240
90240 | 90240
|
(Rs.in Lakh)
Current Year Previous Year
- |
| - |
' b i
{-) (-] (-)
=1 [
(-) (-] (-)
|
2| - :
| |
(-) (-) (-)
1092345 1077552
7420 14842
0 7420 | 45 14797
1099769 1092349
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OIL INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT BOARD
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2021
S ! _|{Rs..in Lakh_l_
5SCHEDU LE 4 - SECURED LOANS AND BORROWINGS: I Current Year [ Previous Year

1 Central Gnvernment

2. State Government (Specify)

3. Financial Institutions

a) Term Loans

b} Interest accrued and due

4, Banks:

| a) Term Loans NIL

- Interest accrued and due

b) Other Loans (specify)

- Interest accrued and due

5. Other Institutions and Agencies

6. Debentures and Bonds

. Others (Specify)

TOTAL:

Note: Amounts due within one year.
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OIL INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT BOARD
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2021

(Rs.in Lakh)

SCHEDULE 5 - UNSECURED LOANS AND BORROWINGS: i Current Year | Previous Year

1. Central Government

2, State Government (Specify)

3. Financial Institutions

4. Banks:

a) Term Loans

= =————— ' MIL
b} Other Loans (specify)

5. Other Institutions and Agencies

6. Debentures and Bonds

7. Fixed Deposit

8. Others (Specify)

Mote: Amounts due within ane year,

(Rs.in Lakh)

SCHEDULE 6 - DEFERRED CREDIT LIABILITIES: Current Year Previous ‘I’earl

I a) Acceptance secured by hypothecation of capital
equipment and other assets.

b) Others L

TOTAL:

Note: Amounts due within one year.
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2021

SCHEDULE 7 - CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS ‘

A. CURRENT LIABILITIES

1. A_ccepta nces

2 Sum:i'ryr Creditors:

Current Year ‘

OIL INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT BOARD

Previous Year

(Rs.in Lakh)

a) For Goods
b} Others

3. Advances Received

4. Interest accrued but not due on:

a) Secured Loans / borrowings
b) Unsecured Loans / borrowings

5. Statutory Liabilities:

a) (_luerclue
b) Others

6.0ther current liabilities

a) Royalty payable to State Government(s) & others

b} l.TaxfTDSMqrtiEDmracﬂqy payable

D 1|

10

c} Payable to Contractors
d) others (i) Outstanding - Rs. 58 Lakh
(i) Other BLL- Rs. 2705 Lakhs

(iii]Dther_- Rs. 28__5:;[!?!1_5__

. PROVISIONS

B

1

2

3 Superannuaticn} F:ensiun
= D

5

B.

e) Security Deposits including EMD

220 |

2860

f) Amount Withheld include Labour Cess

(Payable to Contractors)

. For Taxation

TOTAL (A) :

107 |
47

3344
3344

8240

. Gratuity

. Accumulated Leave Fnecashment

. Trade Warranties / Claims

Others - Provision for A_l:lf_ﬁtors Remuneration

TOTAL (B) :
TOTAL (A+B) :
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2021

SCHEDUI.E_B - INVESTMENTS FROM EARMARKED /
ENDOWMENT FUNDS

1. In Government Securities

2. Other approved Securities

OIL INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT BOARD

(Rs.in Lakh)

I Current Year ‘ Previous Year

3. Shares

4. Debentures and Bonds

|

5. Subsidiaries and loint Ventures

6. Others (to be specified)

NIL

TOTAL:

SCHEDULE 10 - INVESTMENTS - OTHERS

1. In Government Securities

Current Year

(Rs.in Lakh)

Previous Year

2. Other approved Securities
3, Shares
Blecco Lawrle Limited

4, Debentures and Bonds

5034

5034

'5. Subsidiaries and Jaint Vﬂntures{_ISPRL]l
6. Others (to be specified)

377587

377587

TOTAL:

382621

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2021

OIL INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT BOARD

(Rs.in Lakh)

Current Year

Previous Year ‘

SCHEDULE 11 - CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS, ADVANCES ETC.

SN G ; |
A. CURRENT ASSETS:
1. Inventories:

a}?&res and Spares

?Loosﬁmls

c) -Stock-in—trzﬁ
Finished Goods

Wark-in-progress

Raw Materials

“2. sundry Debtors: | |
a) Debts Outstanding for a period exceeding six months

b) Others

3. Cash balances in hand (including cheques / drafts
and imprest)

4. Bank Balances:
ém-ScheHuled Banks:
- On Current Accounts

|~ On Deposit Accounts (In FDR)

! | :
10405 15100

66

- On Saving Accounts 1(}4".-'1'

8589

23689

_h) With Non-Scheduled Banks:

= On_*.’_:urrentﬁccnunts

| -On Deposit Accounts

| - On Savings Accounts
5. Post Office - Savings Accounts
TOTAL (A) :

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21




SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2021

(Rs.in Lakh)

SCHEDULE 11 - CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS, ADVANCES ETC. Current Year ‘ Previous Year

B. LOANS, ADVANCES AND OTHER ASSETS | |

' 1. Loans: 3 _ | i

. a)staff 1 9 | 10|

b) Oil PSUs (Annexure-I1) | 762108 : 744904
c} Uthers{spec.iful;rj = |

] 762118

744914

| 2. Advances and other amounts recoverable in cash or
in kind or for value to be raceived

a) On Capital Account (Advance to ISPRL &
Mabhilization Advance) 0 0

b) Advance Rent =y 218 | 218]

c) Others {including Advance Tax, TDS, MM Cell &
Security Deposits) 22666 22884 21268 21486

3. Income Accrued: ' ' ' |

~ a) On investments from Earmarked / Endowment Funds | -

b} On Investments - Others | 11| | 57|
) On Loans and Advances - 2818 2820
Less: Provision for doubtful debts made in earlier years 2711 2711
d) Others (Data sale Proceeds From DGH) 0 119 12| 178
4. Claims Receivable
i) tax paid under protest ~ | aoses 12897
if) Accounts Receivable o 42| 12938 o5 12993
TOTAL (B) : 798059 779571
TOTAL (A+B) : 808530 | 803260

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21
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OIL INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT BOARD
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF
INCOME & EXPENDITURE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021

(Rs.in Lakh)

Current Year Previous Year

€SEHEDULE 12 - INCOME FROM SALES / SERVICES:

1. Income from Sales

a) Sales of Finished Goods

b) Sale of Raw Material

c) Sale of Scraps

2 . Income from Services

NIL
a) Labour and Processing Charges

b) Professional / Consultancy Services

c) Agency Commission and Brokerage

d) Maintenance Services (Equipment / Property)

e} Others (Specify)

i TOTAL:

[SCHEDLILE 13 - GRANTS / SUBSIDIES . Current Year Previous Year

- [Irrevocable Grants & Subsidies Received)

1) Central Government

2) State Government(s)

3) Government Agencies

4) Institutions / Welfare Bodies

— NIL
5) International Organization

6) Others (Specify)

TOTAL: |

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21
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OIL INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT BOARD
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF

ELOPMEN
Skd '

INCOME & EXPENDITURE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021

| SCHEDULE 14 - FEES / SUBSCRIPTIONS

(Rs.in Lakh)

Previous
Year

i | Current
Year

1. Entrance Fees

2. Annual Fees / Subscriptions

3. Seminar / Program Fees

:?Consultancv Fees
5, Others (Specify)

SCHEDULE 15 INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS

{Income on Investment from Earmarked /
Endowment Funds)

1. Interest

a) On Govt. Sez-:urities
~ b) Other Bonds / Debentures
j 2. Dividends:

al On Shgres

b) On Mutual Fund Securities

MIL

(Rs.in Lakh)
| Investment from

Previous | Current| Previous |
Year Year | Year

Investment from
Current
Year

NIL

3. Rents
4, Others

 TRANSFERRED TO EARMARKED / ENDOWMENT FUNDS

TOTAL:

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21
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OIL INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT BOARD

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF ,
INCOME & EXPENDITURE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021 |

{Rs.in Lakh)
:i‘::gl; 'I‘:f;;i ;ﬁ%%MHEEf;UM ROYALTY, PUBLICATION, Current Year | Previous Year
| 1. Income from Hwalw l ! .|
? Income fram F'uhhcam:.v; P . = #
3. Others-SsleofdatabyDGR. ' 369 | 969
TOTAL: - 369 969
SCHEDULE 17 - INTEREST EARNED Current Year |\ Previous Year |
1. On Term Deposits: I
I a) With Scheduled Banks( FDRs) [ 425 lzﬂﬂ
b) With Non-Scheduled E!iks [ I -
= c) With Inst-itutiuns - |
d) Others S | i - = ‘ '
| 2. On Savings Accounts: _
a) With Scheduled Banks 16 16
I_b} With Non-Scheduled Banks . e - =
| c) Post Office Savings Accounts .
-lﬂ Cthers _ b Sl i 18 .
- S:Eln Loans:
a) Employess / Staff s F L -1 0 = 1 '
b) Oil c_uﬁﬂpame_r. . 53516 41816 |
| 4, Interest on Deblors and Other Recelvables ] | [ LA
| _a]ﬁterest on Mobilisation advance Baf O ._ - 0
b) Interest on Income Tax refund 209 0 |
= ~ ToTAL: | 54866 53900 ;
Note - 'i:a; deducted at source. 5 4086 543f ' 1
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF

INCOME & EXPENDITURE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021

(Rs.in Lakh)
SCHEDULE 18 - OTHER INCOME Current Year Previous Year
1.Profit on Sales / Disposal of Assets: |
a) Owned assets !
b} Assets acguired out of grants, or received free of cost -
] [
2. Exports Incentives realised - |
| 1. Fees for Miscellaneous
| 4. Prior Period Income 0| 0
5. Miscellaneous Income (I} Rental Income ete - Rs. 308.49
(ii} Reimbursement against Grant etc Rs.  463.74 794 3508
{iii) Sundry Balances Written Back Rs. 22.00 “
TOTAL: ‘ 794 3508
SCHEDULE 19 - INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN STOCK OF Cliirait Yasr Bravivis Vaar
! FINISHED GOODS & WORK IN PROGRESS
a) Closing Stock
[ Finished Goods
- Work-in-progress NIL

b) Less: Opening Stock

- Finished Goods

- Work-in-prograss

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) [a+h)

' SCHEDULE 20 - ESTABLISHMENT EXPENSES

Current Year I Previous Year

a) Salaries and Wages

298 239

b) Allowances and Bonus

¢} Contribution 1o Provident Fund

d) Contribution to OID8 Employees Group Gratuity and Pension Fund

e) Staff Welfare Expenses including medical expenses

f) Expenses on Employzes' Retirement and Terminal Benefits

| g) Others

TOTAL:

6| 1

" R

55| 150
25 41|
Bl e

1| 1

' a80
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INCOME & EXPENDITURE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021

SCHEDULE 21 - OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES ETC.

OIL INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT BOARD

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF

a) Purchases

b} Labour and processmg expenses

c) Cartage and Carriage Inwards

d) Electricity and power

&) Water Charges

f} Insurance

g] Repairs and maintenance

h) Excise Duty

i} Rent, Rates and Taxes

il Vehicles Running and Maintenance

I} Printing and Stationery

k) Postage, Telephone and Communication Charges

m) Misc. expenses

n] Expenseson Seminar / Workshops

o} Subscription Expenses

p) Expesnes on Fees

q) Auditors Remuneration

r} Hospitality Expenses

5) Professional Charges

t) Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts / Advances

u) Irrecoverable Balances Written-off

v) Packing Charges

w) Freight and Forwarding Expenses

X} Distribution Expenses
v) Advertisement and Publicity

z) Others - Pricr Peirod Expenditure

Others
TOTAL: 410

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

(Rs.in Lakh)
l Current Year Previous Year
0 o
7 (i
0| ol
370 424 |
LS +— .
11 5
151 S0 159|
- o
R
2 18|
7 7
5| 6! |
6 3| l
8| 6|
0 0
o] 0
d-l Q I
By e
74| 51| :
— |
R
0| =0
0| 0
S R TRT |
2| 2
410 a3
1095 1142




__—":—‘*‘i.'

OIL INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT BOARD

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF
INCOME & EXPENDITURE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021

(Rs.in Lakh)
;EHEDULE 22 - EXPENDITURE ON GRANTS, SUBSIDIES ETC. Current Year Previous Year
_a] Grants given to Institutions / Qrganizations [Annexure -1 -3) 40143 32255
-.E]'Assistance [D; Govt./ OIDB sponsored Schemes & Projects = 585 [ 635
(Annexure-lll-b)
TOTAL: 40738 32890
| Note - Name of the Entities along with the amount of Grants / '
Subsidies are disclosed in Annexure- Il (3) & (b).
| SCHEDULE 23 - INTEREST PAID | CurrentYear | Previous Year
| a)Cn Fixed Loans | 0] 0
| b) @n Other Loans {including Bank Charges) U. 0
| c) Others U. 0] .
Total: D. 0
SCHEDULE 24 - PR O Current Year | Previous Year
ROYALTY TO STATE GOVERNMENTS
| ‘:-;D\ﬂ. of Arunachal Pradesh L'}! 0
| Gowi. of Gujarat . 0 | 0
| R = 3L Total: I I] o

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21
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OIL INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT BOARD

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED March 2021

SCHEDULE 25 -SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.

8.2

ACCOUNTING CONVENTION

The financial statements are prepared on the basis of accrual method except for the grant in aid that
are deemed to be incurred in the year in which they are paid and accordingly chargad torevenue.

INVESTMENTS

Long-term Investments are carried at cost. Provision for decline, other than temporary, is made in
carrying cost of such investments.

FIXED ASSETS

rixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition inclusive of duties and taxes and incidental and direct
expenses related to acquisition. In respect of projects involving construction, related pre-
operational expenses form part of the value of the assets capitalized.

DEPRECIATION

Depreciation is provided on Written down value method as per rates specified in the Incomea Tax Act,
1961. In respect of additions to / deductions from fixed assets during the year, depreciation is
considered as per Income tax Rules, Assets costing Rs.5,000/- or |ess each are fully provided.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS / SUBSIDIES

Grants are accounted on cash basis except for the Royalty payable, if any, to the various States
Government(s)/Operators, which is provided/ paid as per directions of Government.

INCOME

Interest and other income are accrued in the case of performing assets on due basis and In case of
non-performing assets, on realization basis. Performing assets are those on which the income that
became due is not unpaid for more than 90 days. Reimhursement against grant are recognised on
realizaticn basis.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are accounted at the exchange rate prevailing at the
date of the transaction.

LEASE
Lease rentals are expensed with reference tolease terms.
RETIREMENT BEMEFITS

DIDB has established two trusts namely "OIDB employees Group Gratuity Scheme” & “OIDB
employee’s superannuation Scheme” covering the liability of OIDB towards its existing employees
for the pastservice rendered. The funding to the schemes s being made through the trusts as perthe
actuarial valuation.

Provision for accumulated leave encashment benefit to the employees is accrued and computed on
the zesumption thatemployees are entitled to receive the benefitas ateach yearend.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21
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OIL INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT BOARD
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED March 2021
SCHEDULE 26— CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & NOTESONACCOUNTS
L Contingentliabilities

(a) The outstanding claims on account of TOS ason 31.03.2021 are Rs.6.95 lakhs on the basis of default
summary downloaded from TRACES (Income Tax Department) as compared to Rs.7.18 lakh as on

31.03.2020,
(b Income Tax for various assessment years against which appeals are lying pending with various
autharities as detailed below:!
Si. | Assessment | Amount involved - Status of Amount Status of the case
No. Year in appeal pending the case involved in ‘
: ufs271(1) [C) appeal pending |
[Rs. In crore) ufs 143(3) [Rs. |
' . | Incrore) | = .
1 2005-06 1.76 Penalty levied by the
L department has been |
2| 2006-07 1.85 | deleted by the Hon'hle | -
Income Tax Appellate
3 2007-08 1.40 Tribunal (ITAT) and

directed to A.O. for
re-assessment ‘

g 2008-09 4.52 Appeal is pending 5.63 Case has been set aside
before CIT(A) [restored) by ITAT to AD
and no further notice is
received till date.

2010-11 22.77 Appeal is pending 28.97 Case has been set aside
befare CIT(A) [restored) by ITAT to AD
and no further notice is
received till date.

L

6 2011-12 28.54 - 0.00

| Case has been set aside
[restored) by ITAT to AD
¥ 2012-13 | - 20.51 Revenue Appeal has been
, | dismissed by [TAT
g 2013-14 - 3.85 Appeal is pending before
| CITIA)
g 2014-15 | ! 14.71 Appeal is pending before
| . CIT(A)
10 2017-18 | - 35.80 Appeal is pending before
| CIT(A)
TOTAL | 59.08 109.57
Further for AY 2009-10, Income Tax Department’s appeal before |TAT has been setaside to assessing
officer, which is having contingent liability to the extent of Rs 17.74 crares.
(c) An Arbitration claim of Rs. 180,41 lakh was filed by M/s Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Ltd. (Godrej), against

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21




OIDB in respect of short payment and deduction related to the Work Order for Interior works of G+3
block of OIDE Bhawan. In the said arbitration case, OIDB lodged a counter claim of Rs.384 lakhs
(approx) for loss of rental including maintenance and electricity charge due to delayin completion of
work by M/s Godre] & Boyce Mfg. Ltd.

The Arbitrator by the award dated 30.01.2021 allowed claim of Godrej to the extent of Rs.62.78 lakhs
with 12% interest and refused to entertain OIDB's counter claims. OIDB challenged the Award in
Hon'ble Delhi High Court, However, the Hon’ble High Court vide judgment order dated 16.09.2019
upheld the sum awarded to Godrej and further held that Counter Claim of OIDB could not be
rejected without considering the same. The Hon'ble Court gave liberty to pursue OIDB's counter
claim underlaw. Accordingly, CIDB requested the arbitrator for adjudicating O/DB’s counter claim.

However, Godrej has simultaneously filed an application in court for release of awarded sum from
OIDB. The said petition is being contestea by OIDB on the ground that the sum to be released to
Godrejshall get determined only after counter claim of OIDBis settled by Arbitrator.

2. COMMITMENTS
Capital

A) Thevalue ofthe final bills amounting to Rs. 119 lakhs (approx.) has not been considered for want of
clarifications from PMC and contractors,

B) OIDB has not paid any amount to M/s Indian Strategic Petroleum Reserves Limited (ISPRL) for
investment as equity in the Company up to end of March 2021 (Previous Year Rs. 377587 lalchs). The
company has already allotted and issued 3,77,58,74,670 share certificates of Rs.10/- each for the
total amount of Rs. 3775,87,46,700/-to0 OIDB's Demat Account.

3. CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS E ADVANCES

a) Loan Amounting to Rs.32.76 crore given to Biecco Lawrie Ltd (BLL) was converted into equity of OIDB
in the company on the directions of Government. The Share Certificate has also been received. After
conversion of this loan into equity, the total equity of OIDB in Biecco Lawrie Ltd was enhanced from
Rs.17.58 crore to Rs.50.34 Crore which is 67.33% of the total equity of the company.

CCEA had also approved reduction of equity capital of BLL from Rs.74.76 Crore to Rs.15.16 Crore by
setting off accumulated losses to the extent of Rs.59.60 Crore. The reduction in the equity capital of
ALL would entail a loss to OIDB to the tune of Rs. 40,13 Crore due the fact that OIDB's equity of
Rs5.50.34 Crore would beslashed to Rs. 10.21 crore at the ratio of 4.93:1.

The matter relating to writing off of OIDB losses due to reduction in equity capital of BLLwill be taken
up to the OIDB Board/Central Government for approval after BLL comply with requirements of The
Companies Act. After getting Central Government approval, the loss will be provided in the books of
Accounts of OIDB as per Accounting Standard-13 of ICAL

As per the approval of CCEA communicated by MoP&NG vide is letter dated 16.10.2018, OIDB has
provided an interest free loan of Rs.86.65 crore to BLL in relaxation of usualterms & condition of loan
to meet the liabilities arising as a result of closure of BLL such as to meet VRS cost, liguidation of
statutory dues including outstanding salary of BLL employees, contingent liabilities etc. Out of
Rs.86.65 crore, OIDB has released Rs.71.77 crore during FY. 2018-19 & Rs. 14.88 crore during FY.
2019-20 to BLL. Necessary provision would be made only after final closure of the company after
setting off of realizable amount from sale of movable/ immovable assets of BLL.

\n addition to this, OIDB has received Rs.27.05 crore during 2019-20 from MoP&NG (as custodian to
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be relezsed to BLL on behalf of MoP&NG for closure activities of BLL).The utilization advice of the
same is awaited form MaP&NG,

Provision for doubtful debt towards interest recoverable to the extent of Rs.2443 lakh from Canfina
and Rs.268 lakh frorm Bieeco Lawrie Ltd. has been provided. The Canfina matter relates to securities
under UTI 1964 Scheme Units and is under litigation. As the recovery of these amounts continue te
remains doubtful, the same has already been provided in the accounts as ‘doubtful debt’ as par
existing accounting practice.

The OIDB has decided not to charge any rent and maintenance charge from its grantees institutes.
Therefore neither any recovery has been made from the grantee institutions nor did any recoverable
amount is provided in the accounts towards rent & maintenance charges from the grantee
institutions. ISPRLthe wholly subsidiary of QiDBis also exempted from payment of rent.

Proportionate cost of telephane, Facility Management, Electricity and diesel Charges as incurred by
OIDB during the year have been debited to the ISPRL.

TAXATION-As OIDB is a tax paying entity under Income Tax Act 1961 and therefare provision for
Income tax has been considered necessary. The attached Profit & Loss Account (Annexure- 1) has
been prepared for arriving at the amount of income tax payable to Income Tax Department after
being notified asan eligible institute for deduction under Section 36{1) (xii) of Income Tax Act.

interest from BLL amounting to Rs 95.15 lakhs has not been recorded in Income as ger clause 6 of
Schedule-25 Significant Accounting Policy of the Balance sheet.

In terms of the provisions of the AS-15, issued by the |CA| for creation of Superannuation and
Gratuity Fund for retirement henafits of its existing employess, the Board has created two separate
trusts Viz. ‘OIDB Employees Superannuation Scheme’ and "0OIDB employees Gratuity Schema”,

OIDB has applied for the exemption to Income Tax Department under Part ‘B and part 'C’ of the
Fourth Schedule of Income Tax Act, 1961 for its contribution to the "OIDB employees Gratuity
Scheme” and "0I1DB employees Superannuation Scheme”, respectively. The outcome of the same
gre awaited,

Provision of Taxation includes Rs.85.00 lakhs for the FY. 2019-20.

Accounting Standards as issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India have been
followed, tothe extent applicable.

Schedules 1 to 26 are annexed and ferm an integral part of the Income & Expenditure Account &
Balance Sheetasat 31% March, 2021.

Figures in Balance Sheet, Income & Expenditure account, Profit & Loss Account and Schedules have
been rounded off to the nearest lzkh of Rupees. Corresponding figures for the previous years have
been regrouped /rearranged wherever necessary.

For and on behalf of OIDB

Sd/ Sd/
(Gautam Sen) (Niranjan K. Singh)

DATE : 12.08,2021 FAECAO SECRETARY
PLACE : NEW DELHI
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Annexure-|
(Ref.Schedule 26, note no.4(a))

OIL INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT BOARD
Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Particulars

Incame

Interest Income

Incame from Investment

Other income

Total

Expenditure

Expenses on direct operation

Salaries and amenties to staff

Administrative expenses

Depreciation on Fixed Assets Rs. 720

Less:- Previous years Amortization Rs. 16

| Total

Profit for the year

Profit before tax

|Less : Provision for taxation

Net Profit after tax carried to balance sheet

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes on Accounts

DATE : 12.08.2021
PLACE : NEW DELHI

(Gautam Sen)

Fibcus (Rs.in Lak_hl
'sch No. 202021 | 201920
17 54866 53900
15 0 0
16818 1163 4478
e A
|
122824 40738 32890
|20 | 385 480
e O 1005, 1142 |
| I 704 784
7 " am22| 3529
P 13107 23082
o= 13107 23082
3537i 8240
7420 14842

25826

For and an behalf of OIDB

Sd/-
(Niranjan K. Singh)
SECRETARY
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(Refer Schedule-11(B)

Details of outstanding balance of loan
as on 31st March, 2021 from Oil PSUs

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

(Rs.in Lakh)
S1.No. | Name of the 0.B. ason Loan Disbursed = Loan received Back C.B.ason
| . Company 01042020 | during2020-21 during2020-21 | 31.03.2021
1 | oc 32,781.00 | 43,700.00 17,78125 | 58,698.75 \
2 | eecL 1,18,731.00 T S - 39.?5;00_ | 78,075, 00
3 | Hee 2,63,119.00 ! 10,000.00 18,119.00 |2,85,000. 00 |
4 | scpL | 1,01,036.00 |  9,669.00 2138375 | 8932125
5 BLL |  98e5.00 L - - | 9,865.00
6 | MRPL | 53,900.00 ‘ 5,525.00 6,70000 | 52,725.00
7 GAIL Gas Ltd., 15,472.00 | 20,443.00 2142.00 | 33,773.00
8 | crel 35,000.00 | 20,000.00 1,250.00 | 53,750.00
9 GAIL(India) Ltd. 85,000.00 | 15,000.00 ~ |2,00,000.00
' Total 7,44,004.00 | 1,24,337.00 1,07,132.00 |7,62,109.00 |
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Annexure-lll (a)
( Reference Schedule-22)

Statement Showing payments of grants during 2020-21

(Rs.in Lakh)
' IE’L _ Name of the Institutes ‘ 2020-21 2019-20
|__! = een <=
‘ A. Regular Grantee Institutes
1 i Directorate General of Hydrocarbons 17634 15291 l
2 Petroleum Conservation Research Association | 6000 | 6730 i
3 Centre for High Technology 1525 i 1808 '
! | | =
4 Petroleum Planning & Analysis Cell 2205 2261 |
= | Qil Industry Safety Directorate 2288 2165
Total (A) . 29702 | 32255
— | L = e ! =
‘ B | R&D Grants I |
11 | IOCL (Lanza Tech) ' 10338 0
2 | ONCG LTD 41 0
3 [T ISM Dhanbad , 62 | 0
| Total (B) 10441 | 0
| ' Total (A+B) ao0143 | 32255
Annexure-lli (b)
[ Reference Schedule-22)
Expenditure on Schemes/
Projects sponsored by Govt. of India/OIDB during 2020-21 3
(Rs.in Lakh)
o= | Cal = e ) II|
| 2k Name of the Institutes 2020-21 2019-20 W |
1 Indian Strategic Pertoleum Reserves Limited 595 635
Total (C) 595 635
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OIL INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT BOARD

RECEIPTS AND PAYMENT FOR

THE YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2021

(Rs.in Lakh)
|RECEIPTS 202021 | 2019-20 [PAYMENTS | 202021 | 2019-20
I. Opening Balance :_ I Expenses
a) Cash-in- H.aﬁé“ D.Ui'; Tk -.z'l Esta.bllshmenk Expenses 16 .F'.I‘_-ll 20814
b)Bank Balances | - b) Administrative [xpenses 1046 74| 626.88
I—u;;ﬁlln mrrnnt..al:l:nur'lt - =7
i) In mﬂu_ni - | Il. Payments made against
funds for various Projects
iii) In savings account 858032 B7.38  a) Grantto IIT G1.08| -
i = " B) Grant to ISPRL 584 01 | 635.00
| ¢} Grant to ONGC 4130|
Il. Grants Received d) Grant to CHT 1,519.23 1,810.13
| ) From Government of India - e)Grant to DGH 17,300.00| 18,261.00
I:r].l rom State Government = f:; Grant to 015D 2.279.B0 . 216505
¢| From other Sources | g} Grant to PCRA 5580.16]  65,730.00
| "h) Grant 1a PPAC 2,204.80|  2,260.57
i) Grant to 1OCL 10,338 00
. .IIII Income on Investment fram T I
| a) Fixed Deposits  79,060.00| 823,215.07 | l)investment and Depasit made |
bOwn Funds (other investments) | 107,132.25| 111,548.06 | a) Fixed Depﬂsl‘s 74.365.00| 525,085.00
==y | b)Out of Own Funds (other 124,337.00| 421,413.53
nvestments)
IV) Interest Received IV) Expenditure on Fixed Assets
and Capital wnrk in -process
a) On Bank deposits = a,- Purchase of flxed Asset 2ma| 1537
| T:r-]__i_nansJ a{_!-;r;c_es_ett 5_3_5_15‘.?5__ 4]:1§§de1 bl Expendlture m Camtal | i
. | Work-in-progress -
ciSaving a/c 17.82| 13.17
d|Fixed Deposits 459.3-1; 16,546.84 | V) Refund of Surplus Money/Loans
a) Ta rhe Govarnment of india n [
_ | b)To the State Government .
| V] Other income | c©) To other provider of funds 11,318.67
ajFrom Rent 415.?1; 451,70 |
B) from Fixed Assets 0.37| 3 V) Finance Charge (Interest)
£) From Establishment E = s P S
| d) From Administration ] - -Ulﬂﬂ‘l‘j'ler Payments d ol
| &) 5ala of Data | a) Business Provisions ]
l2W i | | b) Other Fayables BB24.58 9,000.27
| VI] Amount Borrowed |
a) Loans & Advances B 9_8_3 ?Ei - | VIll) Closing Balances ol |
i | | a) Cashin Hand 0.01 0.02
[ b) Bank Balances
‘I.IEI_J_Any other Reneiptq ' | i) In current account
a) Unspent Grant receivad b;uk 463 ?d: 3.047.05 | ||] In depa;u account >
b]_ Other M|5_:_FII|.’|-|FHLJF r&n_:_gmf-_! 4 fil) In savings account 63.73 B,SEH
_TOTAL | 258,648.08, 996,300.28 TOTAL 258,648.08| 996,800.28 |
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Separate Audit Report of the Comptroller and Auditor General of Iindia on the Annual Accounts of Oil
Industry Development Board, Noida for the year ended 31 March 2021..

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Oil Industry Development Board (OIDB) as at 31
March 2021 and the Income & Expenditure Account for the year ended on that date under Section
19(2) of the Comptrollerand Auditor-General's (Duties, Powers and Conditions of Service) Act, 1971
read with Section 20(2) of the Oil Industry (Developmeant) Act, 1974. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Management of OIDB. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on aur audit.

This Separate Audit Report contains the comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India
(CAG) on the accounting treatment only with regard to classification, conformity with the best
practices, accounting standards and disclosure norms etc. Audit observations on financial
statements with regard to compliance with the Law, Rules & Regulations (Propriety and Regularity)
and efficiency-cum-performance aspacts ete,, if any, are reported through Inspection Report/CAG's
Audit Reports separately.

We have conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India.
These standards require that we plan and perform the auditto obtainreasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatements. The audit included
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. This also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by Management, as well as evaluating the cverall presentation of financial statements. We
helieve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our apinion.

Based onouraudit, we report that:

i We have obtained all the information and explanations, whichtothe bestof our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit,

ii. The Balance Sheet and Income & Expenditure Account dealt with by this Report have been
drawn up in the form of the format for Autonomous Bodies prescribed by CRAG of India in
theyear2007.

iii. Inour opinion, proper books of accounts and other relevant records have been maintained
by OIDB in so far as it appears from our examination of such boaks.

iv. We further report that:

Comments on Accounts:

A.
Al

Balance Sheet
Fixed Asset (Net Block) (Schedule-8): Rs.7638 lakh

The above includes an amount of Rs.995 lakh pertain to Leasehold Land at Dwarka-Delhi acquired by
Oil Industry Development Board, Noida from Delhi Development Authority.

As per Lease Agreement, accounting for land should have been done at a cost of Rs.940 |akh#t instead
of Rs.995 Lakh. Thus, the value of land was overstated by Rs.55.00 lakh.

Rs.8,98,04,935+Rs.41,40,035+Rs.50,000+Rs,100=Rs.9,39,95,070 i.e. say Rs. 940 lakh
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B.3

Income & Expenditure Account

Dther Administrative Expenses —Provision for bad & doubtful debts/ advances:  Rs. NIL

Balance Sheet
Investment — Other (Schedule-10): Rs.382621 lakh

M/s. Biecco Lawrie Limited (BLL), a loss making company, was declared as sick industrial company in
October 2015 and Cabinet Committee on Economic Affairs (CCEA) has also approved its closure in
February 2018, As informed by M/s. BLL, as on 31 March 2021, it has accumulated losses of
Rs.190.07 crore with a negative networthof Rs.115 crore.

Thus, investment is overstated by Rs.5034 |akh due to nen-reduction of equity investment in M/s
Biecco Lawrie Limited (BLL) in line with the decision of CCEA. Consequently, ‘Excess of Income over
Expenditure'isalso over stated by the same amount.

Despite, CAG of India's commeant on the accounts of OIDBin the earlier years (2017- 18, 2018-19 and
2019-20), the Board has not provided for diminution in the value of investment in equity shares of
BLL.

Other Administrative Expenses - Provision for bad & doubtful debts/ advances: Rs. NIL

Balance Sheet
Current Assets, Loans, Advances etc. (Schedule 11): Rs. 808530 lakh

Considering the poor financial condition of M/s. Biecco Lawrie Limited there is no reasonable
certainty of recovering thefollowing loanamounts givento BLL:-

(i) Bridge loan of Rs.1200 lakh given to M/s. Biecco Lawrie Limited through payments of instalments
were not forthcoming.

(ii) Loan of Rs.8665 lakh given to M/s. Biecco Lawrie Limited during the years 2018-19 and 2018-20
for meeting out the expected expenditure on voluntary retirement scheme, cost of existing
employees, outstanding salary dues of employee secured loans from banks and Contingent
liabilities.

Non-provision of the above uncertain/doubtful recoverable loans has resulted into overstatement
of 'Current Assets, Loans, Advances etc.' and 'Excess of Income over Expenditure’ by Rs,.9865 lakh,

Despite, CAG of India's comment on the accounts of OIDB in the earlier years (2017-18, 2018-19 and
2019-20), the Board has not made provision against the loans given to BLL.

Other Administrative Expensesetc.: Rs.1095 lakh
Depreciation: Rs.704 lakh
Balance Sheet

Fixed Assets (Net): Building [on leasehold land): Rs.3991 lakh
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Anamount of Rs.47 lakh had wrongly been capitalize under the head 'Land- Leasehold Noida Land'
which included advance lease rent of Rs.21 lakh paid, during 2006-07. Conseguent upon audit
objection raised during the previous year audit, the same has been de-capitalized from Land during
current year {i.e. 2020-21). It was, however, observed that instead of charging Rs.21 lakh (i.e.
advance |lease rent) to Income & Expenditure Account and capitalizing Rs.26 lakh into 'Building on
Lease Land', OIDB has capitalized the entire amount of Rs.47 lakh into 'Building on Lease Land'.
Further, anamount of Rs.2.10 |akh has been charged as Depreciation, against the capitalized amount
of advance lease rent.

This has resulted into Overstatement of 'Building on Leasehold Land' by Rs.21 lakh, overstatement of
'Depreciation’ by 2.10 lakh, understatement of 'Other Administrative Expenses' by Rs.21 lakh and
consequential overstatement of 'Excess of income over expenditure' by Rs.18.90 lakh.

Grant-in-aid

OIDB has not received any grant from Government and Government agencies during the year 2020-
21.

Management Letter

Deficiencies which have not been included in the Audit Report have been brought to the notice of
the Secretary Oil Industry Development Board, through a Management Letter issued separately for
remedial/corrective actions.

W Attention Is also drawn to the significant matters stated in Annexure to thisReport.

wi. Subject to our observation in the preceding paragraphs, we report that the Balance Sheet
and Income & Expenditure Account dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of accounts.

wii In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to

us, the said financial statements read together with the Accounting Policies and Notes on
Accounts, and subject to matters mentioned in the Annexure to this Separate Audit Report,
give atrue and fair view in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in India:

a) In 5o far as it relates to the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Oil Industry
Development Board as at 31 March 2021; and

b) In so far as it relates to Income & Expenditure Account, of the excess of Expenditure
overincomeaforthe yearended on that date.

Far and on behalf of CRAG of India
5d/-

(C. M. Sane)

Director General of Commercial Audit
Mumbai
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Annexure

{Referred to in Para 4 (v}}

P . |
Adequacy of Internal OIDB hadappointed M/s Susheel Gupta & Co. Chartered Accountants as

| Audit System

Adeguacy of Internal
Control

5 f Physical

ystem o
Verification of Fixed
| Assets

‘ Regularity in payments
of statutory Dues
applicahtetn_tﬂam.

Internal Auditor for the year under review. There the job responsibility
included internal control system review of Annual Accounts and assist in
Internal control system and tax advisory services. It is further Informed
that the new contract has been awarded to M/s. V.K. Dhingra & Co.,
Chartered Accountants and the work related to audit of contracts
entered into by OIDB has been specificallyincorporated.

The major portion of the grant released by OIDB to its graniee
institutions is to meet their salary and allowances and other routine
administrative expenses. Asregards monitoring of proper utilization of
grant, the grantee institutions are required to furnish their monthly
demand in the prescribed Proforma, devised by OIDB, which includes
details of head-wise approved budget and expenditure incurred till
previous month & demand for the current month. All proposals are
received in the prescribed Proforma and are examined with respect to
approved head-wise budget before releasing grants. Scrutiny of these
details enables OIDBtoensure thatneither the expenditure isincurred
in excess of the budgeted grant nor there is idling of funds because
release  of grants depend upon the utilization of grants
released/utilized till the previous month. At the end of the financial
year, Utilization Certificates are also obtained in the GFR prescribed
formatalong with audited statements of accounts.

Board is apprised of the status of utilization of grants in its various
meetings. Further, the budget estimates of all grantee organizations are
approved by OID Board followed by Central Gavernment approval.
However, no effective mechanism has been developed to monitor the
manner of proper utilization of grants in view of unspent balances with
Grantees.

As per CAG audit observations to maintain asset register in proper
manner as per GFR format-22, the work relating to physical verification
of assets and preparation of Fixed Asset Register in the prescribed
farmat as defined in the GFR was assigned to M/s Deepak Bhargava &
Associates, Chartered Accountants. The Asset Register upto the FY.
2020-21, in the prescribed format has been prepared and physical
verification of assets was also done.

All taxes and statutory dues have been paid on time during the year
underreview.

Sd/-

(C. M. Saneg)

Director General of Commercial Audit
Mumbai
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Balance Sheet

A.1 Fixed Asset (Net Block) (Schedule-8): Rs.7638

HNDUST,

C&AG AUDIT OBSERVATION ON THE ACCOUNTS OF OIDB

il
=

Y DEVELOPME
i3}

FOR THE F.Y. 2020-21 AND OIDB’S REPLIES THERETO

Audit Observation

lakh

The above includes an amount of Rs.995 lakh
pertain to Leasehold Land at Dwarka-Delhi
acquired by Oil Industry Development Board,
Noida fram Delhi Development Authaority.

As per Lease Agreement, accounting for land
should have been done at a cost of Rs.940 lakh#
instead of Rs.995 Lakh. Thus, the value of land |
was overstated by Rs.55.00 lakh. |

Replies

The observation of audit has been noted
and necessary rectification will be done
while finalizing the Annual Accounts for the
FY.2021-22.

Income & Expenditure Account |

B.1 Other Administrative Expenses — Provision for |

bad & doubtful debts/ advances: Rs.NIL |

BalanceSheet

Investment — Other (Schedule-10): Rs.382621
lakh

M/s. Biecco Lawrie Limited (BLL), a loss making |
company, was deciared as sick industrial |
company in October 2015 and Cabinet :
Committee on Economic Affairs (CCEA) has also
approved its closure in February 2018, As
informed by M/s. BLL, as on 31 March 2021, it |
has accumulated losses of Rs.190.07 crore with
a negative net worth of Rs.115 crore.

Thus, investment is overstated by Rs.5034 [akh
due to non-reduction of equity invastment in
M/s Biecco Lawrie Limited (BLL) in line with the
decision of CCEA. Consequently, 'Excess of
Income over Expenditure’ is also over stated by
the sameamount,

Despite, CAG of India's comment an the
accounts of OIDB in the earlier years (2017~ 18,
2018-19 and 2019-20), the Board has not
provided for diminution in the value of
investmentinequity shares of BLL.

ANNUAL REPORT
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Audit was informed earlier also that M/s.
BLL, vide their letter No. BLL/MD/DCO/
2015-16/017 dated 17.06.2015, had
informed that the company has been
declared sick industrial company in October
2015, within the meaning of Section 3({1){a)
of the Sick Industrial Companies (Special
Provisions) Act, 1285 and in view of this,
capital reduction of the Company has been
keptin aheyance. Since there is nochange in
the status, Board has not provided for
diminution in the value of investment in
equityshares of BLL.

Further, Audit was alsa informed that
Cabinet Committee on Fconomic Affairs
(CCEA) In its meeting held on 10.02.2018
has approved closure of BLL and
administrative Ministry i.e. Ministry of

Petroleum & Natural Gas also conveyed the

2020-21
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Other Administrative Expenses - Provision for
bad & doubtful debts/ advances:  Rs.NIL

Balance Sheet

Current Assets, Loans, Advances etc. (Schedule
11): Rs.808530lakh

Considering the poor financial condition of /s,
Biecco Lawrie Limited there is no reasonable
certainty of recovering the following loan
amounts giventoBLL:-

(i) Bridge loan of Rs.1200 lakh given to M/s,
Biecco Lawrie Limited through payments of
instalments were not forthcoming.

(i) Loan of R5.8665 lakh given to M/s. Biecco
Lawrie Limited during the years 2018-15 and
2019-20 for meeting out the expected
expenditure on voluntary retirement scheme,
cost of existing employees, outstanding salary
dues of employee secured loans from banks
and Contingent liabilities.

Non-provision of the above uncertain/doubtful
recoverable loans has resulted into
overstaternent of 'Current Assets, Loans,

CCEA decision to BLL vide letter No.P-
25011/103/2018-LPG (Val.ll) dated
16.10.2018 with instructions to follow DPE
puidelines dated 14.06,2018 on time bound
closure of sick loss making CPSEs. The final

Advances etc,' and 'Excess of Income ower |

Expenditure' by Rs.9865 lakh.

Despite, CAG of India's comment on the
accounts of OIDB in the earlier years (2017-18,
2018-19 and 2019-20), the Board has not made
provision against the loans given to BLL.

Other Administrative Expensesetc.: R5.1095
lakh

Depreciation: Rs.704 lakh
Balance Sheet

Fixed Assets (Net): Building (on leasehold
land): Rs.3991 lakh

An amount of Rs.47 lakh had wrongly been
capitalize under the head 'Land- Leasehold
Noida Land' which included advance lease rent
of Rs.21 lakh paid, during 2006-07. Consequent
upen audit objection raised during the previous
year audit, the same has been de-capitalized

view on this issue, including amount
realisable by OIDB has not yet emerged.
CAG was informed about this status vide
OIDB8's letter dated 7.10.20189.

0ID Board, in its 100th meeting held on
19.3.2020, was also apprised about the said
audit observation. Board directed that
CRAG may be apprised that necessary
provision would be made only after final
closure of the company after setting off
realizable amount from sale of
movable/immovable assets of BLL Board
was informed that C&AG has already been
infarmed onthese lines.

Further, proper disclosure in this regard has
also been made in the Annual Accounts
2018-20in Schedule 25 : Notes on Accounts.

These transactions pertain to FEY. 2006-
2007, whereas QIDB Bhawan constructed
on Plot no. 02, Sector-73 was capitalized in
the FY. 2011-12, As per established

| accounting practice, all the expenses prior

to capitalization should be capitalized.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21




from Land during current year (i.e. 2020-21), It
was, however, observed that instead of
charging Rs.21 lakh (i.e. advance lease rent) to
Income & Expenditure Account and capitalizing
Rs.26 lakh into 'Building on Lease Land’, OIDB
has capitalized the entire amount of Rs.47 lakh
intc 'Building on Lease Lland’. Further, an
amount of Rs.2.10 lakh has been charged as
Depreciation, against the capitalized amount of
advance |easerent,

This has resulted into Overstatement of
'‘Building on Leasehold Land' by Rs.21 lakh,
overstatement of ‘Depreciation’' by 2.10 lakh,
understatement of 'Other Administrative
Expenses’ by Rs.21 lakh and consequential
overstatement of 'Excess of income over
expenditure' by Rs.18.90 |akh.

Hence, correct accounting has been
followed.

Since, correct accounting treatment has
heen piven related to Noida land as
mentioned above, depreciation has not
been averstated.

Grant-in-aid

OIDB has not received any grant from Government
and Government agencies during the year 2020-
2021.

Factual position.
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Audit Observation

Adequacy of Internal Control System

OIDB had appointed M/s Susheel Gupta &
Co. Chartered Accountants as Internal
Auditor for the year under review. Thare
the job responsibility included internal
| contral system review of Annual Accounts
and assistin Internal control system and tax
advisory services. It is further Informed
| that the new contract has been awarded to

M/s. V.K. Dhingra & Co., Chartered

Accountants and the work related to audit

of contracts entered into by OIDB has been
| specifically incorporated.

[
| Adequacy of Internal Control

The major partion of the grant released by
OIDB to its grantee institutions is to meet
their salary and allowances and other
routine administrative expenses. As
regards manitoring of proper utilization of
grant, the grantee institutions are required
to furnish their monthly demand in the
prescribed Proforma, devised by OIDSB,
which includes details of head-wise
approved budget and expenditure incurred
| till previous month & demand for the
current manth. All proposals are received
in the prescribed Proforma and are
examined with respect to approved head-
wise budget before releasing grants.
Scrutiny of these detgils enables QIDB to
ensure that neither the expenditure s

nor there is idling of funds because release
of grants depend upon the utilization of
grants released/utilized till the previous
month. At the end of the financial year,
Utilization Certificates are also obtained in
the GFR prescribed format along with
audited statements of accounts.

incurred in excess of the budgeted grant |

Annexure
{Referred to in Para 4 (v}}

Replies

As already informed to Audit, that the new contract
has been awarded to M/fs. V.K. Dhingra & Co,
Chartered Accountants and the work related to
audit of contracts entered into by OIDB has been
specifically incorporated.

While releasing grants to its grantee institutions,
necessary checks have been ensured as mentioned
in the para itselfi.e. grantee institutions are required
to furnish their monthly demand in the prescribed
Proforma, devised by OIDB, which includes details of
head-wise approved budget and expenditure
incurred till previous month & demand for the
current month. All proposals are received in the
prescribed Proforma and are examined with respect
to approved head-wise budget before releasing
grants. Scrutiny of these details enables OIDB to
ensure that neither the expenditure is incurred in |
excess of the budgeted grant nor there is idling of |
funds because release of grants depend upon the

utilization of grants released/utilized till the

previous month,

At the end of the financial year Utilization
Certificates are also obtained in the GFR prescribed
format along with audited statements of accounts.
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Board is apprised of the status of utilization
of grants In its various meetings. Further,
the budget estimates of all grantee
organizations are approved by CID Board
followed by Central Government approval.

However, no effective mechanism has
been developed to monitor the manner of

unspent balances with Grantees.

System of Physical Verification of Fixed
Assets

As per CAG audit cbservations to maintain
asset register in proper manner as per GFR
format-22, the work relating to physical
verification of assets and preparation of
Fixed Asset Register in the prescribed
| format as defined in the GFR was assigned
to M/s. Despak Bhargava & Associates,
Chartered Accountants. The Asset Register
| upto the FY. 2020-21, in the prescribed
format has been prepared and physical
verification of assets was also done.

Regularity in payments of statutory Dues
applicable tothem.

All taxes and statutory dues have been paid
ontime duringthe yearunder review,

proper utilization of grants in view of |

Board is apprised of the status of utilization of grants
in all its meetings. Further, the budget estimates of
all grantee organizations are approved by OID Board
followed by Central Government appraoval.

Besides above, the activities carried out by these
organisations are incorporated inthe Annual Report
of OIDB with photographs of the ewvents. The
progress of these organisations are afso being
reviewed regularly by their respective
Administrative Council/Governing Body/Safety
Council etc.

Factual position.

Factual position.
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT

The Shareholders,
Indian Strategic Petroleum Reserves Limited

The Board of Directors of your Company is pleased to present the17" Annual Report on the working of
the Company for the Financial Year ended 31" March, 2021 together with the Audited Statement of
Accounts and Auditor's Report thereon.

FINANCIALRESULTS

The Highlights of the Financial Results of your Company for the Financial Year ended 317 March, 2021
areasunder:

5.No. Particulars Figures in Lakhs
31" March, 2021 |31" March, 2020

1 | Gross Fixed Assets (Tangible & Intangible) 373685.45 374309.26
Less - Accumulated Depreciation 38575.39 28692.11
Net Fixed Assets 335110.06 345617.15

2 | Total Non Current Assets 10616.68 694.15

3 | Total Current Assets 20559.96 78322.44
Total Assets 366286.70 424633.74

4 | Total Equities including accumuiated Losses 334051.81 344103.18

5 | Total Non Current Liabilities 562.12 870.14

6 | Total Current Liabilities 31672.77 79660.42
Total Liahilities 366286.70 424633.74
Items of Profit and Loss Account

1 | Total Incomes including prior period adjustments, if any 599.01 464.22

2 | Total Expenses including Depreciation 10650.38 10624.11
Net Loss for the period (1) - (2) -10051.37 -10159.89
Phase Il (Receipts and Expenditure)

1 | Total Grant received during the year for Phase || project 10051.30 635.00
(on net basis) including Advence for land

2 | Total Expenditure incurred during the year under Phase || 10586.53 29.68
including provisions for payable

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

To ensure energy security, Government of India had decided to build a strategic crude oil reserve of
5.33 MMT through a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV). The SPV Indian Strategic Petroleum Reserves
Limited (ISPRL) was initially a subsidiary of Indian Oil Corporation Limited, which w.e.f. 09.05.2006,
became a wholly owned subsidiary of Qil Industry Development Board (QIDB).
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View of underground strategic cavern

View of ohove ground facilities at cavern area
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Under Phase | of Strategic Petroleum Reserve (SPR) program, Government through ISPRL has built SPR
facilities with a total capacity of 5.33 MMT at three locations viz. Visakhapatnam (1.33 MMT),
Mangalore (1.5 MMT) and Padur (2.5 MMT). The total reserve of Phase-| of SPRis currently estimated
to supply approximately 9.5 days of India's crude requirement.

All the three facilities i.e. Visakhapatnam, Mangalore & Padur have been commissioned in June'2015,
October'2016 and December'2018 respectively. All these three facilities were dedicated to the Nation
by Hon'ble Prime Minister on 10" February'2019.

ISPRL Crude was first time released for Mangalore Refinery and Petrochemicals Limited (MRPL) from
ISPRL Mangalore Cavern in August 2019, Subsequently crude oil was released from Padur facility also
to MRPLin October 2018.

The COVID-19 pandemic that gripped the world, and effected lockdowns globally, impacted the crude
oil demand world over and India was no exception. The refineries operated at a bare minimum
capacities, as a result of drastic reduction in the demand for petroleum products. This coupled with
increase in supply of crude, resulted in a demand supply imbalance which saw the crude oil prices
nosedive across the globe. To take advantage of the prevailing low crude oil prices, Govt. of India
decided to fill the Strategic Reserves on priority.

o

Secretary, MoPNG at Padur site
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To leverage the down turn in global crude prices, Government of India allocated Rs.3,000 Crore
towards filling the SPRs in Phase-| during the year 2020-21.

MoPNG, advised the Oil Marketing Companies (OMCs), BPCL, |OCL, HPCLand MRPL tofill the crudein
the SPRs. Approximately, 16.37 million bbls for Mangalore and Padur and 0.34 million bbls of crude oil
for Vishakhapatnam, thus total of 16.71 Million bbls was procured for filling the SPR' The strategic
reserves at all the three locations were completely filled during April & May‘2020, and a small
quantity in October 2020.

The average cost of procurement was 195/bbl as compared to US$60 per bbl prevailing at the
beginning of the year in Jan 2020. This resulted in substantial savings to Govt. of India to the tune of
Rs. 5069 Crore (US$685.11 Million).

Secretary, MoPNG being briefed at Padur Site
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Board has constituted the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee comprised of the following
Directors ason 31*March, 2021:

(1) Shri Rajesh Aggarwal J Chairman
Additional Secretary & Financial Advisor,
MoP&NG/Director, ISPRL

(ii)  Shri HPS Ahuja ) Member
CEOQ & MD, ISPRL

The number and dates of the meetings held during the financial year indicating the number of
meetings attended by each director is given at Annexure-A,

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). The NRC
comprised of the following Directors ason 31" March, 2021 :

(i) Shri B. N. Reddy : Chairman
Joint Secretary (IC), MoP&NG/Director, ISPRL
(ii) Shri H.P.S. Ahuja : Member

CEO & MD, ISPRL

The number and dates of the meetings held during the financial year indicating the number of
meetings attended by each directoris given at Annexure-A.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE

The company has a CSR Policy which is available on the website of the Company. The Company has not
spent any money on CSR activities during the year as the company has not made any profit during the
precedingthree financial years.

The CSR Committee comprised of the following Directors as on 31" March 2021:

(1) Shri B. N. Reddy : Chairman
Joint Secretary (IC), MoP&NG/Director, ISPRL
(ii) Shri H.P.5. Ahuja ; Member

CEO & MD, ISPRL

The number and dates of the meetings held during the financial year indicating the number of
meetings attended by each director is given at Annexure-A.

ANNUALRETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return is available on the website of the
Company on the following link : https://isprlindia.com/annual-report.asp.
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The Board of Directors of the Company met five times in the financial year 2020-21 as per the
following details:

1) 26" lune, 2020

2) 18" August, 2020
3)  5"November, 2020
4) 29" January, 2021
5) 15" March, 2021

The number and dates of the meetings held during the financial year indicating the number of
meetings attended by each director is given at Annexure-A.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS
During the year under review, there have been no changes in the nature of business.

However, the Cabinet Secretariat, GOI in July 2021 has allowed ISPRL to undertake following
commercial activities with the crude stored in caverns under Phase-1 of SPR programmei.e.

1 Leasing / Renting of 30% of overall oil storage capacity of caverns to Indian or foreign
companies with the condition that in case of any exigency, the GOI will have the first right on
the entire crude oil stored in the caverns.

2. To Sale / purchase of upto 20% of overall Crude oil quantity stored in ISPRL caverns to Indian
companies.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The Company has no employee in respect of whom the Statement under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies [Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules 2014, isrequired to be furnished.

DECLARATION BY THEINDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

There were no Independent Directors on the Board of the Company during the financial year
2020-21.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Effective risk management is critical for the continued success of the Company. The Company has a
risk management policy to identify risk associated with the Company operations and to take
appropriate corrective steps to minimize the risks. The major risks associated with Company are
related to crude oil receipt and storage and delivery. These risks are mitigated by adopting standard
operating procedures and adequate insurance cover.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The following were the Whole-time Key Managerial Personnel during the year under review:
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ShriH.P.S. Ahuja

CEQ & Managing Director

b) ChiefFinance Officer - Shri Gopeshwar Kumar Singh
(appointmentw.e.f.05/11/2020)
c) ChiefFinance Officer - ShriGautam Sen

(cessation w.e.f. 16/10/2020

d) CompanySecretary Shri Arun Talwar

REMUNERATION

All Directors on the Board of ISPRL are ex-officio directors nominated by Ministry of Petraleum and
Natural Gas (MoP&NG). CEQ & MD is appointed by the ISPRL Board. No remuneration is paid to ex-
officio director nominated by MOP&NG, Other officers of the Company are on deputation from oil
sector PSUs. CEO & MD who was on deputation from ONGC got superannuated from ONGC on 31st
October 2020 and continued with ISPRL as CEO & MD on the terms and conditions approved by the
Board. The remuneration paidto CEO & MDis approved by ISPRL Board.

MATERIALCHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There are no material changes which have occurred subsequent to the close of financial year of the
Company to which the Balance Sheetrelates and the date of the report.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR |
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE {

No significant and material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunalsimpacting the
going concern status and company's operations in future.

SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company is not having any Subsidiary/loint Ventures/Associate Companies under the provisions
ofthe Companies Act, 2013.

COSTAUDIT s

In terms of Section 148 of the Act, the Company is not required to have the audit of its cost records
conducted by a Cost Accountant.

AUDITORS !
STATUTORY AUDIT:

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) has appointed M/s Goyal & Goyal (DE0577), New
Delhi as Statutory Auditors of the Company, who have submitted their report on the accounts of the
Company for the Financial Year ended 31" March, 2021 (Annexure-B). The Auditors in their report to
the Shareholders at Annexure-B (ii) of their report, reported that quantification of data of crude ol y
held by the Company needs independent technical assessment to evaluate the same. The
managementreply onthe sameis attached as Annexure-C.

Supplementary audit conducted by CRAG under Section 143 (6) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013 of the 1
Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year 317 March 2021, There are no significant ‘
observations of C&AG on the Financial Statements (Annexure-D). f

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21




. 1 §-£* e

sEcm—:TAmALAUDlT

During the year, the Board of the Company had appointed M/s PG & Associates, Company Secretaries,
106, Mahagun Morpheus, E-4, Sector-50, Noida-201301, Uttar Pradesh, as Secretarial Auditors of the
Company to carry out Secretarial Audit under the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules framed thereunder, for the financial year 2020-21. The Report given by Secretarial
Auditors is annexed to this report as (Annexure-E). The Auditors Report to the Shareholders does not
contain any qualification.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AND
EXPORTS AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Company has commissioned Visakhapatnam, Mangalore cavern and Padur caverns. The
Company has no information to be published regarding conservation of energy and technology
absorption.

The Company does not have any foreign exchange earnings during the year, However, it has utilized
foreign exchange forits business activities aggregating to £9.36 Crore during the period under review.

INTERNALCONTROLS

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
duringthe Financial Year 2020-21.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

The Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints
Committee under The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013. The Company has a framework for employees to report sexual harassment cases
at work place. During the year under review, the Company did not receive any complaint under the
said Act.

BOARD EVALUATION

The formal annual evaluation of the performance of the Board, its Committees and of individual
directors has been carried out as per the Board Performance Evaluation Policy approved by the Board
of ISPRL.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, there has been noinstances of fraud reported by Auditors under Section
143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

The Company has given a Bank Guarantee aof Rupees Fifty Thousand only in favour of ACCT, LGSTO-
260, Mangalore

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions were limited to Equity capital participation by OIDB and payment of
remuneration to CEO & MD, ISPRL, CFO, ISPRL and Company Secretary, ISPRL. The transactions with
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the related parties are in the ordinary course of business and are on Arm's Length basis and are not
material in nature.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The applicable Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India have
been duly complied by the Company.

COVID-19 PANDEMIC

The COVID-19 pandemic developed rapidly into a global crisis forcing the Central Government to
order a complete lockdown of all economic activities in India from end-March 2020.

During the Covid pandemic, ISPRL facilities were operational following the covid protocol and
behaviour. The medical kits were given to all the employees of ISPRL and regular sanitation of work
place is maintained to ensure the protection of employees.

During the Covid-19 pandemic, the Company signed large deals for procurement of crude oil for filling
the caverns. A total of 13 vessels of crude oil were received during 8" April 2020 till 16" May 2020.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As required under clause (c) of sub-section (3) Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Board of
Directors of the Company hereby state and confirm:

(a) That in preparation of Annual Accounts for the financial year, the applicable Accounting
Standards have been followed along with the proper explanations relating to material
departures;

(b) That Directors have selected the accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give atrue and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as on March 31, 2021 and of the Profit and Loss of the Company
forthatyear;

(c) That Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

(d) Thatthe Directors have prepared the Accounts for the Financial Year ended 31" March, 2020 ona
“going concern” basis.

(e) That the Directars have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Your Board of Directors comprises of five part-time Non-Executive Directors and one full-time CEO &
MD as on 317 March, 2021 details are given below:
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Shri Tarun Kapoar{DlN 00030762), Secretary, MoP&NG — Chairman
(Appointment w.e.f. 15/05/2020).

2. Shri Rajesh Aggarwal (DIN- 03566931), Additional Secretary & Financial Advisar,
MoP&NG — Director.

ShriB. N. Reddy (DIN-08389048), Joint Secretary (IC), MoP&NG — Director.
ShriNiranjan Kumar Singh (DIN-03361541), Secretary, OIDB- Director.

- Al

Ms. Indrani Kaushal (DIN-02091078), Economic Adviser, MoP&NG- Director.
6. ShriH.P.S.Ahuja(DIN-07793886), Chief Executive Officer & Managing Director.

[ ¥ |

Following changestook placeinthe Board of Directors after 017 April, 2020:

1. ShriTarun Kapoor (DIN- 00030762), Secretary, MoP&NG — Chairman
(Appointment w.e.f. 15/05/2020).

2. Dr. M. M. Kutty (DIN- 01943083), Secretary, MoP&NG - Chairman
(Cessation w.e.f. 30/04/2020)

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Board of Directors gratefully acknowledges the valuable guidance and support received from the
Government of India, Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas and Oil Industry Development Board.

Forand on behalf of the Board.

Sd/- Sd/-
(Navneet Mohan Kothari) (H. P.S. Ahuja)
Director CEO&MD
(DIN#02651712) (DIN#07793886)

Date: 23" Novermber, 2021
Place: New Delhi
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the Directors in FY 2020-21:
AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Gommittee held three meetings in the financial year 2021-22. These meetings were held on 14"
July, 2020; 2™ September, 2020 and 4" December, 2020. The Director's attendances at the Audit

Committee meetings are as follows:

(Annexure-A)
Details of the meeting of the Board Committees and Board and number of meetings attended by

Sl. No. Members Designation No. of meetings attended
in FY 2020-21
1, Shri Rajesh Aggarwal Chairman 3
2. Shri H.P.S. Ahuja Member 3

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC):

The NRC held five meetings in the financial year 2020-21. The meetings were held on
23" June, 2020

7" August, 2020
1" October, 2020
14" October, 2020
15" January, 2021 reconvened the same meeting on 22" January, 2021,

K e ad) ek

The Director’s attendances at the NRC, eetings are as follows :-

Sl. No. Members Designation No. of meetings attended
in FY 2020-21
1. Shri B. N. Reddy Chairman 5
2. Shri H.P.5. Ahuja Member 5

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY {CSR) COMMITTEE:

No meeting of CSR Committee held during the financial year 2020-21.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Board of Directors of the Company held three meetings in the financial year 2020-21 as per the following

details:

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)

26" lune, 2020

18" August, 2020
5" November, 2020
297 lanuary, 2021
15" March, 2021
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Number of Board meetings attended by the Directors:

<8

UDUSTRY DEVELOPMEN]

sl. No. Name of Directors Designation | No. of board meetings
attended during
the 2020-21
1. | Shri Tarun Kapoor Chairman 5
2. |Shri Rajesh Aggarwal Director 4
3. |ShriB. N. Reddy Director 5
4. |Dr. Niranjan Kumar Singh Director 4
5. |Ms. Indrani Kaushal Director 5
6. |Shri H.RS. Ahuja CEO & MD 5
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO,
THE MEMBERS OF
INDIAN STRATEGIC PETROLEUM RESERVES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of INDIAN STRATEGIC PETROLEUM
RESERVES LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31" March, 2021, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of changes in
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended (“IND AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, and the, LOSS, total comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ICAl's Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rule made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these reguirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on financial statements.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
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respnnsibi!ity also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the™
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or errof.

In preparing the financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company orto cease operations, or has no realistic alternative butto doso.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company'sfinancial reporting process.
Auditor's Respansibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements, Also Refer "Annexure A" to this audit report.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

it As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the "Annexure B", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extentapplicable.

2 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(8) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company sofarasitappears from our examination of those boaks.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and

Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21




()

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31" March,
2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31" March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Control with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such contraols, referto our

separate Reportin "Annexure C".

With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor's report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended. In our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its Directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Reportin accardance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
hest of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
positionsinits IND AS financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Fducation and Protection Fund by the Company.

As required by the direction of CRAG under Section 143(5) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

c)

The company has system in place to process all the accounting transactions through IT
system.

There is no restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts/
loans/interest etc made by a lender to the company due to the company's inability to
repay the loan.

Funds received/ receivable for specific schemes from Central/State agencies are
properly accounted for/utilized as per their termand conditions.

For Goyal & Goyal
Chartered Accountants
FRN:- DD00OBEN

Shobhit Gupta

(Partner)

M.No.:- 502897

Place : New Delhi
Date : 15" September,2021

UDIN: 21502897AAAADI2122
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Report on the Auditor's responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

"ANNEXURE A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstaternent resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, fargery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
orthe override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statement in place and the operating
effactiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and eventsina manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

For Goyal & Goyal
Chartered Accountants
FRN:- 000066N

Shobhit Gupta
(Partner)
M.No.:- 502897

Place : New Delhi
Date : 15" September,2021
UDIN: 21502857AAAADI2122
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"ANNEXURE B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

With refeérence to the Annexure B referred to in the Independent Auditor's Report to the members of
the Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31" March, 2021, we report the
following:

i
111,

a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b) Accordingtothe information and explanations given to us, the fixed assets are physically
verified by the management in a phase manner which in our opinion is reasonable, having
regard to the size of the company and nature of its assets. As per information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the title deeds of immovable properties are
held in the name of company except for 3.09 acre of land at Padur for which title deed is
pending execution.

The management has conducted physical verification, of Crude oil inventory held an trust on
behalf of Government of India (Cavern B) and ADNOC (Cavern A) at Mangalore and on behalf of
Government of India at Visakhapatnam and Padur at reasonable intervals through
independent surveyors. In our opinion, having regard to the nature and location of the crude,
the frequency of physical verification is reasonable.

Refer to Note No. 28 (ii) for quantification date of crude of crude provided by the
management. We have observed that there Is shortage in crude oil held by the company on
behalf of GOl and excess in crude oil held by the company on behalf of ADNOC.

Shortage in one case and excess in another case, needs independent technical assessment to
evaluate the same.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not granted any
loan secured or unsecured loan to company/ Firms covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, Therefore provisions of clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not given any loans, guarantees, securities or made any investments in respect of which
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013.

Therefare, provisions of clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

In ouropinion and accerding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted deposit from the public covered under Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under.
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In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Central
Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under subsection (1) of
section148 of the Companies Act, 2013, for any of the activities of the company.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of books of account, and records, the Company has been generally regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including Income Tax, Value Added Tax, Work Contract
Tax ,Service Tax , Cess, GST and any other Statutory dues with the appropriate authorities and
there are no undisputed dues outstanding dues outstanding as on 31" March, 2021 for a period
of more than six months from the date they become payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and as certified by the
management, the following statutory dues have not been deposited by the Company on
account of dispute:-

| Nameofthe | Nature Amount Period to which Forum where
statute of dues | (Rs.in Lacs) the amount dispute is pending
relates

Andhra Royalty 11794.95 Up to Directorate of
Pradesh 31.03.2018 Mines and Geology,
Minar Andhra Pradesh
Mineral

Concession

Rules 1996

With regard to disputes pending related to Income Tax for various assessments at different
authorities, the company has availed the benefit of Vivad se Vishwas Act, 2021 and accounted/
deposited the amount as determined by the company and the same is pending for approval by
the Income Tax Department for issuance of form 5,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the company, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loan or Borrowing.
The Company has not availed any borrowings from any financial institution, bank or debenture
holders except a short-term borrowing from OIDB.

The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debtinstruments) and term loans during the year; hence clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of
the Order regarding defaultis not applicable to the Company.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the year under audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the ACT.
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In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi company; hence clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with the
provisions of section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into noncash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Therefore provisions of clause (xv) of paragraph 3 of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 451A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Goyal & Goyal
Chartered Accountants
FRN:- 000066N

Shobhit Gupta
(Partner)
M.MNo,:- 502897

Place : New Delhi
Date : 15" September,2021
UDIN:21502837AAAADI2122
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"ANNEXURE C" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statement under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (" the Act ")

We have audited the Internal Financial Control with reference to financial statements of INDIAN
STRATEGIC PETROLEUM RESERVES LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction
with our audit of the financial statements of the Company far the year ended on that date.

|
I
Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 1

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial |
controls with reference to financial statement based on Guidance Note on Audit of Internal financial
control over financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
respansibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial .
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, |
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and |
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the

timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an epinion on the Company's internal financial control with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal financial control over financial reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143({10) of the
Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 1
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial

control with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the Internal
Financial Control with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit

of Internal Financial Control with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of Internal Financial Control with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk

that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, |
whether due tofraud ar error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinien on the Company's internal financial control with reference to financial
statements.
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A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorities of
management and directors of the company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Control with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the Internal financial control with reference to financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of the changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial control with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at 31" March 2021, based on the internal financial contral
with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal financial control over
financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Goyal & Goyal
Chartered Accountants
FRN:- O00066N

Shobhit Gupta
(Partner)
M.No.:- 502897

Place : New Delhi
Date: 15" September, 2021
UDIN:21502897AAAAD|2122
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021

To

The Members,

Indian Strategic Petroleum Reserves Limited,
301 World Trade Centre,

3" Floor, Babar Road,

New Delhi-110001.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Indian Strategic Petroleum Reserves Limited (hereinafter
called the company) [CIN No.U63023DL2004G01126973] Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and

other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its

officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby

report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended a
on 31" March, 2021, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the ]
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the

manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by Indian Strategic Petroleum Reserves Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year
ended on 31" March, 2021 according to the provisions of;

() The CompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(ii) TheSecurities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; |

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings; N.A.

(v) Thefollowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):-
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(vii)

(viii)

(a) The Securities and Exchanpge Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011: N.A

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992:N.A

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009: N.A

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999: N.A

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008: N.A

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client:

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009:
N.A

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998: N.A

Otherapplicable laws :

i) The Petroleum Act, 1934:

ii) The Oil Industry (Development ) Act, 1974;

iii) The Oil fields Act, 1948;

iv) Indian Explosives Act, 1884

Environmental Laws:

i) TheWater (Prevention and Control of pollution) Act, 1974
i} TheAir (Prevention and Control of pollution)Act, 1981

ili) The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

iv) Hazardous Wastes(Managementand handling) Rules 1989
Misc Acts :

i) Sexual harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act
2013

We have relied on the representations made by the Company and its officers for systems and

mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under other applicable laws and Regulations to
the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
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(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s):N.A

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above for the financial year ended 31.3.2021 to

the extent applicable.
We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors
and Non-Executive Directors, The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place
during the period under review were carried outin compliance with the provisions of the Act.

During the year under review, some Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were called at shorter
notice, agenda alongwith detailed notes on agenda were sent at short notice and consent was taken
from the directors. A system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on
the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation atthe meeting.

As per the minutes maintained by the Company for the Board/Committee meetings all the decisions

have been carried out unanimously. The members of the Board have not expressed any dissenting

views on any of the agenda items during the period under review. 1
|
|

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate
with the size and aperations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,
rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the company has not undertaken events/action having
a major bearing on the company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines, standards, etc.

FOR PG & ASSOCIATES

Sd/- l
(PREETI GROVER)
Company Secretary
FCS No.5862
C P No.:6065 4
PEER REVIEW NO. 772/2020
Place : Noida
Date: 17/08/2021
UDIN : FO0O5862C000795057
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Annexure-A
To,

The Members,

Indian Strategic Petroleum Reserves Limited
301 World Trade Centre

3" Floor, Babar Road

New Delhi-110001.

Ourreport of even date is to be read alongwith this letter :

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Qur
responsibility is to express an opinion on the secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have not conducted any business and/or financial audit of the Company and the figures
mentioned by the company are assumed to be true,

3. Whereverrequired, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

4. We have followed the audit practice and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.

FOR PG & ASSOCIATES

Sd/-
(PREETI GROVER)
Company Secretary
FCS No.5862
C P No.:6065
PEER REVIEW NO. 772/2020
Place : Noida
Date: 17/08/2021
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Annexure-B

List of documents verified

Annual Report for the financial year ending on 31st March, 2020.

Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors, Audit Committee of the Board, Nomination
and Remuneration Committee along with their respective attendance registers, held during
the financial year under audit.

Minutes of General Body Meeting held during the financial year under the audit.
Statutory Registersviz.

- Register of Directors & KMP

= Register of transfers

- Register of members

Notice and Agenda papers submitted to all the directors/members for the Board Meetings and
Committee Meetings.

Declarations received from the Directors of the Company pursuant to the provisions of section
184 of the Companies Act, 2013.

All e-forms filed by the Company, from April 2020 to March 31, 2021, under applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and attachments thereof during the financial year
under audit.

License to store LPG gas in pressure vessels valid upto 30.09.2022 for Mangalore, 31.12.2025
for Padur location and 30.09.2021 for Visakhapatnam.

Consent for discharge of effluents under section 25(4) of Water(Prevention and Control of
Pollution) Act, 1974 and emission under section 21 of Air(Prevention and Control of Pollution)
Act, 1981 for Padur facility valid till 30.6.2021.

No objection certificate for height clearance from Airports Authority of India for facility at
Mangalore valid upto 26.4.2021.

Storage of crude oil is valid upto 31.12.2023 for Visakhapatnam.

Constitution of ICC under the Sexual Harassment of Women at the workplace (Prohibition,
Prevention and Redressal) Act, and Annual Return filed under the Act for the period 1.1.2020-
31.12.2020.
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COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY AUDITORS OF ISPRL ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIAN
STRATEGIC PETROLEUNVI RESERVES LIMITED (ISPRL) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH 2021

The Financial Statements have been audited by M/s Goyal & Goyal (DE0577), Statutory Auditors of the
Company appointed by the C&AG for the Financial Year 2020-21. The Statutory Auditors has given
their remarks in their Audit Report in Annexure B of the report. The Management referring to note no.
28 (ii) of the notes to accounts which are given in the below mentioned table ;

With reference to the cbservations of Statutory Auditor, ISPRL Management has clarified on loss gain
determination method of stored crude by Company in its given below reply.

Statutory Auditors Comment

Management Reply

Refer to Note No. 28 (ii), for quantification
date of crude provided by the management.
We have observed that there is shortage in
crude oil held by the Company on behalf of Gol
and excess incrude oil held by the company on
behalf of ADNOC.,

Shortage in one and excess in another case,
needs independent technical assessment to
evaluate the same.

The excess of crude oil reflected in ADNOC
stock is based on flow meter measurement
readings for sale of crude oil. In the caverns for
stock reconciliation, Tank Farm Management
System (TFMS) is installed and level is
measured through level transmitters. After
every crude purchase and crude out / sale,
level of crude oil in cavern is measured and
certified by the Surveyor. The stock of ADNOC
is fully reconciled when the same system of
guantification i.e. level transmitters is used
and loss of 2662 MT is observed and there is no
crude il gainin ADNOC stock.

For loss or gain calculations, TFMS readings of
cavern levels are used as reference level as
opening and closing stock of Cavern are also
based on TFMS. The pattern of oss in both the
cases of GOl and ADNOC is same considering
the same reference of quantification. All the
crude oil readings both for ADNOC and
Government of India's crude oil are certified
by Surveyor. For GOI crude, the cumulative
loss is 0.004% and for ADNOC crude, the

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21




INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENTHE]
4N\ ple & AE _

Statutory Auditors Comment Management Reply

cumulative loss is 0.002%. These are within
the acceptable limit of loss of 0.03%.

As per the advice of ISPRL Board, ISPRL is in
process to prepare a concept paper with
respect to crude oil stock quantity

measurement based on best international
practices.
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INDIAMN STRATEGIC PETROLEUM RESERVES LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2021
CIN - UG3023012004G00126373 —
% inlakhs
Partioulars Note | As At31" March, As At 31" March,
2021 2020
ASSETS
(I} | Mon-Current Assets
{A) Property, Plant & Equipment 2 3,28,009.11 3 38 516.20
(B) Capital Work in Pragress 2.1 = =
{C} Intangible Assets 2.2 7,100.95 7,100,95
(D) Financial Assets
{i] Loans 3 556.18 556,18
{ii] Other Financial Assets 4 74.64 TaE4
(E} Income tax Assets [Net) 160.63 63.33
[F] Other Non Current Assets 3 5,816.17 -
Sub Total 3,45,726.74 3,46,311.30
(Il) | Current Assets
(A} Financial Assets
(1) Cash and cash eauivalants (3 227053 B.634.51
(i} Bank Balances ather than above 7 13,807 71 545.80
{iii) Other Financial Assels ) 3,012.64 3,910.30
(B} Other Current Assets 9 1378.628 f%5,231.83
5ub Total 20,559.96 78,312.49
TOTAL 3,66,286.70 4,24.633.74
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(| Equity
{A) Equity Share Capital 10 3,77,587.47 3,77,587.47
(B} Other Equity i1 (43,535.65) (33,4684.29)
Sub Total 3,34,051.81 1,44,103.18
(]| LIABILITIES
Mon-Current Liabilities
(A) Financial Liabilities
(I} Borrowings 5 =
{iijOther Financial Liabilities 17 562.12 870.14
Sub Total 562.12 870.14
()| Current Liabilities
{A) Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 13 9.816.17 =
{ii) Trade Payables 14 1,709.67 6,036.77
{iii} Other Financial Liabilitiss 15 14,127.49 7,640.43
(8] Other Current Liablities 16 5,019.44 55,923.22
sub Total 31,672.77 79,660.42
TOTAL 3,66,286.70 4,24,633.74
significant Accounting Folicies 1
MNaotes on Accounts 2-28
Motes refarred above form an integral oart of the Balance Sheet
&s per our repart of even date attached
For Goyal & Goyal For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chariered Accountants
FRN DOOCEEMN sd)- 84/
Sdyf- {B.N. Reddy) (H.P.5. Ahuja)
(eA Shabhit Gupta) Directar CEC & MD
Partner DN ; DRI ES048 DIN : 07793886
pambership Mo, SO2EST Sd/- sd/-
Place s Waw Dalhi [Gopeshwar Kumar Singh) [Arun Talwar)
Date : 15.09,2021 CFO Company Secretary
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INDIAN STRATEGIC PETROLEUM RESERVES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
CIN ;- Up3023DL2004G01126973

T in lakhs

For the Year Ended

For the Year Ended

Particulars MNote 31" march, 2021 31" March, 2020
INCOME
Imterest Income 85.50 358.13
Other lncome 17 775.32 95.3%
Total Income £60.88 453,52
EXPEMNSES
Depreciation and Amartisation 18 9,868.16 10,408,74
Finance Cost (Ind AS 116) 19 11.86 12.10
0 & M Expenses 20 11,445:85 13,769.56
Less:- 0 & M Expenses Recoverable/Recovered from GOI, ADNOC E E
and/ar HPCL 11,446.95 13,769.56
Expenses for Phasze |l 770.36 89.68
Tatal Expenses 10,650.38 10,510.52
Extra Ordinary
Prior Paricd Adjustments (261.87) 10.70
Loss Before Tax (10,051.37) (10,046.30)
Tax Expense:
Current Tax B -
|ncome Tax Paid for Earller Years (Under Vsv Scheme) 13.35 650,12
Less:- Rocovercd/Recoverable from GO (13.35} (536.53)
Deferred Tax - -
Total Tax Expanses - 113.59
Loss for the year (10,051.37) (10,159,89)
Cther Comprehensive Incoma . =
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (Comprising Profit/(Loss) (10,051.37) (10,159.89)
and Other Comprehensive Income for the year)
Earning per Equity Share |Par Value of Rs. 10/ each) 21
() Basic (0.27) (0.27)
(i) Dlluted {0.27) (0.27)
significant Accounting Palicles 1
Notes on Accounts 2-28

Motes referred above form an integral part of Statement of Profit and Loss

Asper our repart of even date attached

For Goyal & Govyal
Chartered Accountants
FRM QC0OGEM

5d/-

[CA Shobhit Gupta)
Partner

Mermbarship Mo, 502897

Place : Maw Delhi
Date : 15.09.2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sdj-

(B.M. Reddy)

Diractor

DIN : 0&3B9048

Sd/-

[Gapashwar Kumar Singh)
CFQ

Sdi-

[H.P5. Ahuja]

CFD & MD

DIM : 07793886
sd/f-

[Arun Talwar)
Company Secretary
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INDIAN STRATEGIC PETROLEUM RESERVES LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021
CIN :- Us3023DL2004G0OI1126973
Z in lakhs
st . For the year ended For the year ended
No. Particulirs 31" March 2021 31" March 2020
(A) CASH FLOW STATEMENT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit Before Taxation (10,051.37) (10,046.30)
Adjustments for -
Tax - (112.59)
Depreciation 9,BR3.28 10,408 74
Finance Cost {Ind A5 116) 11.86 12.10
Interest Income (85.56) [358.13)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes (241.79) {97.1B)
Adjustments for :-
(Increase)/ Decrease in Financial & Other Assels 54 935.14 (67,279.47)
Increase/(Decrease) in Liabilities & Provisions (57,573.34) 66,440,52
Net Increase/{Decrease) in Working Capital {2,638.19) (838.95)
Cash Generated from Operations {2,879.98) (936.13)
Direct Taxes Paid (Net of Refunds) (108.38) 76.05
Total Cash Flow from Operation (A} (2,986.34) |BE0.0B)
(8) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (Cr.)
Purchase of Fixed Assetsf CWIP (12.91) (367.95)
Decapitasition of Property Plant and Machienery 636.72 =
Investment in FOR's (More than 3 months) (13,352.43) {31.47)
Interast Recelved B5.56 358.13
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (B) (12,643.06) (41.29)
(<) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Cr.)
Proceeds from Borrowings 9,816.17 z
Proceeds fram Grants (Met of Refund) 235.13 535.00
Amortisation of Grant from QIDB (770.36) (BS.6B)
Stamp Duty on lssue of Share Capital - (2.75)
Interest Cast [Ind A5 116) (11.86) (12.10)
Lease Liabilitles (Ind AS 116) (3.25}) 568.70
Net Cash From Financing Activities (C) 9,265.82 1,089.17
(D) Net Increase/ Decrease in Cash & Cash Equivalents [A-B+C) (6,363.58) 157.80
Opening Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents B,634.51 B,436.71
Closing Balance of Cash B. Cash Equivalents 2,270.93 B,634.51
As per our report of even date attached
For Goyal & Goyal For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
FRN ODOOGEM 5d/- Sdf-
sdj- (B.M. Reddy) (H.P.5. Ahuja)
i Director CED & MD
(EA Shabhit Guiptaj DIN : 08385048 DIN ; 07793886
Partner
Membership No. 502837 5d/- Sd/-
[Gopeshwar Kumar Singh] {Arun Talwar)
Place : New Delhl CFO Company Secretary
Date ; 15.09.2021
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INDIAN STRATEGIC PETROLEUM RESERVES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

a. Equity share capital T inlakhs
As at As at
31" March, 2021 31" March, 2020
Balance at the baginning of the reporting period 3,77, 587.47 3,74,837.47
Changes in eguity share capital during the year 2,750.00
Balance at the end of the reporting period 3?’?._53;_4? 3,77,587.47
b. Other equity T inlakhs
As at . As at
31" March, 2021 31" March, 2020
P Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the reparting period (33,484.259) {23,321.65)
Profit / (Lass) for the year (10,051.37) (10,159.89)
Stamp Duty on Share [ssued - (2.75)
Other comprahansive income far the year =
Balance at the end of the reporting period (43,535.66) (33,484.29)

For Goyal & Goyal
Chartered Accountants
FRN 00006GN

Sd/-

(CA shobhit Gupta)
Partnar

Membership No. 502837

Place : Mew Delhi
Date ; 15.09.2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sdf- 5d/-

(B.N. Reddy) [H.P5. Ahuja)
Director CED B MD

DIN ; DB3B3048 DIN : 07793886
Sd/f- 5d/-

(Gopeshwar Kumar Singh) (Arun Talwar)

CFD Company Secretary
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INDIAN STRATEGIC PETROLEUM RESERVES LIMITED

Notes Forming Part of The Financial Statements

Note No. 2.1 : Capital Work in Progress # in lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31" March, 2021 | 31" March, 2020
Phase - |
-Vishakhapatnam Cavern Storage Project Opening Balance 4257
Add : Additions During the Year 119.21
Less : Capitalized/Decapitalized (161.78)
during the Year
Total (Capital Work in Progress) Closing Balance -
Mote No. 2.2 : Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets (ROU far Pipelina) T in lakhs
Particulars As at Acs at
31" March, 2021 31" March, 2020
Gross Block as on beginning of the vear 7,100,595 7,100.95
Addition/Transfer fram ather assets during the year -
Disposal/Deductions/Transfar/Reclassification - -
' Gross Block as at end of the year 7,100.95 7,100.95
Amartization as at beginning of the year
Amartization during the year - -
Disposal/Deductions/Transfer/Reclassification - -
Amortization as at end of the year - -
Net Block 7,100.95 7,100.95

Mote : ROU for pipeling are acouired on perpetwal basis, henca no amortization
is being provided,
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Motes Forming Part of The Financial Statements

IEN

Mote No. 3 Loans e
T inlakhs
iculars As at 31" March, As at 31° March,
Particula 2021 2020
Unse <j d at amarised ¢
Serurity Deposits 556.18 556,13
TOTAL 556.18 556,18
Note No. 4 Other Financial Assets
7 in lakhs
seul As at 31" March, As at 31" March,
i i 2021 2020
Advance against demand of Entry Tax 74.64 74.64
TOTAL 74.64 74.64
Note No, 5 Other Non Current Asst
Note No sets T Inlakhs
As at 31" March, As at 31" March,
Particulars 2021 2020
[Unsecured considered good at amortised cost)
Capital Advance to KIADE for Land (Phase I1) 9.816.17 =
TOTAL 9,816.17 -
M . 6 Cash & Cash Equival
HNote No. 6 Cash & Cash Equivalent T in lakhs
v As at 31" March, As at 317 March,
Particulars 2021 5020
Bank Balances :
In Current Accounts 2,222.73 3,793.69
In Fixed Deposit {(Maturity within three months) 48.00 484074
Cash Balances :
Cash - In Hand 0.20 0.08
TOTAL 2,270.93 8,634.51
Note No. 7 Bank Balances other th
N Bank Balances ather than above ? i Takhs
Particulars As at 31* March, As at 317 March,
2021 2020
Fixed Depasit 13,897.71 545.80
{ Maturity more than three months but due in one year]
TOTAL 13,897.71 545.80
Mote No. 8 Other Financial Assets ¥ in lakhs
Particulars As at 317 March, Asat31" March,
2021 2020
{Unsecured considered good at amartised cost)
O&M Expenses Receivable From GOJ - 2.460.21
O&M Expenses Receivable From HPCL 2,015.94 1,151.37
Phase || Expenses Receivable From GO 49,15 -
Operating and Other Expenses recoverable from ADNOC 877.28 280.78
Fiwed Deposits 0,52 -
[ Maturity more than one year|
Accrued Interest 1933 17.57
Advances recoverable in cash or kind 50,42 037
TOTAL 3,012.64 3,910.30
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Motes Forming Part of The Financial Statements

Note No, 9 Other Current Assets

T inlakhs
As at 31" March, As at 31" March,
Particulars 2021 2020
[Unsecured considered good)
Recoverable from MRPL In cash ar in kind 5 54,565.00
Advances to Supplier 3.77 7.87
Prepaid Expenses 735,78 :
GS5T Credit 63012 Bb54.25
Others 0.01 0.71
TOTAL 1,378.68 65,231.83
Note Mo.10 ; Share Capital
= T in lakhs
As at 317 March, 2021 As at 31" March, 2020
Particulars Number of Amount Number of | Amount
shares shares
Equity Share Capital
(a) Authorised
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 3,83,25,60,000 | 3,83,256.00 |3,83,25,60,000)| 3,82,255.00
(b} Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up
Equity charas of Rs.10/- each 3,77,58 74670 3,77,587.47 | 3,77,5874.670| 3,77,587.47

Notes :
(i) Reconcilliation of the number of equity shares :

Particulars

As at 31" March, 2021

As at 31" March, 2020

Equity shares of Rs.10/- each
Cpening Balance

shares lssued

Shares bought back

Closing Balance

3,77,58,74,670

3,77.58,74,670

3,74,83,74,670
2,75,00,000

3,77.58,74,670

(ii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares ;

As at 31" March, 2021 As at 31" March, 2020
Name of shareholders Number of % holdingin | Number of |% holdingin
Shares hald thatclass | Shares held | that class
of shares of shares
Egquity shares of Rs.10/- each
Cil Industry Development Board, 3.77,58,74.670 100% |3,77,58,74,670 100%
Mew Dealhi & its nominees
TOTAL 3,77,58,74,670 1po% |3,77,58,74,670 100%

[iii) Terms/Rights attached to equity shares

The company has anly ane class nf;quit',r shares having par value of As. 10 each and is entitled to one vote per share, In
the event of liguidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remiaining assets of
the company In proportion te the number of equity shares held

(iv) For the period of preceeding five years as on the Balance Sheet date, the :

being received in cash

{b) Aggregate numbers of class of shares allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares
(c) Aggrepate numbers of shares and class of shares bought back

(a) Aggragate numbers of class of shares allatiad as fully paid up pursuant to contract (5] without payment

MIL

MIL
MIL
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Mote Mo. 11 Other Equity

T in lakhs
Particulars As at 31° March, As at 31" March,
2021 2020
Balance of Retained Earnings :
Balance brought (Loss) Forward from Last Year's Accounts (33,4584.29) (23,321.65)
Stamp Duty on Share [ssued L (2.75)
(Lass) for the year {10,051.37) {10,159.89)
TOTAL (43,535.66) |33,484.29)
Note No. 12 Other Financial Liabilities (At Amortized Cost)
¥ Inlakhs
Particilars As at 31" March, As at 31" March,
2021 2020
Depaosit/Retention from Suppliers/Contractors 0.20 304.70
Lease Obligation (Ind A5 116) 561.52 565.44
TAOTAL 562.12 870.14
Note No. 13 Borrowings
) - T inlakhs
particulars As at 31" March, As at 317 March,
2021 2020
1) Unsecured Loans from Related Parties (DIDB) 5EB16.17
{Interast Free)
TOTAL 9.816.17 -
Note No. 14 Trade Payable Z in lakhs
Particulars As at 31" March, As at 31" March,
2021 2020
|} Dues of Micro & Small Enterprizes 0.52 7045
[} Payable for Capital Expenditure 8491 1,86E.07
i) Dues to others 1,614.44 4.160.24
TOTAL 1,709.67 6,096.77
Mote No. 15 Other Financial Liabilities (At Amortized Cost) Eiih
akhs
Particulars As at 31" March, As at 31" March,
2021 2020
(At amortized cost)
Payable to Adnoc 7.000.00 7.000.00
Lease Obligation [Ind AS 1186} 3.52 3,26
Advance Recaivad from GOl against CEM Expensas f,209.81 -
Deposit from Suppliers/Contractors 914,16 637.17
TOTAL 14,127.49 7.640.43
te No. 16 Other Current Liabilities -
No 16 Dther Current Liabilities ? inTakhs
Particulars As at 31" March, As at 31" March,
2021 2020 il
Statutary Ques 149.18 J700.05
Payabls/Refundable io MoPNG {Crude Oil) 4.182.15 £4,565.00
Payable to MoPMNG { Interest on Unspent Amount) 1,543.86 -
Payable to HPCL Vizag 97.78 75.97
Grant from DIDB 29.36 564.50
Others 1261 12.61
TOTAL 6,019.44 65,923.22
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Note No.17 Other Income

Other Income in Profit & Loss Account Z in lakhs
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31" March, 2021 1" March, 2020
Other Income
Amortisation of Grant fram OIDB [Phasa 1)) 77036 85.68
Penalty and Liguidated Darnages 2.62 3.62
Interest an Income Tax Refund 234 2.09
TOTAL INCOME 775.32 95.35
MNote No. 18 Depreciation and Amaortisation ¥ inlakhs
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31" March, 2021 31"March, 2020
Depreciation 9,350.21 9.,890.79
Amaortisation of Lease Rantal (Leasehold Land) 533.07 533.07
Less - Recovery as O&M Expenses fram GOl (Ind AS 118) {15132} (15.12)
MNet Depreciation and Amortization 9,868.16 10,408.74
Mote No.19 Finance Cost
T in lakhs
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31" March, 2021 31" March, 2020
Imterest on Lease Liabilities 41,59 41.83
Less (- Recovery as D&M Expenses fram GO (Ind AS 116) (29.73) [29.73)
Net Depraciation and Amortization 11.86 12.10
Mote No. 20 Other Expenses -
¥ in lakhs
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

31" March, 2021

31" March, 2020

0&M Expenses

g) Manpower EXpenses (Project site) (othar than ITBP) 4,308 17 4,148 70
b} Manpower Expenses - ITEP 1,311.96 4,001.51
c) Electricity Expenses 1,360,10 1,455.19
d) Insurance Expenses 242852 1,874.62
8] Consumable Expenses 472,94 384.42
f} Mangalore Special Economic Zone O & M Charges 10713 2839
g) Other Expenses 1367.36 158627
h} Corridor Charges- Wangzlare 8977 28586
Tatal 11.446.95 13, 760.56
Less:- O & M Expenses Racoverasle/Recovered from GOl and/or HPCL 11,068.92 13,765.56
Less ;- Operaticnal Cost Receverable from ADNOC 377.03 -
DFR Expenses for Phase || 17036 BS.EB

TOTAL 770.36 £9.68
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Note No. 21 Disclosures of EPS under Indian unting § -33

T in lakhs
; For the year ended | For the year ended
Nete Practick lars 31" March, 2021 | 31° March, 2020
Earnings per share
(1) | Baslc
profit/|Loss) for the year attributes to the equity shareholders {10,051.37) (10,159.89]
Weightad number of equity shares Dutstanding 3,77,58,74,700 3,77,32,37,684
Par valug per share 10.00 10.00
Loss per share from continuing operations - Basic 0.27) (0,27}
(i} | Dlluted
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributes to the eguity sharehaldars (10,051.37] (10,159.89)
Welghtad number of equity shares Qutstanding - For Diluted 3,77,58,74,700 3,77,32,37 684
Par value per share 10.00 10,00
Loss per share from cantinuing operstions - Diluted (0.27) (0.2

Note No, 22 Leases, Commitments and Contingencies

22.1| Leases
Ministry of Corparate Affairs (MCA) through Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rule, 2019
and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rule, 2019 has notifled IND A5 116 Leases
which replaces the existing lease IND AS 17 Leaze and other Interpretations. IND AS 116 introduces a balance sheat
lease accountingmadulefar Leases,

i) Effectiva April 1, 2013, the Campany has adepted IND AS 116 to its [eases using modified retrospective transitions
methed. The leasa llabllity is measured at the present value of remalning lease payments discounted using
incramental borrowing rate at the date of Initial application and right of use asset has been recognizsc at an
amount equal to the lease liability plus prepald rentals recognized in the balance sheet hefore the date of initial
application, [fany. The company has adopted O1DB's (being 100% shareholder) interest rate for April 2019, Further,
the Company has exercised the following expedient:-

I. Company has not reassessed whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at the date of initial application i.e. the
contracts classified asleases on March 31, 2019 as per INDAS 17

i, Treated as leases under IND AS 116 and not applying the standard to contracts that were not previously
|dentified as containing a l2ase applying IND A5 17

iii. Leases for which the lgase tarms endswithin 12 months of the date ofinitial apglication have beenaccounted as
shorttime leases

The Company has entered into lease arrangements related to land. There s no sale and |2ase back transactions
arrangement underthe reporting period.

Details of significant leases for Leasehold Lands are asunder:-

{a) | ArrangementwithVishakapatnamPort Trustfor a period of 30 Years for 37 acres ofland,

{b) | Arrzngementwith Mangalore Special Econarmic Zone for a period of 50 Yearsfor 104,73 acresofland .

) | Arrengement with Karnataka Industrial Areas Development Board (KIADB] fora period of 20 years towards 138.56
acresafland.

(d) | Arrangement with Karnataka Industrial Areas Development Board (KIADB) for a period of 15 years towards 37.35

acres of land,
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(i

{iii)

{iv)

(vl

Amount recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss Account or Carrying Amount of Right of Use:

(% in iakhs)
b ¢ (el 2020-21 2019-20
- i 2 F F nt Asset and
Prepm LEESE BNl yedrier snown a5 curran sTEL an NA 1259&1_‘[
Mon current Assel as Operating Lease) capitalised as Right of use
g : f Right of Use and Leasa Obligati
Increase of Rig ' : igation NA 571.72
- Depreciztion Recognised on incraased Right of Use
- 4 : 4o A | 1512 15,12
- Depreciation Recognised on Prepaid Lease Renta
P E'bl i i 517.85 517.95
= Interest on Lease Obligation
ik B 41,59 41,83
- Incremental Borrowing Rate
| 7.94% 7.94%
L Rental P T
ease Rental Payme s ol

The Details of Right of Use included in PPE held as leases by class of underlying assets is presented below:

% in lakhs
Asset Class Hem Added to RoU Asset Accumulated Net Carrying Value
as on 31.03.2019 Depreciation as on 31.03.2021
Leasehold land 13,259.83 1,066.14 12,203,659

*ltems added to Rol Assets as on:31,3.2019 includes operating leases entered before 01.04.201%on net carrying
valueofRs, 126%8.11 Lakhswhich has been reclassified to Right tollse as on01.04.2019.

Detalls of itern of future cash outflows which the company 5 exposed as lease but are not reflected in the
measurementsof lease jahilities are 2s under;

Variable Leasa Payments

Varlable lease gayments that depends on anindex or a rate to be Included in the measurement of lease [iability
although not pald at the commencement date. As per general industry practice, the company incurs various
variable [ease payment which are nat based any index or rate (variable based an KMS covered or % of sales etc.)
and arerecognized in profit or loss and not includedin the measurement of lease [iability,

Extension and Termination Options

The company lease arrangement includes extension option only to provide operational flexibility, Company
assesses at every lessa commencement whether it is reasonably cerlain to exercise the extension eptiens and
further reassesses whether It Is reasonably certain to exsrclse the option It there |s 3 significant change in
clreumstanceas within its control, However, whers company has the solo discretion to extend the contract such
lease termin Included for the purpose of caloulation of lease [abllities.

Residual value Guarantees

Thereare no Residual value guarantees.

Committed leasewhich are yetto commence

There 5 no committed |ease which i5yet to commence.

The difference between the future minimum lzase rantal commitment towards non-cancellable operating lease
reported 25 at March 31, 2019 compared to the leasz llabllity 25 accountad as gt April 1, 2019 1s primarily duz to
Inclusien of present value of the lease payment for the cancellable term of the leases. Reduction due to
discounting of the [ease liabilitios ac por the requirement of IND AS 116 and exclusion of the caommitments for the
lzases to which the company has chosen to apply the practical expedient as perthe standard,
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{vi} | Application of thisstandard has resulted a net decrease in profit before Tax for the year by Rs-11.86 Lakhs (Previous
Year - Rs. 12.11 Lakhs) (increase in Depreciation & Amortization expenses and Finance cost) by Rs.56.71 Lakhs
{Previous Year Rs. 56.96 Lakhs) respectively and decrease in office, Administration, Selling B ather Expenses by Rs.
44,85 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs, 44,85 Lakhs],

22.2 | Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent nat pravided for)

Particulars
(A) Contingent liabilities

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts amounting to 2 9617459 lakhs (2020: X 98866.59 Lakhs]
camprising of

a) Disputed Demand of Royalty by Department of Mines and Gealogy et Vicag 211784.95 Lakhs (2020:211794.95
Lakhs)

B) Disputed claims by the contractors for ® 84305.00 Lakhs (2020: T86497.00 Lakhs | rejected by Eil on account of
projects undertaken on various sites for which cases are pending with Arbitrators. For cne of the claim, an
arbitration award in favour of HCC Limited for £ 3599.86 Lakhs has been made along with legal cost of S751akhs and
interest @9 % from 10™ Movermber 2017, which is estimated to be 1038 Lakhs till 31" March 2021 on 26" June
2021. The company s In process of filing an appeal against the same.

C) Disputed demands of Entry Tax % 74.64 Lakhs (2020: ¥74.64 Lakhs). The Company has availed Kar S5amadhan
scheme promulgated by Government of Karnataka for resolution of dispute of Entry Tax. As per Company there |5
naliability 2nd the Company has lilad writ petition against the coerciva recovery of 374,64 Lakhs toward entry tax
and the matter is pending before honourable Karnataka High Court.

(B) Capital Commitmeants

Estimated amountof contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for TNl (2020: Nil }
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INDIAN STRATEGIC PETROLEUM RESERVES LIMITED

Motes Forming Part of The Financial Statements

Note No. 23 : Related Party Disclosures
Related party disclosura, as required by Ind AS 24, [s as below :

Particulars

| Details of related Parties :

Description of relationship

Names of related parties

Halding Organisation

Oil Industry Development Board (CIDB) holding 100% equity in the Company

Key Management Personnel| (1) Shri HPS Ahuja, CEO & MD

(KMP)

{4) Shri Arun Talwar, Company Secretary

| Board of Directors |Ex-Officio)

| Shri Tarun Kapoor , Chairman {w e f 15.05 2020)
Shri M M Kutty, Chairman (upto 30.04,2020)
Shri Rajesh Agarwal, Director (W.e f 01.01.2020)
Shri B.N Reddy: Director (We f09.04.2018)

(2) Shri Gopeshwar Kumar Singh, CFO (w.e.f 05.11.2020)
{3) Shri Gautam Sen, CFO (upto 16.10,2020)

Dr. Niranjan Kumar Singh, Director (W.e.f101.01.2020)

Ms. Indrani Kaushal, Director (We f 01.08.2019)

[T in lakhs)

KMP Remunerations

For year ending on

For year ending on

{Based on debits note) 31" March, 2021 31" March, 2020
CED & MD 47.29 61.03
CFO 74.43 63.31
Cs 56.34 45.54
TOTAL 178.06 169.88
Holding Company (OIDB)

Allottment of Shares/Share application money - 2,750.00
Reimbursement of expenses to OIDB 22.12 25.9R
Grant for Phase || expenditures 59491 635.00
Return of unutilized Grant for Phase |l 359.78 -
Interest Free Unsecured Loan 9,816.17 2
Balances outstanding with related parties: (Tin fakhs)

Holding Company (OIDB)

Unsecured Loan
Reimbursemant of expenses payable to OIDB

As on 31" March,

As on 31" March,

2021 2020
9,816.17 2
2049 2212
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INDIAN STRATEGIC PETROLEUM RESERVES LIMITED
Motes Forming Part of The Financial Statements

Company is creating storage assets for soverign reserves of crude ail of Government of India and is also
maintaining such assets. This is considered to constitute on single primary segment.

Geopraphical information is not applicable as all operation of the Company is within India.

Note No. 25 : FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments by category

1) The management assessed that Fair Value of Cash & Cash Equivalents, Other Current Financial Assets,
Trade Payables, Short Term Borrowings and Other Current Financial Liabilities approximate their carrying

amounts.
2}  Thefairvalue of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could

be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than ina forced or liguidation sale.

3)  Corsidering above disclosure with regard tothe Fair Value Hierarchy is notapplicable.
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Note No. 26 : FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

1) Financial risk factors

I'he Company's activities expase itto a varlety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liguidity risk. The Company's orimary
focus is 1o foresee the unpredictability of financial markets ane sesk to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial
performance. The primary market risk to the Company is Interest Rate risk. Presently company has no revenue model and D&M
aremet with GBS hence itis not exposed to any materfal Interest rate risk.

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables & security deposits. The main purpose of these
financlal llzbilities is to finance the Company's operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include other raceivabies,
Other Financial Assats and cash / cashequivalents that darive directly from its operations.

Presently Comparny is not exposed to a number of any financial risks arlsing from natural business exposures as well as its use of
financial (nstruments including market risk relating to interest rate, forelgn currency exchange rates. Senior management
overseesthe management of these risks with appropriate financial risk gavernanco framewark for the Company.

2) Market risk

Market risk Is the risk where the fair value or future cash flows of a finandlal instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market prices comprise thrae types of risk: currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks. Financiz|
instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, Investmants, and derivative financial instruments.
Forelgn currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair velue or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Presently company's financial instrument is not exposed to any material market
risk.

3) Credit risk

Customer credit risk s managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established paolicy, procedures and contrzl
relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive analysis and
outstanding custcmer receivablesare regularly monitored. Fresently there are no trade receivables.

4) Liquidity risk

Company maniters its risk of a shortage of funds diliganthy. The Company seeks fo manage its liguidity requirement by
maintaining access tashortterm borrowirgs from holding Company.

Thetable below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial llabilities as of March 31, 2021:

T In lakhs
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-4 years More than 4 yrs Total
Borrowlings 9,815.17 - . - 59,816.17
Trade payables 1,709.67 - - - 1,709.67
Cther financial liabilities 14,127.49 4,00 8.52 549.60 14,689.61
Total 25,653.33 4.00 8.52 549.60 26;215.45
Thetable below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of March 31, 2020

T in lakhs
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-4years More than 4 yrs Total
Borrowings - - - - -
Trade payables 5,096.77 - - - 6,096.77
Other financial liabilities 7,640.43 308.22 7.20 554.02 8.510.57
Total 13,737.20 308.22 7.90 554.02 14,607.34

For the purpose of the Company's capital manzgement, capital includes issued equity capltal and all other 2quity reserves
attributable to the equity holders. The primary abjective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder
value.

Nqﬂhanhpﬁ\”ErP made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years endad 31" March, 2021 and
31" March, 2020
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Note No. 28 : MOTES

IN N STRATEGIC PETROLEUM RESERVES LIMITED
Motes Farming Part of The Financial Statements

28

Others Notes

{1]

The company had avalled the benefit under Vivad se Vishwas Act, 2020 and paid a liability of Rs. 663.47 lakhs. The matter
is under review by Income Tax Department for issuance of Form-5.

(i)

The Soversign Crude Qil Resarves have been kept at three sites Padur, Mangalore and Visakhapatnam, Cavern B at
Visakhapatnam is used by HPCL for its oparation and property In crude is purely owned by HPCL. Cavern Aat Mangalore |5
used by ADNOC for Crude il owned by ADNOC under agreement with ISPRL.

GOVERNMENT OF INDIA- CRUDE OIL

Particulars 31.03.2021 ~ 31.03.2020
(Cty. in MT) {Qty. in MT)
Opening Stock of Cruda Ol | As per Surveyar Report) {a) 18,55, 457.49 19,47,211.00
Add:- Procurad during the year :
As per Bill of lading (k) 24,10,121.63 8,29.778.73
Actual as per Surveyor Repart () 24,10,095.82 8,26,700.49
Less:- Transferred (d) 41,453.00 9,05,029.69
Nat Quant/tyas per actual as on close of the year (a+c)-{d) 42,24,100.31 18,68,881.80
Total quantity under Custody as at close of the year (As per Surveyor Eeport) 42,13,678.99 18,55,457.49
ADNOC- CRUDE DIL
Opening Stack aof Crude Oil { As per Surveyor Report) (a) 3,74,918.53 7,28,846.84
Add:- Procured during the y=ar
As per Bill of lading (b) 5,16,604.00 -
ActUal es per Surveyor Report | cf 4,98,308.11 -
Less - Transfar by ADNOC during the year (d) 3,69,702.30 3,69,119.70
Met Quantity as per actual as on close of the year (a+cj-{d} 5,03,524.34 3,59,727.14
Total guantity under Custody as on 31° March 2021 (As per Surveyor Report) 5,17,387.96 3,74.81853
(Rs. In Lakhs]}
PAYABLE TO MOPNG [ CRUDE OIL) 202021 3019.20
Payahle/Refurdable to GOI/MoPNG as at D1st April 2020 64,569.00
Add-Amount received for Crude 01l during the year 3,04,000.00 =
Less:-Crude DIl Brocured (Net of Transfer) (Including Clearing and Other Fxpenses) 2,85,386,85 -64,569.00
during the year
Less:- Amaount refunded to GOI/MaPNG 75,000.00 -
Payable/Refundable to GOI/MoPNG as at 317 March, 2021 4,182.15 64,569.00

(iii)

Application for Land allatment for Chandikhol project was submitted to Governmaent of Odisha, ASl survey of land has
been completed and clear report submitted to government, EIA studies were started for Phase 2 by NEERI during the FY
2019-20 and craft report has been received. The DFR for construction of SPM and associated pipeline at Padur was
awarded to M/S Engineers India Limited. Rs 98,16 croreswas paid to KIADB for land acquisition of Phase-|l of Padur Praject
this amount was funded by OIDB on returnabie hasis and shown as unsecured loan from related parties under the head
borrowings, The proposal for Phase 2 on PPP mode has been approved by cabinet in the meeting held on 27 July 2021.

{iv)

Far Cavern "A" at Mangalore, Oil storage and Management Agreement was signed with Abu Dhabi National Oil Company.
As per the agreement, value of 1,20,000 US barrels (15831 MT) has to be paid to AMI India{ADNDC) toward dead stock
loss/commissioning loss. The same is to be funded by GOI. The same has been estimated to be Rs.7000 lakhs, This amount

has heen received from GOl but is yet 1o be dishursed to ADNOC pending receipt of invoice from ADNOC. The same is
grouped as other financial liabilities,
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The Parties acknowledge and agree that ISPRL, will, at 21l times, continue ta retain an ownership interest in the AM| India
(ADNOC) oll equal to the Dead Stock quantity,

Provision for liability, if any, towards the storage loss and operational loss relating to agreement with ADNOC oil will be
made after quantification by Company.

Ason 317 March, 2021, the Company's day to day workis handled by 16 personnel berrowed from various Oil Companies
on deputaticn terms, Their salary and other retiral benefite are reimbursed to their respective parent companies on
recaipt of claim thereof. In addition, the company has five empleyees on regular rolls. The process of formulation of
Employee Policies and allowances for regular employees s under advanced stage of deliberation and finalisation. Shri HPS
Ahuja CED&MD has besn enrclled as employee of ISPRL w.e.f 17 Nov, 2019 on contractual basis consequent to his
syperannuztion from parent company ONGC, No Employee of the ISPRL wera entitled to any retirement benefit during
theyearand hence no provision for the same has been made.

{v)

Vi) Advance recoverable in czsh or kind for value to be received including amount due from other companies in which any
directorisadirector or memberis Rs. NIL{Previous Year-Rs. NIL).

[wii) The cutbreak of Corona virus (COVID 19) Pandemicglobally and in India has impacted businesses and economic activities
in general. The spread of COVID 19, along with nationwide lockdown starting fram 25" March, 2020 has causad serious
threat ta human livesand has impacted the global demand and resulted in disruption of supply chain which has adversely
affected the business operationsinshortterm.

ISPRLis a Special Purpose Vehicle (5PV) ereated by Government of India to enhance the Energy security of the Matian. The
crude oll stared in ISPRL caverns |s strategic in naturs ang are to be used in case of supply disruption / unforeseen
circurnstances. It is therefors, perceived that COVID 19 pandemic shall have no material impact on functioning of ISPRL
operations.

As aresult of the outbreak of the COVID 19 Pandemic, global crude oil price showed a significant down turn. In arder ta
take the advantage of lower crude oil price, Government of India 2llocated additional funds to ISPRLfor filling the available
space in the caverns. Accordingly, during the lockdawn period, ISPRL has filled up the caverns at Visakhapatram,
Mangalore and Padur in 2020-21 t=king advantage of the lower crude oil price thereby saving huge foreign exchange
outgotothe Government.

The eompany has adhered to 2l applicable government guidelines f SOPs during the lockdown for safety of its employeas |
and business partners, |

{viii) Rocks excavated fram Mangalore and Padur are lying at sites. E-auction for Rack Debris at Padur was conducted th rough
mlineral State Trading Corporation (MSTC) and the price of Rs 106 /MT was bid by the successful bidder for lifting 2 lakh MT
of Rock debris from Fadur. Thereis nolifting/ sale of Rock during the year,

fix] Details of O & M Expenditure 2 in Lakhs
O& M Expenditure Claimed from GOI/HPCL/ADNOC during the Year (2020-21) 14,669.47
Less;- O B M Expenditure booked in previous year but claimed during the year 3,711.30
Add:- O & M Expenditure for the peried not claimed during the year, to be claimed 1,367.87
Lessi- O & M Expenditure Extra Claimad/ Prepald Expensas R20.8S ,
Met O B M Expenditure incurred during the year (Inclusive of Deareciation, Finance Cost and Tax Expenses) 11,505.15 !
Amount Recoverable from GOI/HPCL at the year end (2019-20) 3;611.58
Add:- Met O & M Expenditure for the y=ar 11,505.15 i
Less:- Amount Recovered from GOI/HECL during the year {Including Rs. 4300.00 Lakhs from GO as revolving 13,933.57
advance tawards DEM Expernses) |
Amount Recoverable (Received in advance) from GOIHPCL/ADNOC as on 315t March 2021 {3,816 84}
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{x) Deferred Tax
In the absence of Texable Income no pravision for income tax has been considered necessary. Further, Deferred Tax Asset
has also rot been recognized as there Isno reasanable certainty with ennvineing evidence that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such Deferred Tax Asset can be adjusted.

{xi) Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined as Rs.0.52 lzkhs as on 31" Mareh, 2021 (previous year
Rs, 70.46 Lakhs) to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available on recards, in terms
of ‘The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 20058° which came into force wi.e fOctober 2, 2006,

[xll) Amount paysble / recoverable from Vendors/Contractors/service providers are subject to confirmation, reconciliation
and consequential adjustments thereof if any.

(i) | Allconsumables/stores/spares partsare booked in D&M expenses atthe time of purchases.

[xIv) Rovalty payment on rockremoval from Mangalore SEZ s to be borne by MSEZL/Contractor appointad by them far removal
ofthesame.

() Interast earned by the campany onadvances received from Gal for procurement of crude oll are payable to Gal and have
been shown under other currentiiabllities,

{uvi) | Asrequirad under additional information pertaining to general instrictions for preparation of statements of Profit & loss
{Glven In the schedule 1l of companies Act, 2013) related to exgenditure incurred during FY 2020-21 for the audit and
other itemsare as follow:

F.Y. 2020-21 (Lakhs in INR) FY¥. 2019-20 (Lakhs in INR)
Payment to Statutory Auditor
Audit Fees (Incl. G5T) 1.77 1.77
Certification (Incl. GST) 0.06 0.02
Dut of Pocket Expenses 0.00 0.00
Payment to Internal Auditor
Audit Fees (Incl. GST) 0.35 0.35
Othar Sarvices MNIL MIL
Payment to Secretarial Auditor
Audit Fees 0.10 0.25
fwuii) | Company has acquired 173.2 acre of land at Padur out of which 176.11 acre of land at Padur has been registersd in the
nameof ISPRL. for balance 2.09 acreof land at Paduris yet to he registered inthe name of the Comaoany.

(xviii) | ISPRL had obtained interest free unsecured loan of Rs. 38,16,17,120/- for payment to KIADB demand letter No.
KIADB/CK/LACM/2542/10953/2020-21 dated 31st December 2020 against land acguisition cost far acquiring 210 acres
4 cants land at Padurand Kalathur village for ISRRL Padur Phase |l praject.

[xix) Manpower Expenses for Phase |l projects was paid from internal accruals and the same will be charged to grant for Phase-
|l projectreleased during the year 2021-22,

[xx) Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary ta correspond with the current years
classification/disclasure.

(xxi) | Thefinancialstatementshave beenapproved forby the Board of directorson 15" September, 2021,
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Note No. 1 : Significant Accounting Policies

Corporate Information and Significant Accounting Policies
1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Indian Strategic Petroleum Reserves Limited was incarporated on 16" June, 2004 by IOCL as its
subsidiary. The entire sharehelding of the Company was taken over by Oil Industry Development
Board(“0IDB") and its nominees on 9" May, 2006,

Indian Strategic Petroleum Reserves Limited (the Company), a wholly awned subsidiary of OIDB, is a
Public Limited Company and incorporated in India having its registered office at 301, World Trade
Centre, 3" Floor, Babar Road, New Delhi-110001 and operational/ functional office is at OIDB Bhawan,
3”Floor, Plot No. 2, Sector-73, Noida - 201301, Uttar Pradesh. The Company is unlisted asits shares are
not listed and traded on Stock Exchanges in India.

The main objects of the Company are:

1. To store sovereign reserves of crude oil of the Government of India or crude oil of such other
entities as Government of India may decide, subject to and in compliances of the fellowing:-

The release of core critical sovereign reserves of crude oil from caverns and its replenishment
will be done through an Empowered Committee constituted by the Government.

Provided that the core critical sovereign reserve of Government of India may also be drawn for
crude circulation on account of quality requirement or repairs and maintenance.

2. To carry on the business of storage, handling, treatment, carriage, transport, dispatch, supply,
market, research, advise, consultancy, service providers, brokers and agents, engineering and
civil designers, contractors, wharf ringers, warehouseman, producers, dealers of oil and oil
products, gas and gas products, petroleum and petroleum products, fuels, spirits, chemicals,
liquids of all types and kind and the compounds, derivatives, mixtures, preparations and
products thereof.

1A: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.1  Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The Financial statements are prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, Campanies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment)
Rules, 2016 & Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2017 and comply in all

material aspects with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies
(Amendment) Act, 2017.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.
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The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR') which is the presentation and .
functional currency of the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs (up to two
decimals) except otherwise indicated. 1

1.2 Revenue Recognition

(i) Interest income is recognized on Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method.

1
4'
(ii) Insurance Claims are accounted on settlement of the claim.
1.3  Property, Plant & Equipmentand Intangible Assets:

i) Properties, Plant & Equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation/
amortization and impairment loss, if any. The cost of fixed assets includes cost of
acquisition and directly attributable cost for bringing the assets in an operational
condition fortheirintended use.

i) An intangible asset is recognized where it is probable that the future economic benefit |
attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably. Such assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. ‘

1) Capital work- in-progress

Capital work - in-progress is carried at cost. Revenue expenses exclusively attributable :
to projects & incurred during construction period are capitalized.

1.4 Depreciation/ Amaortization ‘
(i) Depreciation is provided on Straight Line Method as per the useful life specified in

Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 except for, underground cavern the useful life of “:

whichis considered as 60 years based on certification by independent expert. |

(i)  Fixed Assets individually costing up to Rs. 5,000/~ are being fully depreciated in the year f

of acquisition. ‘

(i)  Right of use (ROU) with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for |

impairment annually at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life
is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a
prospective basis. |

(iv)  Right of use (ROU) with definite useful lives are amortized over a period of lease.
1.5 Impairmentof Assets |

Management periodically assesses using external and internal sources whether there is an indication {
that an asset may be impaired. Impairment occurs where the carrying value exceeds the present value
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of the future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset and its eventual

_"""t

disposal. An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss to the extent, asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair
value |ess cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows,
discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment
ofthe time value of the money and risk specific ta the assets.

1.6

1.7

1.8

Foreign Currency Transactions

i)

v)

The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR) which is also
functional currency of the Company.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the exchange rates prevailing
on the date of transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
functional currencies closing rate of exchange at the reporting date.

Non-Maonetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currency
arerecorded at the exchange rates at the date of transactions.

Any gains or losses arising due to differences in exchange rates at the time of translation
orsettlement are accounted forin the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Financial instruments

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets:

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortized cost.

Financial Liabilities:

All financial liahilities are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortized cost.

(iii) De-recognition

Financial asset is derecognized when right to receive cash flow from the asset expires or
at transfer of the financial asset and such transfers qualify for de-recognition. Financial
liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or expires.

Taxesonlncome

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
for the future tax consequences of timing differences, subject to the consideration of prudence.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which is deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21




;HT-

1,9 Government Grants

Government grant shall be recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which
the entity recognizes as expenses the related cost for which the grants are intended to compensate.

1.10 Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, atinception of a contract. A contractis, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contact involves the use of an identified
asset (2) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and (3) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements
in which itis a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and
leases for low value underlying asset .For these short-term and leases for low value underlying assets,
the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the
termofthe lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the
lease term. Right-of use assets and lease liabilities include these options when it is reasonably certain
that the option to extend the lease will be exercised / option to terminate the lease will not be
exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the |ease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus
any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation/ amortizationand impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated/ amortized from the commencement date to the end of the
useful life of the underlying asset, if the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset by the end of
lease term or if the cost of right of use assets reflects that the purchase option will be exercised.
Otherwise, Right-of-use assets are depreciated / amortized from the commencement date on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not
readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rate. Lease liabilities are re-measured with a
corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment
whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21




EL IR

|
Fi

OTIEINDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT/BOARE
1:-. 5 .-;7 T _;,_i_:; P.J'i 1

“

i " T

il i

1.11 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (Ind A5-37)

The Company recognizes a provision when there is present obligation as a result of past event and it is
more likely than not that there will be an cutflow of resources to settle such obligation and the
amount of such obligation can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not discounted to their present
value and are determined based on the management's best estimate of the amount of obligation at
the year-end. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect management's
best estimates.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that have arisen from past events
and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of future
events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed for
present obligations in respect of which it is not prabable that there will be an outflow of resources ora
reliable estimate of the amount of obligation cannot be made.

When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation where the likelihood of an outflow of
resourcesis remote, nodisclosure or provision is made.

Contingent Assetsisdisclosed where an inflow of economic benefit is probable
1.12 Earnings perShare

Basic Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity share outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating Diluted Earnings Per Share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the number of shares outstanding during the period will be
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive patential equity shares.

1B: RecentIndian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ["MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards.
There is no such notification which would have been applicable from 1 April, 2021
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(8) (b)
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIAN STRATEGIC PETROLEUM
RESERVES LIMITED (ISPRL) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH 2021

The preparation of financial statements of Indian Strategic Petroleum Reserves Limited for the Year
ended 31" March, 2021 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the management of the company. The statutory auditor
appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 129 (5) of the Act is
responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of the Act based on
independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143 (10) of
the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 15" September, 2021.

|, on the behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary
audit of the financial statements of Indian Strategic Petroleum Reserves Limited (ISPRL) for the year
ended 31" March, 2021 under section 143(6) (a) ofthe Act. This supplementary audit has been carried
out independently without access to the working papers of the statutory auditors and is limited
primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective examination of
some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge which would

give rise to any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditors' report under section 143(6) (b) of
the Act.

For and on the behalf of the

Comptroller and Auditor General of India

sd/-
C.M. Sane
Director General of Commercial Audit, Mumbai

Place: Mumbai
Date: 02™ November, 2021
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APPENDIX-

SECTION 6 OF THE OIL INDUSTRY (DEVELOPMENT) ACT,
1974 — FUNCTIONS OF THE BOARD

Subject to the provisions of this Act and the rules made thereunder, the Board shall render, in such
manner, to such extent and on such terms and conditions as it may deem fit, financial and other
assistance for the promotion of all such measures as are, in its opinion, conducive to the
developmentof oil industry.

Without prejudice to the generality of the provisions of such-section (1), the Eoard may render
assistance under that sub-section by-

(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g
(h)

making grants or advancing loans to any oil industrial concern or other person who is
engaged or |sto engage in any activity referred to in clause (k) of section 2;

guaranteeing on such terms and conditions as may be agread upon loans raised by any oil
Industrial concern or other person which are repayable within a perioed not exceeding
twenty-five years and are floated in the market or loans raised by an oil industrial concarn or
ather person from any bank which is a scheduled bank, or a State co-operative bank, as
definedinthe Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;

guaranteeing on such terms and conditions as may be agreed upon deferred payments due
from any oil industrial concern or other person in connection with import of capital goods
from outside India or in connection with purchase of capital poods from outside India or in
connection with purchase of capital goods within India by such concern or other person;

guaranteeing on such terms and conditions as may be agreed upon loans raised from, or
oredit arrangements made with, any bank orfinancial institution in any country outside India
by any oil industrial concern or other person in foreign currency :

Provided that no such guarantee shall be given without the prior approval of the Central
Government;

underwriting the issue of stock, shares, bonds, or debentures by any oil industrial concern
and retaining as part of its assets any stock, shares bonds or debentures which it may have to
take up in fulfillment of its obligations thereto;

acting as agent for the Central Government or, with its approval, for any overseas financial
organisation or credit agency in the transaction of any business with any oil industrial
concern in respect of loans or advances granted, or debentures subscribed by the Central
Government of such arganisation oragency;

subscribing to the stock or shares of any oil industrial concern;

subscribing to the debentures ar any oll industrial concern repayable within a period not
exceading twenty-five years from the date on which they are subscribed to;

Provided that nothing contained in this clause shall be deemed to preclude the Board frem
subscribing to the debentures of any oil industrial concern, the amounts outstanding
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thereon may be caonvertible at the option of the Board into stock or shares of that concern
within the period the debentures are repayable.

Explanation : In this clause, the expression "amounts outstanding thereon” used in relation to any
loan or advance shall mean the principal, interest and other charges payable on such loan or advance
a5 at the time when the amountsare sought to be converted into stock or shares.

Without Prejudice to the generality of the provisions of sub-section (1), the measures for the
promotion of which the board may render assistance under that sub-section may include measures

foror by way of—

(a)

(b)
{c)
(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

Prospecting for an exploration of mineral il within India (including the continental shelf
thereof) oroutside India;

The establishment of facilities for production, handling, storage and transport of crude oil;
Refining and marketing of petroleum and petroleum products;
The manufacture and marketing of petrochemicals and fertilizers;

Scientific, technolegical and econamic research which could be, directly or indirectly, useful
to oil Industry;

Experimental or pilot studies in any field of oil industry;

Training of personnel, whetherin India or outside, engaged or to be engaged in any field of oil
industry, and such other measures asmay be prescribed.

The Board may charge such fees or receive such commission as it may deem appropriate for any
services rendered by itin the exercise of its functions.

The Board may transfer for consideration any instrument relating to loans or advances granted by it
tozny oil industrial concern or other person.

The Board may do all such things as may be incidental to or consequential upon the discharge of its
functions under this Act,
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FINANCE, ACCOUNTS AND AUDIT
SECTION 15 OF THE OIL INDUSTRY (DEVELOPMENT) ACT, 1974~
DUTIES OF EXCISE

15(1) There shall be levied and collected, as a cess for the purposes of this Act, on every item specified in

(2)

(3]

(4)

16,

17.

column 2 of the schedule, which is produced in India {including the continental shelfthereof) and-
(a) removed to a refinery or factary; or
(b) transferred by the person by whom such itemiis produced to anather person,

a duty of excise at such rate not exceeding the rate set forth in the corresponding entry in column 3 of
the Schedule, as the Central Government may, by notification in the Official Gazetee, specify:

Provided that until the Central Government specifies by such notification the rate of the duty of
axcise in respect of crude oil (being an item specified in the schedule) the duty of excise on crude oil
under this sub-section shall be levied and collected at the rate rupees sixty per tonne. (Revised rate
20% ad valoremw.e.f. 01.03.2016).

Every duty of excise leviable under sub —section (1) on any item shall be payable by the person by
whom such item is produced, and in the case of crude oil, the duty of excise shall be collected on the
guantity receivedin a refinery.

The duties of excise under sub-section 91) on the items specified in the Schedule shall be in addition
to any cess or duty leviable on thoseitems under any other law for the time being in force.

The provisions of the Central Excises and Salt, Act, 1944 and the rules made thereunder, including
those relating to refunds and exemptions from duties shall, as far as may be, apply in relation to the
levy and collection of duties of excise leviable under this section and for this purpose the provisions
of that Act shall have effect as if that Act provided for the levy of duties of excise on all items specified
inthe Schedule.

SECTION 16 OF THE OIL INDUSTRY (DEVELOPMENT) ACT, 1974 — CREDITING OF PROCEEDS
OF DUTY TO CONSOLIDATED FUND OF INDIA

The proceeds of the duties of excise levied under section 15 shall first be credited to the
Consolidated Fund of India and the Central Government may, if Parliament by appropriation made
by law in this behalf, so provides, pay to the Board from time to time, from out of such proceeds, after
deducting the expenses of collection, such sums of money as it may think fit for being utilized
exclusively for the purposes of this Act.

SECTION 17 OF THE OIL INDUSTRY (DEVELOPMENT) ACT, 1974 — GRANTS
AND LOANS BY THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT

The Central Government may also, after due appropriation made by Parliament by [aw in this behalf,
pay to the Board by way of grants or loans such sums of money as the Central Government may
considernecessary.
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SECTION 18 OF THE OIL INDUSTRY (DEVELOPMENT)
ACT, 1974 - OIL INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT FUND

There shall be formed a Fund to be called the Oil Industry Development Fund and there shall
becredited thereto-

any sumsocf money paid under section 16 or section 17;
any grants that may be made by any person or institution for the purposes of this Act;

any borrowings by the Board; (d) the sums, if any, realized by the Board in carrying out its
functions or in the administration of this Act.

The Fund shall be applied-

()

(b)
(c)
(d)

for meeting the salaries, allowances, hanoraria and other remuneration of the officers and
other employees of the Board and of the advisers, consultants or other agencies whose
services are availed of by the Board;

for meeting the other administrative expenses of the Board;
for rendering assistance undersection 6;

for repayment of any loans taken by the Board or for meeting other liabilities under this Act.
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